
 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
City Council Chambers, 33 East Broadway Avenue Meridian, Idaho 

Tuesday, March 01, 2022 at 4:30 PM 

All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Meridian. Anyone desiring accommodation 
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-888-4433 at least 48 hours prior to the public meeting. 

Agenda 

VIRTUAL MEETING INSTRUCTIONS 

To join the meeting online: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82471522559 

Or join by phone: 1-669-900-6833 
Webinar ID: 824 7152 2559 

ROLL CALL ATTENDANCE 

____ Jessica Perreault   ____ Joe Borton   ____ Brad Hoaglun 

____ Treg Bernt   ____ Liz Strader   ____ Luke Cavener 

____ Mayor Robert E. Simison 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

1. Approve Minutes of the February 15, 2022 City Council Work Session 

2. Approve Minutes of the February 15, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting 

3. Apex Southeast Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer Easement 

4. Future State Highway 16 Crossing Water Main Easement 

5. Final Plat for Meridian Movado Village Subdivision (FP-2022-0002) by Breckon 
Land Design, Located on the South Side of E. Overland Rd. Between S. Eagle Rd. and 
S. Cloverdale Rd. 

6. Final Order for Prescott Ridge No. 1 (FP-2021-0053) by KM Engineering, LLP, 
Generally Located 1/3 Mile South of W. Chinden Blvd., on the East Side of N. 
McDermott Rd. 

7. Memorandum of Agreement Between Meridian Library District and City Of 
Meridian for Design and Installation of Mural 

ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 

Page 1



DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 

8. License Agreement Between the City of Meridian and Concept Investments, LLP for 
Landscape Improvements and Maintenance 

9. Parks and Recreation Department: Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Amendment in the 
Amount of $45,000.00 for Meridian Road Island Beautification 

10. Community Development: Ustick Road Center Median Options Between Ten Mile 
Road and Linder Road  

ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the February 15, 2022 City Council Work Session

Page 3

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session                        February 15, 2022. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  4:30 p.m., Tuesday,  
February 15, 2022, by Mayor Robert Simison.  
 
Members Present:  Robert Simison,  Luke Cavener, Treg Bernt, Jessica Perreault, Brad 
Hoaglun and Liz Strader. 
 
Members Absent:  Joe Borton and Jessica Perreault. 
 
Also present:  Chris Johnson, Bill Nary, Kyle Radek, Crystal Ritchie, Jeff Brown, Joe 
Bongiorno and Dean Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  __X__ Liz Strader     _____ Joe Borton 
  __X__ Brad Hoaglun        __X__ Treg Bernt 
  _____ Jessica Perreault    __X__ Luke Cavener 
              __X__  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Simison:  Council, we will call the meeting to order.  For the record it is February 15th, 
2022, at 4:33 p.m.  We will begin this afternoon's work session with roll call attendance. 
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA    
 
Simison:  Next item is the adoption of the agenda.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  One change for tonight's agenda.  I know that Item 13 under the Consent 
Agenda, we wanted to remove that from the Consent Agenda and just have a quick 
update on some changes just to make sure everybody's on the same page on that.  So, 
with that one change I move adoption of the agenda as amended.   
 
Cavener:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to adopt the agenda with that change.  Is there 
any discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have 
it and the agenda is adopted as amended.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]  
 

Page 4

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 2 of 19 

 1.  Approve Minutes of the February 1, 2022 City Council Work Session 
 
 2.  Approve Minutes of the February 1, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting 
 
 3.  Final Plat for Prescott Ridge No. 1 (FP-2021-0053) by KM Engineering, 
  LLP, Generally Located 1/3 Mile South of W. Chinden Blvd., on the East 
  Side of N. McDermott Rd. 
 
 4.  Final Order for Victory Commons No. 2 (FP-2021-0054) by BVA   
  Development, Located Near the Northeast Corner of S. Meridian Rd.  
  and E. Victory Rd. 
 
 5.  Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Denial of Alpha Development 
  R-15 MDA (H-2021-0094) by Alpha Development Group, Located at  
  Parcel S0427438410, on the North Side of W. McMillan Rd. Between N. 
  San Vito Way and N. Vicenza Way, Near the Northwest Corner of N. Ten 
  Mile Rd. and W. McMillan Rd. 
 
 6.  Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for 1160 W. Ustick Annexation  
  (H-2021-0092) by The Housing Company, Located at 1160 W. Ustick  
  Rd., on the North Side of Ustick Rd. Between N. Linder Rd. and N.  
  Venable Ave. 
 
 7.  Revised Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Apex East   
  Subdivision (H-2021-0086) by Brighton Development, Inc., Located on 
  Parcel S1405120902, South of E. Lake Hazel Rd. Between S. Locust  
  Grove Rd. and S. Eagle Rd., in a Portion of Government Lot 2 and a  
  Portion of the SW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 5, Township 2N, Range 1E. 
 
 8.  Addendum to Development Agreement (Instrument No. 2018-042029)  
  Between the City of Meridian and Steve Eddy for Fast Eddy's at Eagle 
  (H-2021-0068) for Property Located at 13984 W. Jasmine Ln. 
 
 9.  Development Agreement (H-2021-0066 Red Aspen) Between the City  
  of Meridian and Aspen Grove Holdings, LLC for Property Located at  
  the Southeast Corner of S. Linder Rd. and W. Overland Rd. 
 
 10.  Farm Lease Between the City of Meridian and Louie Asumendi for  
  Farming of 40 Acres of City-Owned Land Adjacent to the Water  
  Resource Recovery Facility (WRRF) for 2022 
 
 11.  Encroachment Agreement Between the City of Meridian and   
  Northwest Pipeline, LLC for Right-of-Way Through the Undeveloped  
  Portion of Discovery Park 
 

Page 5

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 3 of 19 

 12.  Professional Services Agreement Between City of Meridian and  
  Treasure Valley Children's Theater for 2022 Sponsorship of Theatrical 
  Season 
 
 14.  Resolution No. 22-2313: A Resolution Approving a Farm Lease   
  Agreement Between the City of Meridian (Lessor) and Louie Asumendi 
  (Lessee) for Approximately 40 Acres of Real Property Located on N.  
  Ten Mile Rd., North of W. Ustick Rd.; Authorizing the Mayor and City  
  Clerk to Execute and Attest Said Agreement on Behalf of the City of  
  Meridian; and Providing an Effective Date 
 
ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item] 
 
 13.  Resolution No. 21-2300: A Resolution of the Mayor and City Council of 
  the City of Meridian to Repeal and Replace the City of Meridian  
  Standard Operating Policy and Procedure Manual to Establish a New  
  Standard Operating Policy Manual; and Providing an Effective Date  
 
Simison:  Next item is Item 13, which has been removed from the Consent Agenda, which 
is Resolution No. 21-23100.  Ask Mr. Nary to explain the changes to this item.   
 
Nary:  So, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, Crystal is here as well and she can talk 
about kind of the HR piece of this.  What is in your packet is the -- what is in your packet 
is the final version that would, then, go from this approval to our intranet for the employees 
to see.  So, Council Member Borton had asked -- you know, the red lines are no longer 
there, because, again, this is the final version that the employees would be seeing.  But 
you will note, again, all the red lines were done and Crystal could talk about that.  But I 
just pulled up one.  One of them is about the policy and having the language in there that 
Council approval is required.  If you want to go to your packets, 7.5 is the procedures 
regarding standards of conduct.  So, that section if you were to scroll down to that you 
will see as the header on that section of procedures that changes to those procedures 
require Council approval.  So, all of those ones -- and it was either 12 or 13, I don't 
remember the number, that -- 12 that all have that added to it based on our prior 
conversation.  We also changed or added that language that we had discussed in regards 
to the preamble that sort of calls out the same thing and, then, again, Crystal's office was 
in charge of taking all those red lines -- so, Crystal's office -- again, she is going to explain 
kind of that the red line process and how they handled that part from our last meeting.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Council, what's your pleasure?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 

Page 6

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 4 of 19 

Hoaglun:  I think -- I think we are all on the same page.  Those questions that Councilman 
Borton had were -- were fixed in that and Crystal if you want -- defer to the Mayor to give 
you permission for the podium, but -- 
 
Simison:  Go ahead, Crystal.   
 
Ritchie:  I'm just here in case there is any additional questions.  Like Bill stated, we walked 
away from our last meeting time together, incorporating the options you requested, which 
was to have the updated preamble, which has the language in there stating that any 
procedure that has a financial impact to that cannot be changed without coming forward 
for Council approval.  So, that has been in there in the preamble.  And, then, secondly, to 
that on the 12 policies that Council Member Borton brought forward we have the 
statement Bill just read to you at the top of each of the procedures for that.  Those 
procedures also may not be changed without prior Council approval.  So, what was 
submitted to you was the final version, no red line.  The red lines were provided back to 
you on November 9th for you to review and take a look at and answer -- ask us any 
questions that you have, so we are here to request your approval of the updated manual 
in the format you requested and move that forward for approval tonight.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun. 
 
Hoaglun:  I move that we approve Resolution No. 21-2300.   
 
Bernt:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve Resolution No. 21-2300.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it 
and the resolution is agreed to.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT.  
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Ritchie:  Thank you.   
 
DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 
 
 15.  Mayor's Youth Advisory Council Quarterly Program Update 
 
Simison:  Next we will move on to Department/Commission Reports.  Item 15 is the 
Mayor's Youth Advisory Council quarterly program update.  Ask Rahand to come forward 
and do some introductions.   

Page 7

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 5 of 19 

Rahbar:  Mr. Mayor, City Council Members, as always I'm delighted to be here to introduce 
two of the amazing student leaders that make the Mayor's Youth Advisory Council the 
incredible group that it is.  This year in particular.  After taking a pause for the winter break 
and holidays, MYAC has resumed its regular schedule of meetings in January.  So, over 
the past month and a half we have had two general council meetings and some exciting 
developments and plans for the immediate future.  I don't want to steal the thunder of the 
two presenters, so I will welcome Jimena and Audrey to come up and introduce 
themselves and tell you a little bit more about it.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Thompson:  Mr. Mayor, City Council Members, a personal introduction is in order.  My 
name is Audrey Thompson.  I am a senior of Renaissance.  Graduate 2022.  I am in the 
associate's program and today I am presenting with Jimena.   
 
Guzman:  Mr. Mayor, City Council Members, my name is Jimena Guzman.  I am a senior 
at Renaissance High School and I am the vice-chair for MYAC.   
 
Thompson:  Perfect.  Let's begin.  Do you know any good jokes?   
 
Guzman:  I can't say that I prepared any today.  Have you?   
 
Thompson:  Perfect.  So, just to reiterate, this is covering everything that we have done 
January through February, including just yesterday's meeting.  All right.  Regular 
business.  So, January 31st we had our guest speaker Bill Parsons.  Bill Parsons is part 
of the Planning and Zoning committee and he helped brief us and the general council on 
the general actions that happen in Planning and Zoning and how that functions and the 
importance of it in our community.  We plan to have him as a speaker, because specifically 
we want to incorporate some of his message into future meetings, which I will cover.  
February 7th we had an executive meeting where we covered and met with Peer.  Peer 
is a wellness center that offers free peer based recovery support services, specifically for 
mental health, which is an item that ourselves and MSAB, Mayor Senior -- Senior Advisory 
Board, wanted to cover in future meetings and dates.  What we hope to do is plan a 5K 
that will be all inclusive to the community.  It's specifically uniting MYAC with our 
community where we will call it The Road To Recovery and it will focus on mental health 
and road to recovery and wellness.  Next, just yesterday celebrated a very romantic 
Valentine's by having a MYAC meeting.  We had everything from snacks, cookies, to 
talking about how we can be more civically engaged in our community.  Specifically we 
wrote Valentine's Day cards for our seniors -- local seniors and senior centers and we 
also were briefing on future things that we can move on into the future.   
 
Guzman:  All right.  Community service update.  So, recently we collaborated for the 
Connection For The Cure suicide awareness concert.  Council Members Sophie Robbins, 
Jacob Masson, Grace and an external member, Sophie's sister, all handed out stickers 
and greeted thousands of guests as they entered this concert.   
 

Page 8

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 6 of 19 

Thompson:  Recruitment efforts.  So, in an effort to diversify our group and get a little bit 
less than Renaissance High School and a little bit more of everybody -- every other 
school, we are trying our best to recruit other students from all ages from -- in high school 
to come and join us.  We have been doing this by having and hosting incentives, such as 
if you bring a friend, an incentive, then, you will get your name into the raffle for a Dutch 
Bros card.  Seems to be popular amongst the kids.  We have already had a lot of people 
come and collaborate in that.  We are also still collaborating with principals of other 
schools all in Meridian, some in Boise as well, for their students to have on their 
announcements to come back and advertising that as well.  So, we are very active in that.  
Also, I personally spoke with Kiwanis and Council Member Luke Cavener and we also 
advertised the importance of student engagement, civic engagement and talked about -- 
a little bit more about how to inspire and get your kids passionate and that included -- one 
of the items was being involved in MYAC and being involved in local government.   
 
Guzman:  All right.  And now for future events that MYAC is planning for.  As for social 
events, we find that the social aspect of MYAC is something that has been missing in 
recent years.  So, we are putting forth an effort to try to increase that social engagement 
aspect.  We will be having a murder mystery party during one of our meetings.  It will be 
centered around problem solving, that sort of bonding event, and it will have an '80s 
theme.  And, then, after our meeting on February 28th the general council will be engaging 
in a financial -- financial simulation called Mad City Money.  Next as for leadership 
development, we are hosting an event planning themed MYAC meeting that -- on March 
-- March 14, our chair Sophie Robbins will be putting together an event planning guest 
speaker, as well as a nonprofit panel, again, led by our chair Sophie Robbins and is 
putting together a panel of nonprofit executives planned for the date of March 28th.   
 
Thompson:  I just want to reiterate that panel that Sophie Robbins, our chair, it is going to 
be centered on leadership.   
 
Guzman:  All right.  As for government affairs we are planning a Planning and Zoning 
activity.  Government affairs chair Audrey Thompson is putting together a Planning and 
Zoning activity for our general council members on February 28th.  It will be an interactive 
simulation of the dynamics between citizens, Planning and Zoning, and the ordinance in 
place for that.  In addition to that we will be having a youth lobby day.  The MYAC members 
will be able to send in and record videos for the American Heart Association's this year 
asynchronous and virtual youth lobby day.  These videos will specifically discuss the 
impact of vaping.   
 
Thompson:  Perfect.  And just a little sneak peek into the Planning and Zoning activity.  I 
have been working on this for the past couple of months in hopes to create and bring 
general council -- council closer to an activity and -- and engage in local government that 
is applicable to their lives.  I have noted that when general council and when we debriefed 
in our government meetings they were talking about the glamours of being a politician 
and talking about how fun it could be and how dramatic it could be and, of course, those 
are all relevant, but I wanted to talk more about what affects everyday life and what do 
our city council members actually do for us and one thing that Mr. Mayor Robert Simison 

Page 9

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 7 of 19 

mentioned was Planning and Zoning, talking about that, because, obviously, it's very 
relevant in our community with the growth that we are experiencing.  So, I created a 
simulation, interactive game that is strategic, creative and has a competitive factor in it.  I 
introduced it to our general council and they came up with a name for it.  The city that will 
be featured, which is Meridianidian, it's like Meridian, but with more idan is how they put 
it.  Going forward if you will note that I made a fake district map for Meridianidian and it is 
themed very closely to Meridian's actual district borders in hopes that it will create a very 
lifelike and at the same time entertaining game and activity for them as we go through.  
In the game there will be campaigning, propositions, city code and ordinance, districts, 
randomize factors.  It will be very fun.  There will be a place for everyone, whether you 
want to talk, whether you want to be a city council member, part of the planning and 
zoning or being a citizen.  There is a place for everyone in this game and this game will 
be featured on the 28th if anybody is interested.   
 
Guzman:  Audrey, would you say that this map has more idian in it, the Meridian one?   
 
Thompson:  Definitely more idian.   
 
Guzman:  Fantastic.  All right.  As for community service events coming up, we are 
planning on doing something for Do The Right Day, which is coming up on April 7th.  We 
are planning to develop an outreach plan with local businesses to see how we can 
contribute with this.  In the past MYAC has interacted a lot with Do The Right Day, so we 
are hoping to sort of revive that interactive aspect.  This next one is my personal favorite.  
We will be hosting a senior prom for the Meridian Senior Center.  This is specifically with 
leadership development in mind, as the executive council has put on general council 
members to be forming a committee, leading and planning the development of this prom, 
which will be taking place someplace in April or May.   
 
Thompson:  Perfect.  To conclude, what MYAC has done as a collective in January to 
February has focused very much on team building, collective work and including raising 
awareness for mental health, which will also be featured in future months.  As we go 
forward we want to reiterate that we are also focusing on leadership skills as well.  I would 
like to open it up to the Mayor and City Council Members if there are any other questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Audrey and Jimena.  Council, any questions or comments?   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Just a comment, Audrey and Jimena.  Wow, I'm just blown away by how -- this 
is a hive of activity, all these different things you are focusing on it's really great.  Thank 
you.   
 
Thompson:  Thank you.   
 

Page 10

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 8 of 19 

Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?  
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  If you can book a member of MYAC to speak at any public event do it.  Audrey 
mentioned she spoke to our Kiwanis club.  Thanks to Pam Orr for scheduling that at the 
start of January.  It's one of the best speakers we had all year and not just talking about 
MYAC, but it was really beneficial I think for that club to hear about what goes on in a high 
school student's life, particularly highly motivated students like MYAC members.  So, as 
you are out and about you are hearing people saying, hey, we would like someone to 
come speak to our group, book MYAC as we should have like a MYAC speaker series.  
Audrey did really great.  I will also put in a plug.  I will be volunteering at Mad City Money.  
If you have never volunteered at this event it's a great activity and it's a great way to 
interact with MYAC.  So, if you are free on Monday night stop by, it's well worth your time.  
I'm looking forward to it in two weeks.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?  
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  You guys are best of the best.   
 
Thompson:  Thank you.   
 
Bernt:  Really good at what you guys do and -- and, you know, it's just really interesting 
how even when you guys are involved with commissions and the -- the -- just what you 
project and your insight, it's -- you know, most of the time you guys do it better than the 
adults, so we appreciate everything you do.   
 
Thompson:  Thank you so much.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I have a question.  You know, we -- we face this thing when we do 
comprehensive plan map changes or anything like that, you know, you want Council -- 
citizen input and Council wants to hear from people and it can be hard to get -- to get 
people engaged and, you know, you are trying to do the same thing.  So, what do you 
think are some of the obstacles you have for kids participating in MYAC?  Is it just the 
amount of things that they have to do, other activities, just lack of interest or -- and how 
are you overcoming that you think that where you can be successful?   
 
Guzman:  Mr. Mayor, City Council Members, I think that one of the top issues that is facing 
MYAC members in terms of engagement and engaging in a lot of these social activities 
has to be that it can be very intimidating to be within the City Council chambers, especially 

Page 11

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 9 of 19 

-- well, even if it is every other Monday and especially when MYAC has been down for so 
long, trying to reinvigorate that social aspect and reinvigorate that focus on community 
service.  We have faced this obstacle of trying to get us to come together as a group and 
release the general council's energy on a lot of these community service activities that we 
are pushing.  I think that one of the things that we are trying to do to overcome that is to 
try to make MYAC more of a community through these social bonding activities and 
through community service efforts that are not only collaborative with different 
organizations or nonprofits in the area, but that also focus on having the general council 
take a role and so the engagement is -- was the main inspiration for having the general 
council lead that committee for the senior prom to try to get those leadership development 
skills that we have been working on put to work.   
 
Thompson:  I would just like to also add to that -- a little thing.  I play the violin as well  
and one thing that my teacher tells me is that when you are going to be practicing things 
are going to be fighting for that time.  Your family is going to be fighting for that time.  Your 
friends are going to be fighting for your time.  That homework that you have.  The test that 
you have to study for tomorrow is going to be fighting for that time.  So, lots of times while 
we are in MYAC as the executive board, a lot of those things -- we feel like salesmen 
sometimes, because we are incentivizing these types of programs and at the end of the 
decision to show up and there is the decision to be motivated, passionate about local 
government, but all we can do is tell them this is going to better your life and it's not just 
going to be a scholarship opportunity or resume, something you can put on your resume,  
it's going to be something that's going to better you as a person and help you build those 
soft skills that's going to help you in the future.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Just a follow up.  That's -- that's fantastic and -- and also I just want to 
encourage you to keep at it and, you know, you may set goals and look at things and, you 
know, when you graduate, walk out and go, boy, we didn't meet that goal or something, 
but you don't realize the seeds that you plant that can help for future success and you 
can look back and say, oh, I think we were part of that and we do the same thing on this 
Council.  There are things that we do now that, you know, down the road, years from now 
people won't  remember our name that we -- we did something that setup up for success 
in the future.  So, it's always -- you always want to plant seeds where ever you go.  You 
may not harvest it, but it's always great to plant those positive seeds.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  I just want to share, too, because I got notification about this this week.  So, in 
a former life I was fortunate enough to be a MYAC advisor and the students that I worked 
with that met in MYAC have now gotten married and have now had a child.  So, it is 

Page 12

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 10 of 19 

possible in our future that you could have a MYAC participant as a child of two MYAC 
graduates and I just think that's really cool.  Just kind of speaks to all the opportunities.  
You can even start a family -- maybe later in life -- as a result of attending the Mayor's 
Youth Advisory program.   
 
Simison:  For the record there is no fraternizing of that nature that is part of MYAC that 
I'm aware of.   
 
Thompson:  Like I said yesterday -- our meeting yesterday was very romantic.   
 
Hoaglun:  If Councilman Cavener knows the name of the baby -- by chance is the middle 
name MYAC?  So --  
 
Guzman:  Mr. Mayor, City Council Members, I would just like to put on the record that that 
was a missed opportunity and -- yeah.   
 
Simison:  Well, thank you both.  I don't want to burst your bubble, but if the game turns 
out to be successful, unfortunately, as it was developed under the city's program,  
technically I think it belongs the city and -- but maybe we can talk about that in another 
life.  But we look forward to that.  Thank you.   
 
Thompson:  Thank you.  We appreciate you.   
 
Guzman:  Thank you.   
 
 16.  Public Works: City Code Update - Maintenance Responsibility for  
  Sewer Services on Private Property 
 
Simison:  So, Kyle, let's talk about sewers.   
 
Radek:   Mr. Mayor, I would love to.   
 
Simison:  With that we will move on to Item 16 this evening, the Public Works city update 
from Mr. Radek.   
 
Radek:  Mr. Mayor, Council Members, normally this is a job for Clint Dolsby.  I guess I will 
be playing the part of Clint Dolsby tonight.  The purpose of this code update is to eliminate 
confusion about who is responsible for maintenance of a sewer service at what locations.  
The vast majority of sewer services in this city go from a home out the front -- under the 
front yard to the street to the water -- to the sewer main and the code is written to support 
that and says until that sewer line gets to the right of way line or the property line it's the 
responsibility of the property owner to maintain that and, then, once it gets past the right 
of way line it's the responsibility of the city to maintain that.  There are, however, a lot of 
sewer services that don't go from a building across private property to right of way.  
Commercial the sewer services a lot of times will never get to right of way.  They will go 
through a parking lot and get to a sewer main that's in an easement.  Another example 

Page 13

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 11 of 19 

that we are seeing a lot of now as private drives and that sewer service will leave the 
property when they go on to the private drive, which is not right of way, and, then, go to 
right of way.  So, this proposed code update clarifies that until the sewer service gets to 
a -- gets to either right of way or a public utility easement -- public sewer easement, then, 
it is the responsibility of the property owner to maintain it and once it gets to that easement 
the city is responsible to maintain it and that is the entire update and I would be happy to 
stand for any questions you have.  We are asking for some guidance tonight and if -- if 
everybody is okay with it move forward in a few weeks with putting it on the regular 
Council agenda for a hearing, if -- unless you have some other -- other guidance back 
and work some of the things out that you can think of.   
 
Simison:  So -- so just what I heard using the private drive as an example, the house 
would be responsible until it gets to that place and, then, someone else would be 
responsible, potentially, if they are not the owner, if it's an HOA, which means that -- who 
owns a private -- who would own a private drive that would be responsible for that section 
before it hit the street?   
 
Radek:  Yeah.  Mr. Mayor, good question.  Because I know it's not the city.  So, depending 
on how that -- that private drive was written and I guess dedicated as it is -- technically 
I'm sure it's HOA property.  It doesn't belong to those three homeowners that use it, but I 
would imagine -- and I'm just guessing, maybe looking for some help from Bill here -- that 
the property owner is going to be responsible for maintaining that service until it gets to 
city responsibility.  So, I don't --  
 
Nary:  There we go.  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, so, yeah, I would agree with 
Kyle, I mean, again, we are trying to create some clarity on where that service belongs 
and, again, between the owner of the service, the property that it crosses and, then, a 
public -- or a public right of way that we have acquired, that's what we are trying to clear 
up here in this particular instance.  So, I don't have, I guess, a -- to what Kyle said.  I 
mean it really is trying to make sure that the property owner understands, again, we are 
only responsible to this point.  We have the same issue with water, although that's -- water 
has been a little different, but where -- you know, again, we cover to the meter and, then, 
everything beyond the meter goes to the property owner.  So, I think this really is just a 
cleanup to me.  But, again, if you have other questions we certainly can answer those.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?  
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Basically, Kyle, what we are doing is ensuring that the city is not going to be 
responsible for anything on private ground.  Whether it's a single property owner or -- it's 
going to be covered by a homeowner's association or a private drive, maybe it is the three 
homeowners that are on a private drive, but it's clear that we won't be going in there, 
because that's not our property, that's not our public easement, it's their issue.   
 

Page 14

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 12 of 19 

Radek:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Hoaglun, that's correct.  We just want to make it clear 
that unless -- unless it's a city easement with city infrastructure in it, it's not our -- it's not 
ours to maintain and fix.   
 
Simison:  So maybe going to the next step, stay with the private drive.  When the HOA 
goes away maybe the private drive gets redistributed back to those three property 
owners.  My real question is if there is a third party in between where the city -- someone 
else in between, what is their obligation to do something?  Do we have the right to go 
force that middle person to do something for the benefit of the person at the end of the 
line?  Because it's one thing to tell the owner you got to fix it and we are not going to do 
it, but to tell somebody else that there is a problem in between that they got to go fix it for 
the benefit of another person.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, I would see this playing out in a situation like 
that where the middle property owner is going to say, look, I'm not -- I'm not paying for 
any of it.  I don't need it.  There is nothing that affects me with this.  All -- we don't have 
the right to access it.  That's our biggest problem is that we don't have an ability to just 
drive a truck into their driveway and dig up the driveway.  So, we are going to need some 
level of permission to do that.  I would anticipate -- I don't know if Kyle has had experience 
with these -- where, again, most of those other property owners, they get it that as long 
as they are not paying they don't care.  So, the other party is going to have to pay for that 
cost, because they are the ones that need the service restored.  But the middle one I don't 
know if we have had a lot of issues with that, Kyle, and that would be kind of like you 
guys.   
 
Radek:  Mr. Mayor, Council Members, it's an interesting question, because it goes beyond 
water and sewer, it goes to pavement as well and it's one of the things that certainly we 
are not -- we are not responsible for pavement, but that's going to be an eventual question 
for 40 years down the road, no pun intended, when the pavement is all cracked up.  It's 
not ACHD's pavement, that payment belongs to the HOA and it's the three or four homes 
that use that private drive that need it.  So, who is going to pay for that?  I don't know.  I      
-- I believe our position would be that -- that the only person benefiting from that service 
that goes from the home across the private drive to the city main is that homeowner and 
that homeowner will be responsible for that service.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?  
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.    
 
Strader:  Yeah.  So, you know, here so much of our city is new; right?  I had the pleasure 
of renovating a one hundred year old home in a suburb of New York where I had to replace 
the clay pipe that ran from our house to the street.  I guess my question would be -- I think 
it makes perfect sense to go from the homeowner to the public right of way.  I guess my 
question would be in the case of a private drive is there any city infrastructure underneath 
that drive that is not specific to one homeowner.  Like is there a trunk?  Is there anything 

Page 15

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 13 of 19 

that multiple homeowners share that you could argue is like a piece of city infrastructure 
or does each home have an individual line that goes to the public right of way.   
 
Radek:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Strader -- Council Woman Strader.  Sorry.  Sometimes 
we do have a water or sewer main in a private drive.  Only if it benefits the city is the 
exception to the rule.  But if we do we have an easement over that and so the vast majority 
of private drives do not have any public infrastructure that serves everyone.  That's why 
we have -- we stopped -- we generally stopped the water main and we stopped the sewer 
main at the entrance of the private drive and, then, it's just services beyond that.   
 
Strader:  Thank you.  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Maybe just to -- I think -- are you looking for feedback, Kyle?   
 
Radek:  Mr. Mayor, Council Woman Strader, yeah, just -- just any feedback, any guidance 
and then -- yeah.  We don't -- we don't need a vote or anything like that, so --  
 
Simison:  Clint is looking for feedback.  You are just a straw man in the middle.   
 
Radek:  That's right.  Nobody asked about water services.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  That makes sense to me.  I guess I'm just worried about kind of a set of 
circumstances that, yeah, have we thought through everything.  Like this carve out that      
-- I guess it would fall under a public easement, but, you know, we -- I think we want to 
minimize conflicts between neighbors, so I'm supportive in general of the idea, if we could 
just look into somebody tells them areas where there could be a conflict.  The private 
drive sounds like one.  You know, maybe looking at examples where we have seen 
conflicts in the past and people coming into the city later to -- where they have had their 
own services and we have had to go back and put them in, how that would play out under 
this new approach.   
 
Simison:  Yeah.  I'm kind of in place.  I mean I just -- the one that scares me is anything 
that denies responsibility.  I mean we have HOAs on Cherry Lane, which were there at 
one point in time and people responsible for the weeds, then, the HOA went away, now 
no one is responsible for the weeds, when technically someone is responsible for the 
weeds, but nobody wants to enforce who is responsible for the weeds to do that stuff and 
so when you start putting stuff into common share -- it's one thing to do a parking lot in a 
-- in a shopping center that's owned by -- private land that is owned by somebody, even 
if it is a corporation, but when you start getting into communal ownership of property that 
could go away and, then, what is the result of that going away, how does that impact 

Page 16

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 14 of 19 

something in the future -- when this is likely going to be the issue 30 years, 40 years.  Just 
make sure we have thought through that to the best of our ability if this addresses that.  
Otherwise, we are just kicking it to somebody else when these pop.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, I mean we certainly can have this conversation 
with Public Works and with Planning, because, you are right, I mean the narrow 
circumstances are pretty narrow, but they do exist, and so we want to make sure -- most 
platting will have utility easements listed on the plat, so the person does know there is a 
utility easement in that driveway for all utilities, just -- the cable and everything else 
probably running through that as well.  But we can certainly make it clear.  I mean, again, 
it may be a requirement that we decide from the city that if you have a private driveway 
you have to dedicate the entire driveway as an easement to the city for the utilities that 
are placed in it. 
 
Radek:  I guess, if I -- if I can just respond to that.  I'm sorry, I thought you were done, but 
your mic was off.  I guess this is just kind of a continuation of the private drive 
conversation, because we don't want to go into a private drive, we don't want to have 
anything to do with a private drive, because there is no guaranteed access in a private 
drive.  There is cars there.  Trucks there.  RVs there.  We don't want our Public Works 
infrastructure in a private drive.  That was -- that's kind of a major point about this.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor? 
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Then a question I think if -- for those rare instances something might crop up.  
Do we have a mechanism, Bill, where we can place it on the property, something needs 
to be done, there is a serious situation, we can go in, take care of the problem, but place 
a lien on the property -- there is going to be an owner of that property and -- and, then, 
when that time comes -- at some point in time they will see -- the Enterprise Fund will be 
reimbursed for that cost.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, we don't currently have that in place.  That's 
certainly something we could look at as an option in trying to create that -- these types of 
private drive issues.   
 
Radek:  I guess I will take this conversation and head back to Warren and Clint and Ted 
to -- to go over some of these, you know, cases and certainly the -- certainly the private 
drives are great examples of where the property owner is responsible for a much longer 
water and sewer service than -- than a house on a cul-de-sac or a street.  So, we will 
definitely discuss it internally.  I guess we will come back again for more discussion.   
 
Simison:  That would be -- that would be great.  Especially when we have our -- another 
attorney up here.  Thanks, Kyle.   
 
 

Page 17

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 15 of 19 

 17.  Legal Department: Draft Ordinance Concerning City Council   
  Districting 
 
Simison:  Okay.  So, Item 17, Legal Department draft ordinance concerning City Council 
districting.   Mr. Nary.   
 
Nary:  There we go.  So, I'm going to do this short, because Kurt's here as well and he 
can explain it.  What we done, Members of the Council, is that the ordinance that's in front 
of you has a few changes in prior discussions, as well as conversation with the Mayor 
and Council Member Hoaglun, about the direction this ordinance wants to go.  I'm going 
to let Kurt, since this is probably going to cut me off in about ten seconds, come up and 
explain the specific changes and kind of where we are with it now.  We are ready to move 
it forward when you are ready to bring it forward.   
 
Simison:  Kurt.   
 
Starman:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, Members of Council.  So, this is an item you have seen 
before -- actually on a couple of different occasions.  So, last time you saw this was in 
December of 2021 and we just made a broad presentation, asked for feedback and we 
received some feedback from the Council as a whole.  So, what you have before you 
tonight reflects the changes that we heard from various Council Members and from the 
body as a whole.  They basically fall into three categories and they are fairly minor, but I 
want to just point them out to you.  So, the changes that are in the draft ordinances before 
you this evening, as compared to the December 2021 version, are as follows:  First, the 
-- we have modified the language that talks about the appointments of members to the 
committee to make that clear that just like our other committees and commissions that 
the appointments are made by the Mayor, subject to approval by the City Council.  So, 
we have added language to make that more clear.  Secondly, we have added some 
additional language and requirement that the ex-officio members of this committee, 
essentially staff members, as well as a member from Ada county, would develop three 
draft maps in advance of the committee -- in advance of deliberations of the committee 
to sort of prime the pump.  So, the idea would be that from a staff perspective we provide 
three potential disrupting maps, so that when the committee does assemble and begins 
its deliberations it has a place to start, but we also have added language that makes it 
clear that the committee is not bound by those three scenarios.  They can choose one of 
those three or they can discard all three and do something completely different.  The idea 
simply was to give the committee a starting point.  And, then, lastly, in terms of changes 
to the ordinance from the last time you saw this is that we -- the initial version indicated 
that there would be a minimum of one public hearing after a draft districting map had been 
-- once the committee had gravitated toward a preferred draft.  We have changed that to 
say a minimum of two public hearings and the reality is the committee may have many 
more public hearings, but we wanted to have a floor and so that says it would be a 
minimum of two public hearings.  Those are the changes from last time and, then, I'm 
going to transition to a second topic, which is -- we didn't have it ready for this evening, 
but I just wanted to let you know -- the Council know that between today and next time 
you see this one we will make one additional change to the ordinance and that is there is 

Page 18

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 16 of 19 

a section -- it's just like in our current code, there is a section that pertains to vacancies 
on the City Council and it occurred to us sort of late in the game, quite frankly, so shame 
on us -- is that the way it's written currently is it contemplates the districts are in place and 
ready to go, but there is a possible -- because the ordinance will be adopted and the 
districts will follow some months later, there is a possibility is how I characterize it, that a 
vacancy could occur sooner before the districts actually exist and so we will likely modify 
that language just slightly to indicate here is what happens if -- if a vacancy occurs before 
the districts exist and here is how it works after that point in time.  So, we will just make 
that clear, so we can pick up both eventualities or the possibilities of those things.  So, 
that -- that's something that's not in the version that's before you today.  It will -- some -- 
some modification will be likely in the ordinance when you see it at our next discussion.  
Then the last thing, just to report to the Council, I wanted to make the Council aware that 
Ada county has notified the new precincts based upon the defenses and, of course, the 
litigation regarding statewide redistricting has now been fully resolved as well and so the 
pieces are in place for -- once this ordinance is adopted the pieces are in place to begin 
the districting process for Meridian, have the precinct kind of make the building blocks, so 
to speak, for the districting process.  So, that's what we have before you tonight.  Again, 
as before, no action for the Council this evening.  Really an opportunity to touch base with 
the City Council, receive additional input if that's -- if you have some additional thoughts 
for us and, then, our goal would be to have an ordinance before you for consideration for 
actual action soon, so that we can get going and the Mayor and others have talked about 
a timeline where we would like to have this ordinance in place soon, seat the members 
of the committee and have these districts in place this year, so that everybody has ample 
time to plan for the 2023 city general election.  With that I would be happy to stand for 
questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Kurt.  Council, questions? 
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.  
 
Cavener:  Kurt, you touched on some that -- as I was kind of reviewing things over the 
weekend kind of crept into my mind and I don't know if we -- if we do this on other 
resolutions, but I think timing is really critical, particularly as we are communicating this 
to the public.  So, if it's worth considering that we will have a -- you know, a map presented 
to the public by this particular month and, you know, to try and have this process 
completed by this particular month.  I'm just more offering that as -- as flavor for -- for 
consideration.  I think kind of roadmapping this out and trying to have some deadlines in 
place lets the committee know that we are serious about moving forward on this thing  
and that sort of thing.  So, that just would be the only addition that I would include is to 
maybe have certain benchmarks would be --   
 
Starman:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor, and Council Member Cavener.  I think that's an excellent 
suggestion.  We are in a better position today than we had been previously, because, of 
course, we have had a number of unknowns up until just -- just the last few weeks, quite 

Page 19

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 17 of 19 

frankly, in terms of when is the census information going to be available, when will the 
litigation relative to the statewide redistricting be complete, and, then, when would the 
county have the precincts in place and so now we have better answers to all those things.  
So, we are in a better place to map out a timeline and if that's the Council's judgment or 
preference, we certainly could do so.  My one thought I would offer is that, remember, this 
is -- this is an ordinance that's intended to develop initially, which would happen this year 
in 2022 in advance of the 2023 general city election, but also this is the ordinance that is 
going to be as part of the Meridian City Code on a going forward basis as well.  So, there 
may -- I may offer just a thought that to put a specific line -- timeline in this specifically to 
2022, the ordinance is going to be in place on a going forward basis, it would be -- it would 
become dated very quickly and we could amend the ordinance later to remove it, but 
perhaps a different idea is that maybe outside the ordinance process with the Council 
could establish a timeline for the work.   
 
Simison:  That's what I was going to suggest, since the code already dictates the time 
frame for us by which to have -- to have it done.  So, that's already determined.  You 
know, I have -- I have been on record with you all to say we have to spend a year in it -- 
of the opening of that, so we do have a tactical time frame of August, we could look at 
that, but if Council wants to do a resolution to memorialize that expectation, that's going 
to be my conversation with anybody that I'm looking to bring on this.  We are going to try 
to get this done and have something, you know, finalized by August.  So, that's my 
expectations.  If you feel necessary to put it in code or resolution, but I don't think the 
code -- I don't think code on this one is where it makes sense, but there could be other 
things if we want to formalize it, like when we appoint them -- in the resolution that we 
appoint them -- a date expectation.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?  
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I just wanted to say thanks a lot, Kurt and also to Bill Nary's whole team for their 
work on this and I appreciate that -- it seems like you have set up a really good citizen led 
input process that there is going to be plenty of public hearings, that it will be impartial 
and informed by experts to get the existing City Council out of the weeds where we don't 
want to be, so I appreciate that.  This is a really good resolution to me.  I think it is a ticket 
-- or ordinance I think it's in a good spot.   
 
Simison:  Council, any other questions?  Okay.  Then we will work to bring this back in 
the next few weeks looking at how things are set up.  So, thanks, Kurt.   
 
Starman:  Thank you.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION Per Idaho Code 74-206(d) (d) To consider records that are 
exempt from disclosure as provided in chapter 1, title 74, Idaho Code 
  
 

Page 20

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 18 of 19 

Simison:  So, with that, Council, we have reached Item 17 on the agenda -- or I'm sorry,  
we just completed Item 17.  Next item up is Executive Session.  Do we have a motion?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move we go into Executive Session per Idaho Code 74-206(d). 
 
Cavener:  Second. 
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to go into Executive Session.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, absent; Cavener, yea; Bernt, yea; Perreault, absent; Hoaglun, yea; 
Strader, yea. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and we will move into Executive Session. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  (5:19 p.m. to 6:02 p.m.) 
 
Simison:  Council, do I have a -- 
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor, I move that we come out of Executive Session.   
 
Simison:  Motion to come out of Executive Session.  Do I have a second?   
 
Cavener:  Second.   
 
Simison:  Motion and second to come out of Executive Session.  All in favor say aye.  
Opposed nay?  The ayes have it.  We are out of Executive Session.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun. 
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor, I move we adjourn.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion to adjourn.  All in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  
The ayes have it.  We are adjourned. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.   TWO ABSENT. 
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:02 P.M.   

Page 21

Item #1.



Meridian City Council Work Session 
February 15, 2022  
Page 19 of 19 

(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)   
 
_______________________________  ______/______/______           
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________   
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK   
 
 

Page 22

Item #1.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the February 15, 2022 City Council Regular Meeting

Page 23

Item #2.



Meridian City Council                 February 15, 2022. 
 
A Meeting of the Meridian City Council was called to order at  6:02 p.m., Tuesday,  
February 15, 2022, by Mayor Robert Simison.  
 
Members Present:  Robert Simison, Joe Borton, Luke Cavener, Treg Bernt, Jessica 
Perreault, Brad Hoaglun and Liz Strader. 
 
Members Absent:  Jessica Perreault. 
 
Also present:  Chris Johnson, Bill Nary, Alan Tiefenbach, Mike Barton, Jeff Brown, Joe 
Bongiorno and Dean Willis. 
 
ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE   
  
  __X__ Liz Strader     __X__ Joe Borton (6:07 p.m.) 
  __X__ Brad Hoaglun        __X__ Treg Bernt 
  _____ Jessica Perreault    __X__ Luke Cavener 
              __X__  Mayor Robert E. Simison 
 
Simison:  Council, we will call the meeting to order.  For the record it is February 15th, 
2022, at 6:02 p.m.  We will begin tonight's regular City Council meeting with roll call 
attendance.   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Simison:  Next item is the Pledge of Allegiance.  If you would all, please, rise and join us 
in the pledge.   
 
(Pledge of Allegiance recited.) 
 
COMMUNITY INVOCATION 
 
Simison:  Our next item is the community invocation.  Do we have -- David Rice here with 
us this evening?  If you would like to come forward.  The community invocation will be 
given by David Rice with the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-Day Saints.  If you will all, 
please, join us in the community invocation or take this as a moment of silence and 
reflection.   
 
Rice:  Our Father in Heaven, we are grateful to be gathered tonight, grateful for a City 
Council that recognizes thee in prayer.  We ask thy blessings upon them that their 
deliberations tonight may be thoughtful and acting in the best interest of the city and those 
parties involved.  We are grateful for the Council and ask thy blessings upon them and 
their associates and their families.  Grateful for staff and ask thy blessings upon them and 
their associates and families.  We are grateful for our first responders and ask thy 
blessings upon them and their associates and families.  And this we do in the name of 

Page 24

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 2 of 28 

Jesus Christ, amen.   
 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, now we are up to the adoption of the agenda.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move adoption of the agenda as published.   
 
Cavener:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to adopt the agenda is published.  Is there any 
discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it 
and the agenda is adopted.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FOUR AYES.  TWO ABSENT. 
 
PUBLIC FORUM – Future Meeting Topics 
 
Simison:  Mr. Clerk, do we have anybody under public forum?   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, we do.  Mike Luis.   
 
Simison:  Michael, you will -- you will be recognized for three minutes.   
 
Luis:  Thank you.  I came tonight for a couple reasons.  One is the Meridian City Library, 
the content that's available there, I think is inappropriate and anybody can go grab it at 
any age and you guys have a packet in front of you with some of the books.  I talked to 
the library today and they did confirm that they have them.  You do not need to be 18 to 
go grab these books and you guys could flip through that and you could read some of 
them and you tell me if you want your kids to go see that.  It's very inappropriate.  The 
City of Meridian has codes, which I have also brought and highlighted.  I talked to one of 
your planning people and they said the red tape is -- you might as well not even think 
about opening an adult store here, but the City of Meridian library has the books.  So, I 
think you guys need to look at that.  This is a big issue in the community.  The second is 
it was -- my daughter brought to my attention that there is boys being able to use the 
women's bathroom if they identify as being a woman.  That's not okay either.  And that 
was passed by this Council I believe back in 2019.  Could stand corrected.  I'm not sure, 
but I don't think that's appropriate either that men are available or vice-versa, grown 
women are going into little boys' bathrooms.  I don't think that's acceptable.  And, then, I 
would also like to give kudos to the Meridian PD for getting the grant for the Shoulder Tap, 
which is the underage -- making sure people aren't buying for them.  So, I give you guys 
kudos for that.  But I would like it brought to the attention of the Meridian library and if you 

Page 25

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 3 of 28 

guys are going to do anything about that.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Luis:  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Mr. Nary, would it be possible for you to speak to -- with Mr. Luis just so he 
understands the relationship between the city and the library district regarding that, as 
well as the -- the ordinance applicable to that, so -- and if we need to have a conversation 
we can set one up with staff in my office.   
 
Luis:  Thank you.   
 
DEPARTMENT / COMMISSION REPORTS [Action Item] 
 
 1.  Police Department: Fiscal Year 2022 Net-Zero Budget Amendment in  
  the Amount of $7,310.00 for Office of Drug Policy Grant 
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Okay.  So, with that, Council, we will move on to Item No. 1 this 
evening, which is the Department/Commission Reports.  The first item is with our Police 
Department, fiscal year 2022 net zero budget amendment in the amount of 7,310 dollars 
for the Office of Drug Policy grant and turn this over to Kendall.   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor? My apologies, Kendall.  I wanted to make known that Councilman 
Borton is here.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Thank you, Councilman Borton.  And for the record 6:07 p.m.  Kendall.   
 
Nagy:  Good evening, Mr. Mayor and Members of the Council.  I am here for the net zero 
budget amendment, as the Mayor just stated.  That is to conduct two alcohol compliance 
checks and Shoulder Tap operations that we do and, then, there were some incidentals 
there for participation in the statewide Sticker Shock campaign as well and I would be 
happy to answer any questions.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Thank you.  Council, any questions?  If not, do I have a motion?   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  I move that we approve the Police Department's fiscal year 2022 net zero budget 
amendment in the amount of 7,310 dollars for Office of Drug Policy that has been 
presented to us by Kendall.   
 
Cavener:  Second the motion.   
 

Page 26

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 4 of 28 

Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve the budget amendment in the amount 
of 7,310 dollars.  Is there any discussion?  If not, Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, yea; Bernt, yea; Perreault, absent; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
yea. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and the item is agreed to. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
 2.  Public Hearing for Lakeview Golf Course 2022 Proposed Fee Schedule 
 
Simison:  Thank you, Kendall.  Up next is our Action Items.  Our first item is a public 
hearing for Lakeview Golf Course 2022 proposed fee schedule.  We will open this public 
hearing with comments from Mr. Barton.   
 
Barton:  Good afternoon, Mayor and Council Members.  We are here to talk about some 
new fees for the Lakeview Golf Course.  On January 4th Director Siddoway was here and 
had a conversation with Council regarding some new fees for the golf course.  At that time 
he presented two different options.  The first option was an across the board six percent 
increase to daily green fees and also season pass offering.  The second option was a six 
percent increase to green fees and, then, kind of a restructuring of the pass offerings to 
offer, you know, different times -- some people don't -- don't need an unlimited pass, they 
golf Monday through Friday and the weekends in the afternoon.  So, at that time Council 
said that the preference that -- the general preference -- preference was that we bring 
back option number two, which was a six percent increase to the daily green fees and, 
then, also the variety of different offerings.  I would like to bring to the Council's attention 
that we have noticed these fees and had a conversation with the golf course focus group 
and, then, also the men's and women's golf associations at the golf course, just to collect 
any additional feedback.  Also when we noticed the fees that it was brought to our 
attention that there is a typo in that, in that the new pass offerings -- there is a restricted 
pass and so all of the restricted pass offerings were noticed as limited Monday through 
Friday after 12:00 and weekends and holidays after 12:00 and what it should have said 
was unlimited Monday through Friday anytime and, then, weekends and holidays after 
12:00.  So, any motion that you have should -- should correct that typo.  We checked with 
the Legal Department to see if we needed to re-notice them and it was Bill and his team's 
opinion that the noticing that we did was -- was fine and that Council can approve them.  
As long as -- I think as long as the motion includes that correction on the record.  So, I 
will stand for any questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions for Mr. Barton?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 

Page 27

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 5 of 28 

Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mike, would you restate that again, that the restrict -- so, the restricted -- so we 
look at couple restricted, military, senior restricted, senior couple restricted and those are 
the ones that have the notation on there for that's incorrect?   
 
Barton:  Correct.   
 
Hoaglun:  So, it should read instead -- if you go through that Monday through Friday -- 
so, if you can repeat those again.   
 
Barton:  Yeah.  So, any restricted product -- the couple restricted, senior, military restricted 
and the senior couple restricted, if you buy one of those passes you can golf anytime 
Monday through Friday.  You are restricted to weekends after 12:00.  So, Saturday, 
Sunday.  And holidays after 12:00.  Yeah.  Yep.  During the week anytime.   
 
Simison:  Council, any other questions?  Okay.  Thank you, Mike.  This is a public hearing.  
Mr. Clerk, do we have anybody signed up to provide testimony on this item?   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, we did not.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Is there anybody in the audience who would like to come forward and 
provide testimony on this item or anybody online that would like to provide testimony?  
And if you are online you can use the raise your hand feature.  Seeing nobody in the 
audience and nobody online, do I have a motion to close a public hearing?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move we close the public hearing for Lakeview Golf Course 2022 proposed 
fee schedule.   
 
Bernt:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to close the public hearing.  All in favor signify by 
saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The ayes have it and the public hearing is closed.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
Simison:  Mr. Nary, are you looking for a motion this evening to direct the resolution to be 
brought back or --  
 
Nary:  Yes, sir.  Yes.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   

Page 28

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 6 of 28 

Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move approval of the adoption of the new fees of the Meridian Parks and 
Recreation Department, with the fees to reflect for the restricted sections for couples, 
senior and military and senior couple, that the restrictions apply to Monday through Friday, 
the golf is at anytime and for weekends and holidays it is restricted to after 12:00 noon.   
 
Bernt:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second.  Is there discussion?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener. 
 
Cavener:  Mike, Steve, team, appreciate your guys' work on this.  Mike, we talked about 
it last time I really struggled with creating these special classes right now as we are still 
kind of getting our grips with the -- with the course.  So, I'm not supportive of the motion, 
but I appreciate the work that you are doing to try and invite a new customer base and 
look forward to seeing what we learn from this.   
 
Simison:  Is there further discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed 
nay?   
 
Cavener:  No.   
 
Simison:  One nay, the rest ayes, and the motion carries and we will see that back -- Mr. 
Nary?  Next week?  Okay.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
 3.  Public Hearing for Friendship Subdivision (H-2021-0083) by Mike  
  Homan, Located Near the Southeast Corner of N. Meridian Rd. and E. 
  Chinden Blvd. 
 
  A.  Request: Annexation and Zoning of 10.058 acres of land from RUT  
   in Ada County to the R-8 zoning district. 
 
  B.  Request: Preliminary Plat consisting of 41 building lots and 7  
   common lots 
 
Simison:  So, with that we will move on to Item 3 this evening, which is a public hearing 
for Friendship Subdivision, H-2021-0083.  We will open this public hearing with staff 
comments from Alan.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Good evening, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council.  This is Alan Tiefenbach, 

Page 29

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 7 of 28 

associate planner with the City of Meridian.  This is an application for an annexation and 
zoning to R-8 and a preliminary plat for 40 lots.  Forty-one were originally -- well, actually, 
42 were originally proposed, then, it went down to 41.  So, now we are at 40. I will talk 
quickly about that.  Okay.  So, the site is located south of Chinden and west of Locust 
Grove.   
 
Simison:  Alan, do you have a visual that you were --  
 
Tiefenbach:  Oh, I'm sorry.  I wasn't sharing.  My bad.  I guess it's helpful if you are looking 
at what I'm looking at.  Okay.  The site is located south of Chinden, west of Locust Grove.  
Brookdale Estates Subdivision is to the west, which is over here.  The Hightower 
Subdivision is to the east over here.  Saguaro Canyon Subdivision is to the south and 
there is an existing church, which you can see in this aerial here.  That's still zoned RUT 
in the county.  Just a quick history on this property.  So, this property was proposed for 
annexation of zoning to R-8 and plat for 48 lots is what was known as the Bull Ranch 
Subdivision and that was in 2015. This was subsequently denied by the Council with 
density being a primary concern and that R-4 zoning was more appropriate here than R-
8.  Comprehensive Plan recommends this for medium density residential, three to eight 
dwelling units per acre.  So, this is an annexation, again, of ten acres of land with the R-
8 zoning district and a preliminary plat to allow 40 building lots and seven common lots.  
North Elk Ranch Lane, which is what you see here -- this is a private road and this 
presently provides access from the subject property to Chinden, which is what you see 
up here.  The subdivision proposes to connect to three existing local streets.  So, it would 
be one, two, three different stubs.  There is also another stub being provided eventually 
if the church property redevelops.  Our code states that when a property has existing 
access from a state highway, again here, that if the applicant proposes a change or an 
increase in intensity of use, that they have to develop or otherwise acquire access to a 
street other than the highway and that this would be closed.  So, the use of this -- staff is 
recommending as a condition of approval that the applicant vacate all their interests in 
North Elk Ranch Lane as, again, because the property already has three points of access 
and that's what the code requires.  The plat shows the North Slough, which is what you       
-- find my pointer.  The North Slough bisecting the property at roughly a 45 degree angle 
north to south and this is being relocated and piped in accordance with the code.  
According to an exhibit provided by the applicant, the ditch is being reconfigured towards 
the northwest part of the property.  Obviously, this would need to be coordinated with the 
irrigation district.  The applicant has submitted elevations of the single-family homes for 
this project.  These homes appear to meet the design requirements for single-family 
homes and are consistent with the architecture of the surrounding neighborhood.  Staff 
did express several concerns with this proposal.  One of them was that we thought it was 
too dense on the south and they needed to take a couple of lots out on the south to make 
it fit better and transition better with the adjacent properties.  What you are seeing here is 
actually an older version.  So, the other comment that we had is that we thought they 
should line up the lot lines that are on the lots to the east.  Since our earliest discussion 
the applicant has lost a lot -- the applicant has actually lost two lots and I'm going to talk 
about that here in a second.  As of today as far as written testimony goes, we have only 
gotten one letter of opposition, but there were citizens that showed up to the Planning 

Page 30

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 8 of 28 

Commission meeting.  Now, the -- the plat does meet all the requirements of the UDC 
and it's consistent with the density designation.  With that staff did recommend approval.  
When the Planning Commission happened at the Planning Commission this was on 
January of 2022 and the -- the Commission moved to deny the subject annexation and 
rezoning request.  This was based on -- first of all, they preferred that it would be annexed 
as R-4, not R-8.  They -- they had concerns about it barely meeting the minimums.  Under 
the current code this -- this property would need to require 15 open space, but it got -- it 
slipped in right before the code was actually -- the -- the updates of the code was 
approved.  So, if there is an application that's made prior to the newest version of the 
code we have to review it under the old version of the code.  So, they -- they don't meet 
the 15 that would be required today, but they exceed the ten that was required at the time 
that the application was received.  Planning Commission had concerns with -- with 
whether or not that was -- I think the word they used was premier.  They also had concerns 
with whether or not there was good open space and -- and whether or not, again, they 
thought that the density wasn't quite there.  Since this time of the Planning Commission     
-- what you see on the left was the landscape plan that was provided at the Planning 
Commission.  It's pretty basic.  What you see on the right is the landscape plan that I 
received about a week ago.  For the difference -- first of all, since Planning Commission 
they have lost a lot.  You will see that they have included a pathway sort of around the 
perimeter of the property that wasn't there before.  They have increased the central open 
space.  They have actually moved it -- the -- the open space -- all of their usable open 
space on the original version on the left was here.  Since that time they have increased it 
more and put some amenities in there, which I'm sure they are going to talk about.  This  
has decreased the open space that was originally shown on the first exhibit, which was 
about 14.6 percent.  Their most recent exhibit shows 14 percent.  But, again, the open 
space is more usable that they have now.  With that, again, staff recommended approval 
because they met the code.  The Planning Commission was not supportive of this and 
recommended denial.  With that I will stand for any questions or comments from Council.   
 
Simison:  Thank you, Alan.  Council, questions for staff?   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Thank you.  I do have a couple questions.  Thank you.  This practice of applying 
the current code at the time that an application is put in, is that just because of our current 
practice, how we handle things?  Is that by code?  Help me understand that.   
 
Tiefenbach:  I can see Mr. Nary's hackle starting to pop up.  Just -- it's -- it's been land 
use law that's been established for many many years in the United States, not just here.  
But I will let Bill sort of speak to that.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, no, he's correct.  I mean that is -- that is the 
state of the law both here and everywhere else, that the application takes the code that 
exists at the time they file the application.  So, that's the basis for it.   

Page 31

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 9 of 28 

Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Perfect.  Thanks for that answer.  And, then, my other question is how would this 
look different if it was an R-4, either in terms of the dimensional standards or the density.  
Could you walk me through -- maybe just to compare and contrast what this -- how this 
would be different if it was an R-4.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Well, R-8, Council Person and Mr. Mayor, the R-8 requires 8,000 square foot 
lots, if I'm correct.  Going off the top of my head here.  Somewhat bigger dimensional 
requirements.  It was -- it sort of comes down to the same conversation that happened 
when we talked about Apex last month.  You -- you know, if they went with R-4 would they 
really get less lots?  Well, these lots are smaller than 8,000 square feet.  Most of these 
lots just barely meet the minimums.  So, yeah, it would probably be lower density under 
R-4.   
 
Strader:  Thanks.   
 
Tiefenbach:  I will double check -- I'm going to double check on those dimensional 
standards, because I'm not Bill and I don't have it memorized.  So, if I'm wrong I will -- I 
will let you know.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions for staff?  Okay.  So, would the applicant like 
to come forward.  State your name and address for the record, be recognized for 15 
minutes.   
 
Canning:  Yes.  Mayor and Members of the Council, my name is Joe Canning and I'm 
employed by Centurion Engineers, formerly B&A Engineers, and the address is 2323 
South Vista, Suite 206, in Boise, Idaho.  83705.  And I am here tonight -- I think I'm going 
to do the main presentation.  I am here with the applicant Mike Homan.  Mike may want 
to come up and also say a few words after I am done.  So -- and, then, also I submitted     
-- I did just three slides.  I submitted before.  We don't need those right away, I just want 
to make sure they are ready.  I'm not sure how that gets loaded up and going.  So, when 
I'm ready we can go ahead and put those up and they are pretty simple slides.  Of course, 
we are here tonight seeking approval of this modified preliminary plat and modifications 
have been made per the comments that were made by the Planning Commission here a 
few weeks ago and Alan already discussed those, but just to reiterate, three main things 
we got was there was a suggestion that we should do an R-8 zone, instead of an R-4 
zone.  It was the quality of the amenities for the open space was an issue and the amount 
and location of the open space and I got the impression it really wasn't necessarily the 
amount, because we -- this -- this plat was submitted to the city I believe back in 
September.  It's been around quite a while and that was before the new open space 
ordinance came in.  So, I think there is a little bit of confusion there on which -- which 
ordinance applies.  But I think we have really upped the game, so to speak, in the open 
space location and the quality of the amenities.  So, annexation and zoning.  So, why R-

Page 32

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 10 of 28 

8.  The comp plan designation for this property is medium density residential, which is 
three to eight units per acre.  The project is 40 home sites.  Now, that's four units per acre.  
So, we are -- we are pretty much at the low end of that designation for the comp plan.  
And when I come up with the slides I'm going to talk a little bit about the existing house 
that really does impact some of that lot area requirements.  So, it's -- it's possible in 
existing development.  I'm -- this -- this is really kind of sandwiched in here.  It's kind of 
an island.  It's surrounded by Meridian currently on three sides.  There is a variety of 
zoning in the area and I will talk about that in just a minute, but I also want to reiterate 
that there is a development agreement proposed for this project.  So, even if the zoning 
was approved at R-8, there is a development agreement proposed that would limit it to 
the -- to the submittal for the preliminary plat that you are seeing tonight.  So, if I could, I 
would like that first slide -- there it is right there.  I see it.  So, I just wanted to show this 
as some of the reason why we really think the R-8 is appropriate, particularly with the 
development agreement.  Number one, to the north is the church.  The Friendship 
Celebration Lutheran Church.  Although that's in the county, it has a Meridian city comp 
plan designation of MUC.  So, that could be probable commercial or high density 
residential.  So, what we typically try to do is buffer those more intense areas that could 
happen with -- with a project of a little less intensity.  So, whether R-8 is much less intensity 
or not I'm not too sure, but we feel that zoning is appropriate.  Off to the east is the 
Hightower Subdivision.  That's already zoned R-8.  To the south is R-4 property, which is 
Saguaro Canyon Subdivision and, then, of course, to the west is Birkdale Subdivision, 
which is R-2.  It's quite low density.  But I think that part of the key here is how we are 
adjusting some of these lots to try to match that variety in zoning.  So, if we could get the 
second slide, please.  Thank you.  So, this -- this was the prior preliminary plat, the one 
that the Planning and Zoning Commission first looked at and I just wanted to point out a 
few things on here.  There is the existing home that's over on that west boundary.  That 
home is very well landscaped, quite mature landscaping around it.  It takes up quite a bit 
of property.  So, that's part of the density issue we have is that parcel is big, it's existing, 
it's a very nice house.  We are not really going to do too much to change that.  Alan 
already mentioned the three existing stub streets that come into this property from the 
east, south, and the west.  That's a real plus for the transportation network I think in the 
area.  The Settlers Irrigation Facility North Slough does bisect this property.  That was 
one of the challenges to the design was how to coordinate that piping and relocation and 
originally the open space was located more toward the west side.  It was over by that 
existing house.  Part of that reason was because of that relocation of the North Slough.  
It made that a little bit easier to do.  However, there were objections to that.  They wanted 
-- the Planning Commission really wanted that open space to be more centrally located.  
So, that was one of the changes we have made.  And the original open space -- the -- the 
lock count popped up and down on this a little bit as it went through the process.  I think 
the original that was actually submitted was about 13 percent open space.  So, if we could 
go to the third slide.  This is the landscape plan for the current proposal that's before you 
tonight.  The big -- one of the big differences here is -- we think we listened pretty good 
and that canal relocation was still an issue.  If we eliminated that open space over toward 
the west we had to figure out a new route for that canal relocation.  So, the applicant did 
talk to Settlers and as long as that open space along that east side and north side is at 
least 30 feet wide, we are able to relocate that and it's a big pipe, it's a 36 inch pipe, in 

Page 33

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 11 of 28 

that open -- in that open space.  Plus we can use it as a -- I think a pretty quality amenity 
for the project.  So, now we have I think a good -- a good proposal for that open space 
and the canal to be rerouted along that east -- north side and it really provides some open 
space in fairly close proximity to -- to everyone that would be in the subdivision.  This 
current layout has open space approximately 14 percent.  So, it's approximately the same 
as before, but a little bit more and, once again, I just wanted to remind everybody that this 
did come in under the original -- or the old ordinance.  As far as amenities, that was one 
of the concerns -- quality amenities from the Planning and Zoning Commission.  The 
larger area down there toward the south contains play equipment, a Bocce court, 
benches, a shade structure.  There is walking paths throughout the project now and, of 
course, there is always pet and waste stations that are proposed, so you can walk your 
dog and have them taken care of.  I think in general we can just lay out some of the project 
assets.  Number one, a big item is we will be piping the Settlers Irrigation facility that runs 
through this project.  This is an easy to serve property with existing access and 
infrastructure.  City water and sewer is there.  The stub streets are there.  It's pretty easy 
to -- to serve.  The stub street to the north going up to -- the private road to the north going 
to Chinden would be eliminated.  So, I think that's a -- that's an asset for the project.  I 
want to talk a little bit about adjusting the lot sizes.  Off to the east is the R-8 property.  
So, we have kind of feathered these lot sizes.  As you start on the east side you will find 
them more or less matching what's over on the -- the R-8 property to the east and, then, 
as you go south and west the lots get larger and in particular on the R-2 side, on the 
extreme west property, we have approximately the same number -- I think it is the same 
number of lots that abuts that property over there and a big part of that is that existing 
home.  So, we have kind of feathered this -- these lot sizes to match those perimeter 
homes.  To the south it's almost an R-4 layout.  You will see the lot count there is quite 
similar to what's -- what's further to the south of it.  Once again, I just want to mention that 
even though we are seeking an R-8 zone, a development agreement will cap this at four 
units per acre.  So, we are really kind of the low end and almost at the R-4 density anyway.  
And as I mentioned, this is really surrounded by existing neighborhoods in Meridian.  We 
think -- it's time to be annexed and brought in.  It will provide much needed housing.  I 
can't -- no one can say enough about the housing necessary for the area.  We believe we 
have provided a much improved project over what was before the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and we certainly hope that Council agrees and we would hope they support 
the annexation, zoning and preliminary plat.  Thank you.  And, then, Mike, did you want 
to add anything?  I will stand for questions.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions?   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt.   
 
Bernt:  One question for the applicant.  Back in 2015, sir, you -- this body denied a project 
at the same density of R -- I guess I shouldn't say -- the same zoning of R-8.  Is there a 
reason why you brought R-8 back -- a project that was R-8 instead of at a lower density 
than what was recommended by a previous Council?   

Page 34

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 12 of 28 

Canning:  Well, there is not a specific reason why, other than when we looked at the lot 
sizes in the R-4 zone it would have really reduced the density.  There was a question 
earlier on what -- it would have an impact.  It would reduce the number of lots in this by 
about 30 or 40 percent and we are not sure the R-8 really fits with the area.  I mean it's 
already R-8 to the east.  It's R-4 to the south.  R-2.  We tried to accommodate that 
difference by, number one, there are less lots than in 2015.  We tried to feather these lots 
to match those other perimeter areas.  I'm not sure that's a great answer, but that's -- 
that's why we did it.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.  
 
Cavener:  Mr. Canning, I appreciate you bringing this kind of unique in-fill project.  I 
remember the previous iterations before us back in -- in 2015 and while a lot's changed, 
a lot has also stayed the same and what's kind of caught my eye about your layout -- I 
really appreciate the pathway and the open space and I see this really cool play structure, 
which tells me, again, you are being thoughtful, you know young families will likely be a 
lot of the residents in this neighborhood.  Over the past few weeks and months Council 
have really deliberated on projects, particularly those that bring students into a school 
that is over capacity and in looking at the letter from West Ada it looks like -- I think this 
would fit into a Rocky Mountain and Sawtooth Middle School and both of those are over 
capacity.  So, help me kind of understand as a Council Member who have a lot of our 
residents who have really been pretty vocal about their concerns about the impact on the 
schools, how this project is a win for our community when it would put students at an over 
-- over capacity school.   
 
Canning:  Well, I can't speak too much to the overcapacity of the school, but I will tell you 
why I think it might be a win for the community.  I personally love in-fill projects.  I think 
they are the way to go and I would much rather see a project like this here than 
somewhere else farther out.  I think that's the main thing.  There is not much we can do 
about the schools.  Perhaps we could go senior citizens.  I don't know.  But that wouldn't 
be what happens.   
 
Simison:  So, Joe, maybe I -- I missed this.  What's with the little micropath at the end of 
the cul-de-sac to the property line?   
 
Canning:  I should have mentioned that.  There is an existing micropath that goes off to 
the subdivision to the west that comes up to this property line, so we would continue that.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  So, it has functionality?   
 
Canning:  Yes.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 

Page 35

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 13 of 28 

Canning:  Yeah.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions for the applicant?  All right.  Thank you.   
 
Canning:  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Mr. Clerk, I assume some of these fine people are here to talk about this item 
this evening.   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, several fine people have signed in.  The first is David Marsey.   
 
Simison:  When your name is called if you would like to come forward and state your 
name and address for the record and be recognized for three minutes.   
 
Marsey:  I'm David Marsey.  I live at 768 East Pasacana Street, which backs up to the 
property.  So, good evening, Mr. Mayor and Council.  First of all, when we bought our 
house that backs up to the property five years ago we were absolutely told there was 
going to be development there and we said good.  What -- what kind of development?  
Are we going to see a Walmart?  What are we going to see back there?  And they said, 
no, we expect to see no Walmart, we expect to see homes that are very similar to your 
homes and it would be classified as R-4 and I said, oh, fantastic.  So, if it matches what 
is in our subdivision we were absolutely good with that.  So, we were told they were going 
to be like homes, but now it appears the developer wants to make it R-8, so that we can 
jam more homes into that ten acre parcel.  I'm a businessman as well.  I understand the 
financial part and the reasons why someone would want to get more properties in there.  
I just ran some basic math looking at what our subdivision homes sell for and the -- the 
numbers are -- they are raw numbers, but they are real.  R-8 it's worth about 26 million 
dollars and as R-4 it's worth about 16 million dollars.  So, taking what the homes that are 
selling for in our subdivision, you know, I see the developer clearing about 16 million, 
minus all the expenses.  So, that -- that was one thing where I said, okay, I get it.  That's 
why I would want R-4 as the developer as well, because I stand to make more money.  
I'm very pro-growth.  As matter of fact, I love the fact -- we have been in Meridian since 
1993 and we have seen a lot of very good smart growth happen in the area, which makes 
me extremely happy, not only as a homeowner, but as a business owner as well.  So, I 
like to see it.  Planning and Zoning agreed that R-4 was the way to go.  I believe that they 
denied it.  Well, I believe -- they did deny it last month and I was in full support of it.  So, 
I would hope, Mr. Mayor, that you would consider pushing it to an R-4 to match what is 
predominantly around in the other subdivisions.  I do like what they have done.  I think if 
they would have presented this to Planning and Zoning they probably would have got a 
check mark it looks great.  But they didn't.  So, it was denied by Planning and Zoning.  
So, I hope you would support holding to an R-4.  So, thank you very much.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, any questions?   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?  I appreciate your testimony.  I didn't catch your name.  I'm sorry.   
 

Page 36

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 14 of 28 

Marsey:  David Marsey.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Marsey, thank you for your testimony and I guess something that would be 
helpful for me -- recognize that what's proposed with this is a development agreement 
that would essentially lock these units -- this amount of units in on this particular project.  
From your perspective what would you see differently in an R-4 that you are not seeing 
before you today?  Help me understand -- I -- I understand an R-4 versus an R-8 and it's, 
oh, we don't get a lot of people that come and say bring on more density, so I can 
appreciate that argument.  But help me -- as it pertains this project what would you like to 
see differently?   
 
Marsey:  Yeah.  I mean I personally I think looking at going R-4 versus R-8, one -- I don't 
know if anybody travels Chinden or anybody travels any of the subdivisions near Chinden, 
the traffic is exponentially growing already.  I regularly have to get on Chinden to take -- 
towards I-84 towards Caldwell.  If I try at 8:00 o'clock I'm guaranteed it's ten minutes, 15 
minutes to try to make a left turn.  So, I -- I'm just looking at it from the sheer fact that we 
are going to just be placing more traffic and more burden into a pretty tight area already.  
I love the fact that you talked about the schools.  I have grandkids -- we have four 
grandkids that live on Pasacana as well.  Same thing, that the schools are overcrowded.  
So, I really liked -- even thinking about that, that is some -- something that hadn't crossed 
my mind.  But that would be my take is the fact that we are just jamming more traffic into 
a tight box already.   
 
Simison:  All right.  Thank you very much.   
 
Marsey:  Thank you.   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, next is Darrell Gallup.   
 
Gallup:  Good evening, Honorable Mayor and City Council Members.  My name is Darrell 
Gallup.  I reside at 554 East Pasacana Street in Meridian.  83646.  As you have already 
heard, about six years ago this -- essentially the same subdivision was proposed to 
Council and turned down and Mayor de Weerd and Councilman Bird were especially 
against the project due to the high density of housing requested.  I oppose the zoning of 
R-8 for this project.  R-4 zoning is more appropriate for the subdivision, so as to be 
compatible with the R-2 zoning to the west of the project and R-4 zoning to the south of 
the project.  R-8 zoning of this subdivision is too dense.  It would create significant traffic 
on roads going in and out of the subdivision and would also potentially place a burden on 
neighborhood schools, which are already overcrowded.  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, next is Greg Barron.   
 
Barron:  My name is Greg Barron and I live at 5997 North Senita Hills Avenue.  When I 
purchased my home directly adjacent to the empty land and proposal, I was aware that 

Page 37

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 15 of 28 

one day it would likely be built upon.  I am not against growth.  However, I do have 
significant concerns regarding the current zoning request of the R-8 for this project and 
my concerns are these:  First and foremost is a significant influx of traffic that these 40 
new homes would bring to the surrounding neighborhoods.  That is likely to be at least 80 
additional drivers making trips in and out of the Friendship Subdivision.  Being that two of 
the three access points, Lockhart Way and Senita Hills Avenue would require a driver to 
make a lengthy trek through the adjacent subdivision to gain access to a main roadway, 
it is fair to assume that the Tallinn Street would be the primary point of entry-exit for the 
Friendship Subdivision.  This street -- or this is the street most accessible from Chinden, 
which is the closest artery feeding into the area.  Tallinn Street would become far too busy 
as a thoroughfare for these 40 new homes, significantly disrupting the quiet community 
made up primarily of retired people.  The surrounding -- number two.  The surrounding 
subdivisions, both to the south and to the west, are zoned as R-4 and R-2 respectfully.  
To insert a subdivision zoned as R-8 amongst these much larger lots would have a 
undesirable effect on the property values and aligning with the aesthetics of the 
surrounding communities.  This higher density housing would mean that I would 
personally gain two new neighbors along my north property line.  My neighbor to the west 
would gain three new neighbors along his north property line.  This could all be rectified 
if zoning were mandated as R-4 to align with existing lot sizes in the current subdivision.  
I respectfully urge you to deny the zoning request for R-8 and, instead, require either R-
2 or R-4 as the standard for this project.  It should be noted that the zoning for R-8 was 
denied back in 2015 and, again, recommended for denial by Planning and Zoning just 
last month and the schooling issue was on my mind, too.  Thanks for your time.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun. 
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Barron?  Mr. Barron, question.  I just want to make sure I was following you 
there.  On -- on Tallinn, that's the stub street that -- stub street that is stubbed currently to 
the west that comes in from the east, from the R-8 that is that way and, then, I am 
assuming to go to Chinden -- I -- I didn't catch the street you were mentioning, because I 
see looking on Google Earth North Saguaro Hills Avenue can lead out to Chinden.  Is that 
the street you are referencing or where would people -- where were people going?   
 
Barron:  Tallinn Street --  
 
Hoaglun:  We don't have it here.  I see where Tallinn Street is.   
 
Barron:  Right.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  And it heads east and, then, they can take a left on North Saguaro Hills 
Avenue -- 
 
Barron:  And then left.   
 

Page 38

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 16 of 28 

Hoaglun:  And then left.  Okay.  But there is not a light yet there at that intersection, 
although that is the half -- it looks like it's the halfway point -- 
 
Barron:  Yeah.   
 
Hoaglun:  -- ACHD typically -- and ITD go at that half mile for when they eventually do a 
light.  So, that -- that would be the --  
 
Barron:  It looks like halfway in between Locust Grove and Meridian.   
 
Hoaglun:  Right.  So, the normal spot.   
 
Bernt:  I think there is a coffee shop right there.  Is that where Bright Eyes is?   
 
Hoaglun:  That is where Bright Eyes is, yes.  So -- okay.  I just wanted to make sure I was 
-- I was following your -- your directions there on that, because it's -- I didn't understand 
the street --  
 
Barron:  Right.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Thank you, sir.   
 
Barron:  Thank you.   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, the only other person saying they wanted to speak was the 
applicant.   
 
Simison:  Is there anybody else that would like to provide testimony on this item?  If so 
please come forward at this time.  Or anybody online, if you would like to provide 
testimony, please, use the raise your hand feature.  Seeing none, ask the applicant to 
come forward for final comment.   
 
Canning:  Thank you, Mayor.  Again, Joe Canning and Mike is still here if he needs to add 
anything at the end.  I'm going to make one more pitch I think for that R-8 and I think it 
has to do with the future planning.  Please keep in mind that the properties to the north is 
set up in the comp plan as MUC.  I personally don't really think it's appropriate to have an 
R-4 zone that close to an MUC.  The R-8 is actually a fairly low density transition from 
those commercial or high -- potentially high density residential projects.  We already have 
R-8 to the east and, like I say, we have tried to feather this so it really does feel like larger 
lots, particularly at the south and the west.  Just, please, keep in mind that future area to 
the north.  The church has quite a large area behind it.  We are seeing churches redevelop 
some of those properties.  They typically have to wait until water and sewer gets there.  
We will be providing water and sewer to that church property, along with this stub street.  
So, that's the main thing I want to comment on the R-4 versus the R-8.  Regarding traffic, 
there are three access points, even if everyone uses the same access point, there will be 
less than 400 vehicle trips per day from this project.  The ACHD had no issue with the 

Page 39

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 17 of 28 

project, so -- and, once again, this is not an uncommon issue with in-fill projects.  These 
folks have to go somewhere.  We are going to be closing that access out to -- out to 
Chinden.  I really think that is about all I have to respond.  I would be more than happy to 
answer any other questions that Council has.   
 
Simison:  Thank you.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Canning, you touched on this a couple of times and so it's at least piqued 
my interest.  Is the -- is the church trying to be sold?  Are they trying to sell their lot and 
move someplace else?  Is that what's warranted kind of -- you keep referencing the -- the 
designation for that land, but it is -- it's still a church that's in operation as far as I know.   
 
Canning:  Yes.  Mr. Mayor, Council Member, yes, it is still a church.  We are just stirring 
that as planners.  Our office planners have been looking at it and saying there is a good 
chance something will happen there and the big issue is water and sewer provided to that 
parcel.  We did a recent project with Zamzow's just to the west on Chinden and they were 
sure wishing they had water and sewer.  So, that -- we just expect it.  It happens.   
 
Cavener:  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Thank you.  Curious that -- I'm just looking -- it looks like you made a lot of 
positive changes in response to comments and it looks like on the west -- the westernmost 
side you lined up the lot lines from what I can tell.  It looks like on the east side you did.  I 
guess I'm curious in the southwest part, Lots 1 through 5, why you didn't try to match up 
-- did you -- or did you consider matching those lot lines with the neighbors?   
 
Canning:  We -- we did.  Mayor and Council Member, we did look at that.  Part of the -- 
part of the issue there is there is a couple of those lots that are around the corner in 
Saguaro Canyon, so they are -- they are huge lots, because they are -- they are -- they 
are kind of like a segment off of a curve.  So, it was nearly impossible to -- to really match 
that without just making an enormous lot.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  Yeah.  I'd just like to follow-up.  I think in the past on this exact property City 
Council has been -- it sounds like pretty emphatic in wanting to see R-4.  I guess I'm 

Page 40

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 18 of 28 

surprised that you wouldn't -- and these in-fill projects are really hard, so I -- I empathize 
a lot.  But I guess I'm surprised that you wouldn't lose like two lots in that southwest corner 
to try to say, hey, look, we have lined up exactly with R-4 on three sides.  Maybe you put 
some more density in the middle.  But I think that would have buffered the neighbors a lot 
more.  I guess I would be curious if that's something that you would consider down the 
line or if you feel like this is what makes the most sense for the project.   
 
Canning:  It probably makes the most sense.  That question specifically probably have to 
be addressed to the -- to the applicant.  Mike?  It looks like he wants to --  
 
Homan:  Mike Homan.  6820 West Randolph Drive, Boise, Idaho.  This is a -- been a 
difficult project being an in-fill.  We had that huge ditch to deal with going across it and we 
finally talked to Settlers Irrigation about moving it up and around and piping it and, then, 
we are doing it 30 feet wide where it can work as a pedestrian path and they will be able 
to get around that and, then, we really stepped our game up centralizing the common 
area with the Bocce court and several other amenities.  Joe, where is -- they were talking 
about where we are not matching up yet?  I'm sorry to --  
 
Canning:  It would be this area.   
 
Homan:  Right here?  Yeah.  We have already dumped a lot to the west there and over to 
the east we are matching -- that's R-8 and we are matching their lot lines and, again, Joe 
mentioned the north that could be redeveloped into apartments or other things.  So, we 
are good there.  I would be willing to drop a lot on the west if that helps getting approved.  
And, then, again, our development agreement, we are locked into the lot count, which 
would be at four lots to the acre.  So, right now we have got 30 -- huh?  We got 40 -- 
counting the existing house.  Yeah.  So, on the west there to be more compatible I would 
be willing to drop a lot and that would be to the west of the property.   
 
Canning:  This might be an opportunity also to complain a little bit perhaps.  When we do 
in-fill projects we typically get these stub streets that come into our projects.  That south 
stub street certainly isn't where I would have preferred it.  If it would have been in a 
different location we would have been much better off and just to say one more word 
about the R-4 zoning, to get that 8,000 square feet we are probably not going to be able 
to meet offset separations to intersections that ACHD requires, because of that south stub 
street.  It's going to pretty much ruin that alignment of those lots over on the east side.  
We have to provide so many feet from that north-south road to that stub street and it's 
really marginal right now.  So, going to R-4, just 8,000 square feet, it's -- it's going to be a 
heck of a density.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  So, just to delve into this a little bit more.  So, under the R-4 zone I think we 
have a different new open space requirement as well, but I guess I would be curious if 

Page 41

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 19 of 28 

you could compare -- if this was under the R-4 zoning -- previously you mentioned you 
would have to reduce the number of lots by 30 to 40 percent.  That seems really high to 
me.  I'm surprised it actually makes that big of a difference.  What would be the 
dimensional standards of R-4 lots if -- you know, just to compare with whether it's 8,000 
square feet --  
 
Homan:  Yeah.  So, the R-4 my understanding is a minimum lot width of 60 feet wide and 
a square footage of 8,000 and so those ones where we dropped a lot already, the ones 
to the south, our lots there are 101 deep by 76, somewhere right in there.  So, if I take 
another lot out there it would be more compatible.  Some of those lots that back up to us 
are flag lots where they are super wide in the back and narrow on the front.  But I would 
be -- we have worked real hard on this project to try to get everything to work and so I 
think where we got R-8 to the east there, we are compatible to the north.  We are 
compatible.  And, then, just this west property line, if we drop a lot out of there, those on 
that bank of lots, we would be over the square footage requirements there and be 
compatible.  But, again, we will have it locked in in a development agreement that's 
holding us to 39 buildable lots.   
 
Canning:  And if I may maybe I could address that a little better.  And a lot of that has to 
do with that offset difference between the intersections.  In the R-8 zone you need 8,000 
square feet.  We can't really move the east boundary of that north-south road on the east 
road further to the west, because we will be getting too close to that stub street, so that 
means those lots along that west side -- or excuse me -- the east side, as an example, 
would have to be 80 feet wide to get to that 8,000 square feet.  So, it makes a heck of a 
difference on the -- on that east side and similarly on that interior row of lots that would 
be a similar thing there.  You would have to keep shoving that west road further and further 
to the west and that may be doable there.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  One more thing I would like feedback on -- I personally have really been 
struggling with annexations because of the overcrowding in the school system.  This area 
is very acute.  I personally have been an advocate for continuing projects for a couple 
months while we continue to have these conversations with the West Ada School District 
to at least get an understanding of their plan to cope with future growth.  You know, is -- 
is that something that you are open to if this process takes longer for you to perhaps work 
on and come back with something a little different?  Just wondering what your feedback 
is in terms of your timing and --  
 
Homan:  Yeah.  Unfortunately, I'm about out of time on my purchase agreement with the 
seller and if there is a way that I could drop another lot on the west or to be more 
compatible and, then, the rest of the subdivision I think -- you know, we got R-8 to the 
east.  We are good there.  To the north with the church.  Then we were real sensitive on 
that west property line to put very few lots in there.  We only got two lots -- two new lots.  

Page 42

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 20 of 28 

Yeah.  Sorry.  But drop another lot if it makes it easier for you guys.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   
 
Strader:  I apologize.  I'm not trying to hog the mic.  I guess it's -- it's hard without a 
different plan being in front of us to react to it.  Yeah, there was one gentleman who was 
up here who was saying, you know, he will have three neighbors now.  I mean can you 
tell us like more specifically if you drop one lot, like kind of how that would line up?  I 
honestly was suggesting that you drop two lots, which I'm sure you wouldn't love that 
idea, but that would exactly match up, then; right?   
 
Homan:  Okay.  Sorry.  Yeah.  Just out of time.  So, I mean if -- I would be willing to drop 
two lots to the west and line them up to be able to try to --  
 
Strader:  Thank you for the feedback.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I don't know if this is a question for Joe or Mike, but in -- in your -- your redesign 
are those lots on the east going to line up?  You have got them one for one and if you go 
a lot wider now does that devalue the property that you are developing, because 
supposedly they don't line up now and there is going to be two houses -- I have two 
houses behind my lot.  I have got a big lot.  It is what it is.  I mean are the houses that are 
on Tallinn that -- that face Saguaro, since there is -- yeah, people are matching two lots, 
how -- I -- I -- I don't know.  You know, with your -- with your -- your pathway between 
there, you have got the easement if you put in the -- the canal and the ditch through that 
and pipe it, then, you have got some buffer.  So, I think that -- that would help.  But is 
there going to be any concern now if you change that and move those lots around, does 
that devalue the lots, because you are up against R-8?  I mean you are -- Joe, I have to 
say, I was surprised you say you like in-fill.  I think we are really hard on in-fill, because 
you got different people wanting different things and you can't really make it work for 
everybody.  So, you have my sympathy, but --  
 
Homan:  To the east there when we had our neighborhood meeting we were -- before we 
had -- did the stub road to the church, we had one big lot back there.  The neighbor behind 
there says I don't want a monster house behind me, you know.  Can you readjust it.  And 
I was like, oh, okay.  So, we did when we put that stub road there, so their lot sizes -- we 
are matching the width that they are and, then, down here on the -- the only thing is to 
the south, you know, if we take two more lots out, we will be over the dimensional 
standards for the R-4 and, again, we are tied to that development agreement to -- that we 
can't, you know, add lots.  So, just because we have the R-8 zoning, we are not putting 
eight lots in.  You know, we would be -- right now we are at four and with his property, to 

Page 43

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 21 of 28 

make everybody happy, I -- I think that if we drop a couple lots -- our lots are bigger than 
the R-4 standards.   
 
Hoaglun:  And Mr. Mayor -- oh. 
 
Canning:  If I may, I think Mike's talking about two lots on that south row and you are 
referring to the -- the R-8 lots?   
 
Hoaglun:  East side.  Yes.   
 
Canning:  Yeah.  And that was one advantage of putting that open space over there is 
that the units to the east in that subdivision are substantial structures.  They are big and 
there is not much to set back to the side lot lines.  So, when we first thought we -- we -- 
we tried to offset those property lines so that at least folks could look down at some kind 
of a corridor.  But now with the open space there it's even we think much more attractive.  
We have pulled them further away from those buildings over there and they -- they are 
substantial structures.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  My question for Alan -- and kind of for the benefit of people out there.  If -- if we 
reach an agreement with -- on certain things and it goes into a developer's agreement, 
which when we refer to as DA, that's what we are talking about, that locks that property 
to that proposal, so if by chance Mike decides I'm going to sell, that DA goes with that 
property; is that correct?   
 
Tiefenbach;  Council Person Hoaglun, Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, Alan 
Tiefenbach.  That's correct.  The DA is -- is -- the -- the staff report, the concept plans, the 
elevations, the landscape plan, all that is tied to the DA.  That's the project that has to get 
built.  As long as they substantially comply to that, like maybe they lose a lot, but it's the 
same general configuration, they could still build.  They couldn't add another lot though.   
 
Hoaglun:  So, Mr. Mayor and Alan, to follow that, then, so if someone comes in, it's R-8, 
they can't now go, hey, we are going to do eight units, you know, to the acre.  They have 
to follow that DA.   
 
Tiefenbach:  They can do less, but not more.   
 
Hoaglun:  Right.  Okay.  Thank you.   
 
Simison:  Council, any additional questions, comments?   
 
Canning:  If I could for just a moment.  The only reason I like in-fill projects is I think from 
a planning perspective they make sense.  They are hard to do.   

Page 44

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 22 of 28 

Simison:  Joe -- and I think -- if I could -- I'm going to speak up for the applicant just a little 
bit on this is if we are asking people to do in-fill there is give and take and I think we have 
seen that our zoning standards have not made sense in some of the applications we have 
seen, whether they are in-fill or whether they are on odd-shaped parcels.  Sometimes 
zone matters, sometimes design is more important than zoning.  I'm not going to say 
which one is appropriate here, because right or wrong some of your challenges are 
because you have an existing home that has chosen to stay there.  If that home wasn't 
there, how would this design be different even from that standpoint.  You know, we can't 
say from that standpoint, but you are dealt the circumstance you are with and you try to 
make it work and sometimes zoning matters, sometimes design is more important.  I will 
let you guys sit down now, but I would sit in the front row.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Kind of kick off discussion a little bit.  You know, that's the interesting thing 
about in-fill projects is they are -- they are a challenge, because you do have different 
interests and different things and -- and this is -- this is interesting, just because it's 
actually following the comp plan and how many times do we get developers coming in 
wanting to change the comp plan and everyone around it is saying follow the comp plan.  
You are not following your own plan.  So, you know, we are -- we are following our plan 
here, but we are thinking what -- well, we might need to change it, when, you know, that's 
what we try not to do.  And we also know that topography, man-made features, in this 
case a canal, make in-fill projects a challenge.  How it's designed.  As you noted, Mr. 
Mayor, the existing house.  They have already decreased the -- from the 48 to 40, which 
is a, what, 16, 17 percent decrease in the number of homes.  There is that challenge to 
the -- to the north of what will that be someday.  Is that going to be commercial?  Is it 
going to be something else?  The willingness of the applicant to fix that -- what would that 
be, the southwest corner with lots, making that match makes it more attractive.  The other 
hard part is in-fill is the most inexpensive impact to the city when it comes to sewer, water, 
police, fire.  It's all in place.  Roads, they are -- they are there.  They are ready to go.  It 
just -- that's why I'm always -- when we don't do an in-fill project that's a good project, it 
just kind of weighs on me a little bit just from the fact that, man, everything is there, the 
cost is -- it's as low as we can get it and -- to make it work and, yes, there is an impact to 
the schools, we have got them coming.  I think staff for the first one on the 22nd and, 
then, other officials later on.  But for our lane, for city services, this -- this -- it makes sense 
to -- to do in-fill projects like this.  It just -- it works.  But, you know, depends on what the 
whole Council wants to do.   
 
Borton:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Borton. 
 
Borton:  I will dovetail on Councilman Hoaglun's comments.  This is quite different.  It's 
progressed from 2015 to today, even from P&Z to today and -- and even through today's 

Page 45

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 23 of 28 

hearing I think the applicant's made a couple of concessions, which do assist in that 
transition and capture some of the characteristics of some R-4 lot size design, at least to 
that south, southwest.  So, I -- I thought with the concession of removing those two lots    
-- I understand the road setback issue.  I -- I think it's a good project, quite frankly.  It's -- 
it meets the mark in my eyes.  The setback -- or excuse me.  The open space around the 
perimeter also provides some buffer and setback to the east and also to the north.  So, 
all in all these in-fills -- Councilman Hoaglun is correct -- are difficult.  I'm glad that we take 
our time and grind through them, because they are hard, but they are very important to 
get done right and I think the applicant with the -- the changes that were provided today 
in my eyes it meets the mark.  I know we don't have findings of approval, so I think if 
something were to proceed my sense is it still has to come back for conditions, but I think 
it's met the mark.   
 
Simison:  Yes, Alan.   
 
Tiefenbach:  Mr. Mayor, Members of the Council, Alan Tiefenbach.  Staff did draft 
conditions of approval.  Those are in the staff report and those are crossed out.  So, if you 
were inclined to approve this tonight you could just overturn what the Planning 
Commission struck and resustain the conditions of approval.  They have already been 
written.   
 
Bernt:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Bernt. 
 
Bernt:  Does the applicant agree to -- if this were to be approved -- the conditions of 
approval that were struck out?   
 
Canning:  Mayor, Council Member, yes.  The one exception is I think Alan, yeah, talked 
about the offsets on the east side.   
 
Tiefenbach:  That's correct.  That's the only one they didn't agree with was lining up the 
side lot lines with the subdivision to the east.  Staff mentioned at Planning Commission 
that we weren't going to die on the sword for that one.   
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Mr. Nary.   
 
Nary:  So, Members of the Council, if you were to go that direction we would need a new 
plat map, though, because this -- with the two less lots they have agreed to remove on 
the southwest.   
 
Strader:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Council Woman Strader.   

Page 46

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 24 of 28 

Strader:  You know, I originally was -- after reading the application was pretty dead set 
against this, but I do feel you have made a lot of changes.  I appreciate the concession 
the key concession of losing two lots to the southwest.  I think that's going to make a big 
difference for the neighbors, you know, look, in-fill development is really tough.  I think we 
all know that the city is growing.  I think when you are looking at medium density 
residential in your future land use map, probably the best transition you could ask for as 
a neighbor, if I were in your shoes, that I would be hoping for is to have the lot lines match 
up or very close.  I think that the applicant hopefully will be able to accomplish that with 
this change and it's a very small -- relatively small project compared to some of the ones 
we look at at ten acres.  Given that it's in-fill I think I could probably stomach it, although 
I'm still upset about the school issues, but I think we are definitely making a lot of progress 
on setting up some meetings on that and certainly 20 kids is not going to make or break 
it anytime soon.  I think we have time to work through that.  So, that's where I'm at.  I think 
I'm supportive of it now with that change.   
 
Cavener:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Cavener. 
 
Cavener:  The public hearing is open.  I -- I tend to agree.  What I -- I appreciate, honestly, 
the -- the communication from our Planning and Zoning Commission and the applicant 
being responsive.  Sometimes when P&Z says go one way and the applicant shows up 
not taking that into consideration, that really -- I think at least irritates me as a Council 
Member.  So, I appreciate, one, taking the feedback from the Planning and Zoning 
Commission to heart and the feedback from the public tonight.  I was pretty opposed to 
this project mostly for the student piece.  I think, honestly, with the -- with the loss of two 
lots we get much closer to -- I think what the residents would envision around an R-4.  I 
do think these homes would mirror similar to what's around the neighborhood and, 
obviously, being tied to the developer agreement gives me enough comfort and I agree 
with the sentiments that in-fill is so hard and I -- I think that we -- we tend to be a little 
more critical of -- of in-fill than -- than other projects.  But I think this does meet the mark 
and I could be supportive of it in light of the reduction of lots.   
 
Simison:  Well, as was mentioned -- I don't want to presume, but I'm -- do we need to 
continue this to give time to redo the plat?   
 
Canning:  Mayor and Council, as far as adjusting that plat, that will be just a few days.  
I'm not moving any streets, so that's pretty easy.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  Yeah.  The -- your part is easy.  Our -- getting on our schedule is the hard part.  
Chris, I -- I don't have the agendas in front of me from future meetings and Alan's got 
some different things.   

Page 47

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 25 of 28 

Tiefenbach:  Mr. Hoaglun, Members of the Council, Mr. Mayor, my only comment would 
be that we have code now that says that if they are making revisions to plans they should 
be 15 days in advance at least.   
 
Hoaglun:  That would -- Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  What -- what does our schedule look like, Mr. Clerk, for mid -- mid March?   
 
Johnson:  Mr. Mayor, Councilman Hoaglun, looking at the hearing calendar, mid March, 
the 3/15 hearing, appears to be pretty light.  3/22 as well.  3/8 you have three -- three 
public hearings that are quite large already scheduled.   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Homan, March 15th, knowing that -- where we are headed, does that work 
for you and your situation that you find yourself in from a timing standpoint?   
 
Simison:  You will have to come up to the mic, Mr. Homan.  Thank you.   
 
Homan:  Looking at it with losing two lots there on the south side, those lots go from 76 
to about 85 on width.  If there is a way that -- that we could -- I'm really tight on my time 
frame on my offer, but if not that will work, you know, with that date.   
 
Hoaglun:  I guess, Mr. Mayor and Mike, you know, I mean the Council is talking about, 
you know, the changes that you have made looks acceptable and, you know, with 
everything coming in the way we think it's going to come in would -- would be favorable 
over moving forward, so --  
 
Homan:  Correct. 
 
Hoaglun:  -- on the public record does that help you in your situation?   
 
Homan:  Yeah.  Yeah.  It would.  Thank you.   
 
Hoaglun:  Okay.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  Then with that do I have a motion?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.  
 

Page 48

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 26 of 28 

Hoaglun:  I move that we continue the public hearing for Friendship Subdivision, H-2021-
0083, to March 15th.   
 
Strader:  Second the motion.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to continue the public hearing until March 15th.  
Is there any discussion?  If not, all in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  The 
ayes have it and the public hearing is continued.   
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
Nary:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Mr. Nary.   
 
Nary:  To add one more -- so, since Alan said the previous findings were for approval and 
if he can adjust those for the 15th, I don't like to have the development agreement done 
before the findings are approved, but if we feel that we are going to be comfortable with 
that we can have the development agreement also ready, so that if that can be approved 
with Mr. Homan's signature, then, it will be only one additional week to add the ordinance.   
 
Simison:  Alan, would you like to rebut that?   
 
Tiefenbach:  I don't want to rebut, but just to clarify, how many lots did we land at?   
 
Hoaglun:  Minus -- minus two.   
 
Tiefenbach:  So, we are at 38 lots?  That's the agreement?  Okay.  Fine with Mr. Nary.  I 
mean he's the attorney.  They would be the one drafting the agreement.  I would just be 
doing pretty simple work with the conditions of approval.   
 
Simison:  Okay.  All right.  Joe, see you back on the 15th with whatever you can get 
accomplished.   
 
ORDINANCES [Action Item] 
 
 4.  Ordinance No. 22-1969: An Ordinance (H-2021-0066 – Red Aspen) for  
  Annexation of a Parcel of Land Lying in the NW ¼ of Section 24,  
  Township 3 North, Range 1 West, Ada County, Idaho, and Being More 
  Particularly Described in Attachment “A” and Annexing Certain Lands 
  and Territory, Situated in Ada County, Idaho, and Adjacent and   
  Contiguous to the Corporate Limits of the City of Meridian as   
  Requested by the City Of Meridian; Establishing and Determining the 
  Land Use Zoning Classification of 2.99 Acres of Land from RUT to C- 
  G (General Retail and Service Commercial) Zoning District in the  
  Meridian City Code; Providing That Copies of this Ordinance Shall Be 

Page 49

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 27 of 28 

  Filed With the Ada County Assessor, the Ada County Recorder, and  
  the Idaho State Tax Commission, as Required by Law; and Providing  
  for a Summary of the Ordinance; and Providing for a Waiver of the  
  Reading Rules; and Providing an Effective Date 
 
Simison:  So, with that, Council, we will move on to Item 4, which is Ordinance No. 22- 
1969.  Ask the Clerk to read this ordinance by title.   
 
Johnson:  Thank you, Mr. Mayor.  It's an ordinance related to H-2021-0066, Red Aspen,  
for annexation of a parcel of land lying in the NW ¼ of Section 24, Township 3 North, 
Range 1 West, Ada county, Idaho, and being more particularly described in Attachment 
“A” and annexing certain lands and territory, situated in Ada county, Idaho, and adjacent 
and contiguous to the corporate limits of the City of Meridian as requested by the City of 
Meridian; establishing and determining the land use zoning classification of 2.99 acres of 
land from RUT to C-G (General Retail and Service Commercial) Zoning District in the 
Meridian City Code; providing that copies of this ordinance shall be filed with the Ada 
County Assessor, the Ada County Recorder, and the Idaho State Tax Commission, as 
required by law; and providing for a summary of the ordinance; and providing for a waiver 
of the reading rules; and providing an effective date. 
 
Simison:  Thank you.  Council, you have heard this ordinance read by title.  Is there 
anybody that would like it read in its entirety?  If not, do I have a motion?   
 
Hoaglun:  Mr. Mayor?   
 
Simison:  Councilman Hoaglun.   
 
Hoaglun:  I move approval of Ordinance No. 22-1969 with suspension of rules.   
 
Strader:  Second.   
 
Simison:  I have a motion and a second to approve Ordinance No. 22-1969 under 
suspension of the rules.  Is there any discussion?  If not, Clerk will call the roll.   
 
Roll call:  Borton, yea; Cavener, yea; Bernt, yea; Perreault, absent; Hoaglun, yea; Strader, 
yea. 
 
Simison:  All ayes.  Motion carries and the ordinance is agreed to. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT. 
 
Simison:  Council, anything under future meeting topics?  Or do I have a motion to 
adjourn?   
 
Hoaglun:  Move to adjourn.   
 

Page 50

Item #2.



Meridian City Council  
February 15, 2022  
Page 28 of 28 

Simison:  I have a motion to adjourn.  All in favor signify by saying aye.  Opposed nay?  
You ayes have it.  We are adjourned. 
 
MOTION CARRIED:  FIVE AYES.  ONE ABSENT.   
 
MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:23 P.M.   
 
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)   
 
_______________________________  ______/______/______           
MAYOR ROBERT SIMISON   DATE APPROVED 
 
ATTEST:  
 
_____________________________________   
CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK   
 
 
 

Page 51

Item #2.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Apex Southeast Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer Easement

Page 52

Item #3.



ESMT-2022-0127 Apex Southeast Subdivision No. 2
Sanitary Sewer Easement

Page 53

Item #3.



Page 54

Item #3.



Page 55

Item #3.



Page 56

Item #3.



Page 57

Item #3.



Page 58

Item #3.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Future State Highway 16 Crossing Water Main Easement

Page 59

Item #4.



ESMT-2022-0124 Future SH-16 Crossing
Water Main Easement

Page 60

Item #4.



Page 61

Item #4.



Page 62

Item #4.



Page 63

Item #4.



Page 64

Item #4.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Final Plat for Meridian Movado Village Subdivision (FP-2022-0002) by Breckon Land

Design, Located on the South Side of E. Overland Rd. Between S. Eagle Rd. and S. Cloverdale Rd.

Page 65

Item #5.



 

 

 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
 

Staff Contact: Joseph Dodson Meeting Date: March 1, 2022 

Topic: Final Plat for Meridian Movado Village Subdivision (FP-2022-0002) by Breckon 
Land Design, Located on the South Side of E. Overland Rd. Between S. Eagle Rd. and 
S. Cloverdale Rd. 

 

Request: 

Final Plat consisting of 5 building lots (3 commercial lots and 2 multi-family residential lots) on 6.8 
acres of land in the C-G zoning district. 

Information Resources: 

Click Here for Application Materials 

 

Page 66

Item #5.

https://bit.ly/FP-2022-0002


 

 

 
Page 1 

 
  

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

 
DATE: 3/1/2022 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: FP-2022-0002 

Meridian Movado Village 

PROPERTY LOCATION: 

 The site is located on the south side of E. 

Overland Road between S. Eagle Road 

and S. Cloverdale Road, in a portion of 

the NW ¼ of the NE ¼ of Section 21, 

Township 3N., Range 1E. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

A final plat consisting of 5 building lots (3 commercial lots and 2 multi-family residential lots) on 

6.8 acres of land in the C-G zoning district.  

II. SUMMARY OF REPORT 

A. Project Summary 

Description Details Page 

Acreage 6.8  

Future Land Use Designation Mixed Use Regional  

Existing Land Use Vacant  

Approved Land Use(s) Multi-Family Residential and future Commercial  

Current Zoning C-G  

Lots (# and type; bldg/common) 5 total lots – 3 commercial lots; 2 multi-family lots  

Physical Features (waterways, 

hazards, flood plain, hillside) 

N/A  

History (previous approvals) Part of Movado Estates AZ, PP, PS (H-2016-0112); Movado 

Greens/Silverstone Apartments MCU, MDA, PP, RZ (H-

2017-0104); Silverstone Apartments MDA (H-2019-0099) & 

Silverstone Apartments MCU (H-2019-0014) that were 

withdrawn; DA Inst. #’s 2017-012608 & #2018-012456; 

Movado Mixed-Use CUP, MDA (H-2020-0123). 

 

Page 67

Item #5.



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

B. Project Area Maps 

Future Land Use Map 

 

Aerial Map 

 
Zoning Map 

 

Planned Development Map 

 
 

III. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant 

Claire Smarda, Breckon Land Design – 6661 N. Glenwood Street, Garden City, ID 83714 

B. Owner: 

Kevin Raymes, Meridian Movado Village Investors, LP – 7761 W. Riverside Dr., Boise, 

ID 83714 

Page 68

Item #5.



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

IV. STAFF ANALYSIS 

The proposed final plat consists of 5 building lots, three (3) commercial lots and two (2) multi-family 

residential lots in the existing C-G zoning district. The number of lots are one (1) less than approved 

with the preliminary plat in 2016 and all required landscape buffers along Overland Road and 

Movado Way are existing and were installed with other phases of the Movado Estates Subdivision to 

the south. 

Because the number of building lots has not increased and the proposed final plat complies with all 

conditions of approval from the latest Conditional Use Permit and Development Agreement 

Modification, staff finds the proposed final plat to be in substantial compliance with the approved 

preliminary plat as required by UDC11-6B-3C.2. This is the final area of land in the Movado 

Estates Subdivision (H-2016-0112) and Movado Greens Subdivision (H-2017-0104) to be 

platted. 

V. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed final plat with the conditions of approval in 

Section VII of this report. 

  

Page 69

Item #5.



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

VI. EXHIBITS  

A. Approved Preliminary Plat (Movado Greens, 2017) 

  

Page 70

Item #5.



 

 
Page 5 

 
  

 

Page 71

Item #5.



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

B. Final Plat (dated: January 10, 2022) 

 

Page 72

Item #5.



 

 
Page 7 

 
  

  

Page 73

Item #5.



 

 
Page 8 

 
  

C. Landscape Plan (dated: January 12, 2022) 

 

Page 74

Item #5.



 

 
Page 9 

 
  

 

Page 75

Item #5.



 

 
Page 10 

 
  

 

Page 76

Item #5.



 

 
Page 11 

 
  

VII. PLANNING AND PUBLIC WORKS COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

1. The Applicant is to meet all terms of the approved annexation and preliminary plats (H-2016-

0112, H-2017-0104), conditional use permit (H-2020-0123), and amended development 

agreement (Instrument #2021-102395) for this development. 

2. The Applicant has until June 3, 2023, two years from the date of signature on the most recently 

signed final plat phase (Movado No. 9), to obtain the City Engineer’s signature on this final plat 

or apply for a time extension in accord with UDC 11-6B-7. 

3. Prior to submittal for the City Engineer’s signature, have the Certificate of Owners and the 

accompanying acknowledgement signed and notarized. 

4. Prior to signature on the final plat by the City Engineer, the final plat prepared by Sawtooth Land 

Surveying, LLC (Exhibit B), dated January 10, 2022, shall be revised as follows: 

a. Note #8: Include encumbered lots within this subdivision. 

b. Note #11: Include the latest DA instrument number for these properties (2021-102395). 

c. Note #13: Include recorded instrument number. 

d. Add a note addressing any shared parking and/or access between the commercial and multi-

family lots. Provide a copy of the recorded shared parking/access agreement with the 

Planning Division at the time of Certificate of Zoning Compliance application submittal. 

e. Add a note addressing cross-access to the Boise parcel to the east (S1121110200), as required 

by the Development Agreement. Visually showing the location of this cross-access would 

also be a benefit. 

5. The landscape plan prepared by Breckon Land Design (Exhibit C), dated January 12, 2022, is 

approved as shown. All buffer landscaping has been installed and shall remain protected during 

construction. 

6. The applicant shall comply with the submitted elevations within the approved Conditional Use 

Permit (H-2020-0123). 

7. All fencing shall be installed in accordance with UDC 11-3A-7 and the vinyl fencing along 

Overland Road shall be removed as proposed at the public hearing for Movado Mixed-Use (H-

2020-0123). 

8. Stormwater integration facilities shall comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-3B-11C. 

9. Prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer, the applicant shall provide a letter from 

the United States Postal Service stating that the applicant has received approval for the location of 

mailboxes. Contact the Meridian Postmaster for more information. 

10. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions or conditions from the preliminary plat does not 

relieve the applicant of responsibility for compliance. 

11. Prior to the issuance of any building permit Certificate of Occupancy, the final plat shall be 

recorded. 

12. Prior to the issuance of any building permit, Applicant shall obtain applicable Certificate of Zoning 

Compliance and Administrative Design Review approvals for any commercial or multi-family 

building. 

13. Sewer main cannot pass through infiltration trenches, a 10-foot separation between the structures 

should be maintained. A gap in the infiltration trench to accommodate the sewer main is an 

acceptable layout. 

Page 77

Item #5.



 

 
Page 12 

 
  

14. A minimum 20-foot-wide easement is required for all sewer outside of right-of-way which must be 

free from all encroachment including but not limited to other easements, buildings, carports, 

overhangs, infiltration trenches, light poles, fences, trees, shrubs, etc. The sewer main along the 

eastern edge of the subdivision does not currently comply with this requirement.  

15. A 14-foot-wide access road is required to cover all manholes if the area remains unpaved.  

16. Along the eastern boundary of the subdivision a single 8’’ water main should be connected from 

Movado Way through the two buildings; fire hydrants and water meters can be installed from that 

8’’ main.  

17. The proposed water main near the proposed infiltration trench shall be a solid piece of pipe with 

no joints.  

18. Streetlights are required along Overland frontage. A streetlight plan must be submitted and 

approved prior to final plat signature, and installation of streetlights must be completed prior to any 

type of occupancy.  

19. If the required fire flow is greater than 1500 gallons per minute, contact Public Works Department 

for modeling. 

VII. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

1. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to 

the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this subdivision; applicant shall 

coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works Department, and execute standard forms 

of easements for any mains that are required to provide service.  Minimum cover over sewer mains 

is three feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials 

shall be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard 

Specifications.   

2. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the development. 

The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this development, 

coordinate main size and routing with Public Works. 

3. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy of 

the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a performance surety for 

such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the final plat as set forth in UDC 

11-5C-3B. 

4. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, the 

applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14A. 

5. A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete fencing, 

landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat. 

6. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in the amount 

of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water infrastructure prior to final 

plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by the owner to the 

City.  The applicant shall be required to enter into a Development Surety Agreement with the City 

of Meridian. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or 

bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the Community 

Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for more 

information at 887-2211. 

7. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount of 

20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water infrastructure for a duration 

Page 78

Item #5.



 

 
Page 13 

 
  

of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item final cost invoicing provided by the 

owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash 

deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the 

Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for 

more information at 887-2211. 

8. In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non-life, non-safety and non-health 

improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to occupancy, a surety 

agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3C. 

9. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 

inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 

approval letter. 

10. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with 

the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

11. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting that 

may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

12. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

13. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

14. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 

pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

15. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a minimum of 

3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that the bottom 

elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

16. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    drainage 

facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district or ACHD. 

The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed in accordance 

with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a certificate of occupancy 

is issued for any structures within the project.  

17. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings per 

the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and approved 

prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the project.  

18. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for Street 

Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street lights shall be 

installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of the development plan 

set for approval, which must include the location of any existing street lights.  The contractor’s 

work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City of Meridian Supplemental 

Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian Transportation and Utility Coordinator 

at 898-5500 for information on the locations of existing street lighting. 

19. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right of 

way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide for a 

single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, but rather 

dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard forms. The easement shall 

be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed easement (on the 

form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional 

Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 

11” map with bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be 

Page 79

Item #5.



 

 
Page 14 

 
  

sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the 

plat referencing this document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to 

signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

20. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting that 

may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

21. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho Well 

Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water Resources.  The 

Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are any existing wells in 

the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide record of their 

abandonment.   

22. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City Ordinance 

Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for abandonment 

procedures and inspections. 

23. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 

source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface or 

well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point 

connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is utilized, 

the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas prior to 

development plan approval. 

24. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 

crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per UDC 

11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 and any 

other applicable law or regulation. 

Page 80

Item #5.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Final Order for Prescott Ridge No. 1 (FP-2021-0053) by KM Engineering, LLP, 
Generally Located 1/3 Mile South of W. Chinden Blvd., on the East Side of N. McDermott Rd.

Page 81

Item #6.



 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  

FOR PRESCOTT RIDGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 FP-2021-0053 

Page 1 of 3 

 BEFORE THE MERIDIAN CITY COUNCIL  

 

 

HEARING DATE: FEBRUARY 15, 2022 

ORDER APPROVAL DATE: MARCH 1, 2022 

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF THE 

REQUEST FOR FINAL PLAT 

CONSISTING OF 108 BUILDING 

LOTS AND 27 COMMON LOTS ON 

27.42 ACRES OF LAND IN THE R-8 

ZONING DISTRICT FOR 

PRESCOTT RIDGE SUBDIVISION 

NO. 1 

 

BY: KM ENGINEERING, LLP 

APPLICANT 

  

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

CASE NO. FP-2021-0053 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL 

APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT 

 

 

This matter coming before the City Council on [date] for final plat approval pursuant to 

Unified Development Code (UDC) 11-6B-3 and the Council finding that the Administrative 

Review is complete by the Planning and Development Services Divisions of the Community 

Development Department, to the Mayor and Council, and the Council having considered the 

requirements of the preliminary plat, the Council takes the following action: 

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT: 

 1. The Final Plat of “PLAT SHOWING PRESCOTT RIDGE SUBDIVISION NO. 

1, A PARCEL OF LAND BEING A PORTION OF LOTS 18 AND 19, BLOCK 

1 OF PEREGRINE HEIGHTS SUBDIVISION AND A PORTION OF THE NE 

1/4 , THE SW ¼ AND THE NW ¼ OF SECTION 28, TOWNSHIP 4 NORTH, 

Page 82

Item #6.



 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  

FOR PRESCOTT RIDGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 FP-2021-0053 

Page 2 of 3 

RANGE 1 WEST, B.M., CITY OF MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO, 2021, 

HANDWRITTEN DATE: 9/24/2021, by AARON L. BALLARD, PLS, SHEET 1 

OF 7,” is conditionally approved subject to those conditions of Staff as set forth in 

the staff report to the Mayor and City Council from the Planning and 

Development Services divisions of the Community Development Department 

dated 2/15/2022, a true and correct copy of which is attached hereto marked 

“Exhibit A” and by this reference incorporated herein.  

 2. The final plat upon which there is contained the certification and signature of the  

City Clerk and the City Engineer verifying that the plat meets the City’s 

requirements shall be signed only at such time as: 

2.1 The plat dimensions are approved by the City Engineer; and 

2.2 The City Engineer has verified that all off-site improvements are 

completed and/or the appropriate letter of credit or cash surety has been 

issued guaranteeing the completion of off-site and required on-site 

improvements. 

 

NOTICE OF FINAL ACTION 

AND RIGHT TO REGULATORY TAKINGS ANALYSIS 

 The Applicant is hereby notified that pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-8003, the Owner may 

request a regulatory taking analysis.  Such request must be in writing, and must be filed with the 

City Clerk not more than twenty-eight (28) days after the final decision concerning the matter at 

issue.  A request for a regulatory takings analysis will toll the time period within which a Petition 

for Judicial Review may be filed. 

Page 83

Item #6.



 

 

ORDER OF CONDITIONAL APPROVAL OF FINAL PLAT  

FOR PRESCOTT RIDGE SUBDIVISION NO. 1 FP-2021-0053 

Page 3 of 3 

 Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of 

Meridian, pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521. An affected person being a person who has an 

interest in real property which may be adversely affected by this decision may, within twenty-

eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order, seek a judicial review pursuant to Idaho 

Code§ 67-52. 

            By action of the City Council at its regular meeting held on the _____________ day of 

________________________, 2022. 

       By:  

 

 

              

Robert Simison  

Mayor, City of Meridian 

 

Attest: 

 

 

     

Chris Johnson 

City Clerk 

  

 

Copy served upon the Applicant, Planning and Development Services Divisions of the Community 

Development Department and City Attorney. 

 

By:         Dated:      

 

 

Page 84

Item #6.



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

 
 

 
Page 1 

 
  

HEARING 

DATE: 
2/15/2022 

 

TO: Mayor & City Council 

FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner 

208-884-5533 

SUBJECT: FP-2021-0053 

Prescott Ridge No. 1 

LOCATION: East side of N. McDermott Rd., south of 

SH 20-26 in the NE ¼, the SW ¼ and 

the NW ¼ of Section 28, Township 4 

North., Range 1 West. 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Final plat consisting of 108 buildable lots and 27 common lots on 27.42 acres of land in the R-8 

zoning district for the first phase of Prescott Ridge Subdivision. 

II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

A. Applicant: 

Stephanie Hopkins, KM Engineering, LLP – 5725 N. Discovery Way, Boise, ID 83713 

B. Owner: 

Providence Properties, LLC – 701 S. Allen St., Ste. 104, Meridian, ID 83642 

C. Representative: 

Same as Applicant 

III. STAFF ANALYSIS 

Staff has reviewed the proposed final plat for substantial compliance with the preliminary plat (H-

2020-0047) and associated conditions of approval as required by UDC 11-6B-3C.2. There is the same 

number of buildable lots and common open space as shown on the approved preliminary plat for the 

subject area.  

This phase combines phases 1 and 4 as shown on the phasing plan and excludes the hospital/medical 

center lot (i.e. Lot 80, Block 8). The hospital/medical center lot should be included in the subject final 

plat for consistency with the approved phasing plan as required by the Development Agreement; or, 

an amendment to the Development Agreement for that property should be requested and approved to 

remove that lot from the phasing plan prior to signature on the final plat for the subject final plat.  

STAFF REPORT 

 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

Page 85

Item #6.



 

 
Page 2 

 
  

Staff finds the proposed final plat is in substantial compliance with the approved preliminary plat as 

required. 

IV. DECISION 

A. Staff: 

Staff recommends approval of the proposed final plat with the conditions of approval in Section 

VI of this report. 

V. EXHIBITS  

A. Preliminary Plat (date: 12/22/2020) 

 

  

Page 86

Item #6.



 

 
Page 3 

 
  

B. Final Plat (date: 9/24/2021) 

 

 

 

Page 87

Item #6.



 

 
Page 4 

 
  

 

 

Page 88

Item #6.



 

 
Page 5 

 
  

 

 

  

Page 89

Item #6.



 

 
Page 6 

 
  

C. Landscape Plan (date: 9/23/2021), Fencing Plan & Amenity Details 

 

 

Page 90

Item #6.



 

 
Page 7 

 
  

 

 

Page 91

Item #6.



 

 
Page 8 

 
  

 

 

Page 92

Item #6.



 

 
Page 9 

 
  

 

 

Page 93

Item #6.



 

 
Page 10 

 
  

 

 

  

Page 94

Item #6.



 

 
Page 11 

 
  

D. Common Driveway Exhibit 

  

Page 95

Item #6.



 

 
Page 12 

 
  

VI. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS 

A. Planning Division 

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. Applicant shall comply with all previous conditions of approval associated with this 

development [H-2020-0047, Development Agreement Inst. #2021-132713. 

2. The applicant shall obtain the City Engineer’s signature on the final plat within two (2) years 

of City Council’s approval of the preliminary plat (by June 1, 2023) in accord with UDC 11-

6B-7 in order for the preliminary plat to remain valid; or, a time extension may be requested. 

3. Prior to submittal for the City Engineer’s signature, have the Certificate of Owners and the 

accompanying acknowledgement signed and notarized. 

4. The final plat shown in Section V.B prepared by KM Engineering, stamped on 9/24/2021 by 

Aaron L. Ballard, shall be revised as follows:  

a. Include Lot 80, Block 8 (i.e. hospital/medical center lot as shown on the preliminary 

plat) in the boundary of the final plat in accord with the phasing plan as required by 

the Development Agreement; or, amend the Development Agreement for the hospital 

portion of the development to exclude that parcel from the phasing plan, prior to 

signature on subject final plat by the City Engineer. 

b. Include the recorded instrument number of the point of commencement graphically 

depicted on Sheets 1 and 2. 

c. Depict the correct parcel configuration of the property at the southwest corner of SH-20/26 

and N. Rustic Oak Way as shown on ROS #13153, property boundary adjustment for 

Providence Properties, LLC, Raymond Roark and Lonnie Kuenzli. 

d. Note #14: “Direct lot access from N. McDermott Rd., N. Rustic Oak Way and W. Chinden 

Blvd. is prohibited, unless otherwise approved.”  

An electronic copy of the revised plat shall be submitted prior to signature on the final plat by 

the City Engineer. 

5. The landscape plan shown in Section V.C, dated 9/23/21, shall be revised as follows: 

a. Depict shrubs (along with the proposed trees) within the street buffers along W. Chinden 

Blvd., N. McDermott Rd. and N. Rustic Oak Way as set forth in UDC 11-3B-7C.3a. 

b. Landscaping shall be depicted along all pathways in accord with the standards listed in 

UDC 11-3B-12C; include a mix of trees and shrubs along with lawn and/or other 

vegetative groundcover. 

c. Depict noise abatement for the future SH-16 extension in the form of a berm or a berm 

and wall combination parallel to N. McDermott Rd. constructed in accord with the 

standards listed in UDC 11-3H-4D. A cross-section of the berm or berm/wall 

combination should also be included. 

d. If fencing is proposed along the west side of Lot 9, Block 1, depict a minimum 5’ wide 

landscape buffer along the east side of Lot 8, Block 1 planted with shrubs, lawn or other 

vegetative groundcover as set forth in UDC 11-6C-3D.5. Depict fencing on the plan if 

proposed. 

An electronic copy of the revised landscape plan shall be submitted prior to signature on the 

final plat by the City Engineer. 

Page 96

Item #6.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=237288&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=CD_TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-12PALA
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH6SURE_ARTCSUDEIMST_11-6C-3ST


 

 
Page 13 

 
  

6. Prior to the issuance of any new building permit, the property shall be subdivided in accordance 

with the UDC.  

7. All development shall comply with the dimensional standards for the R-8 zoning district listed 

in UDC Table 11-2A-6. 

8. A perpetual ingress/egress easement shall be filed with the Ada County Recorder for the 

common driveway on Lot 8, Block 1; a copy of the recorded easement shall be submitted prior 

to submittal of the final plat for the City Engineer’s signature. 

9. A 14-foot wide public pedestrian easement for the planned and future multi-use pathways along 

N. McDermott Rd. and N. Rustic Oak Way shall be submitted to the Planning Division in 

accord with the Park’s Department requirements per the Pathways Master Plan for the portions 

of the pathway that are outside the public right-of-way. A copy of said easements shall be 

submitted to the Planning Division prior to submittal of the final plat for City Engineer 

signature. 

10. Provide amenities consistent with the plans in Section V.C as approved with H-2020-0047. 

11. The rear and/or side of structures on Lots 2-6, Block 4 and Lots 2-7, Block 1 along N. 

McDermott Rd. and on Lot 2, Block 10 and Lot 14, Block 8 and Lot 2, Block 9 along N. Rustic 

Oak Way shall incorporate articulation through changes in two or more of the following: 

modulation (e.g. projections, recesses, step-backs, pop-outs), bays, banding, porches, 

balconies, material types, or other integrated architectural elements to break up monotonous 

wall planes and roof lines that are visible from the subject public street. Single-story structures 

are exempt from this requirement. 

12. Prior to signature of the final plat by the City Engineer, the applicant shall provide a letter from 

the United States Postal Service stating that the applicant has received approval for the location 

of mailboxes. Contact the Meridian Postmaster, Sue Prescott, at 887-1620 for more 

information. 

13. Staff’s failure to cite specific ordinance provisions or conditions from the preliminary plat 

and/or development agreement does not relieve the Applicant of responsibility for compliance. 

B. Public Works   

Site Specific Conditions: 

1. The applicant shall be required to pay the Oaks Lift Station and Pressure Sewer 

Reimbursement Fees in the amount of $265.25 per equivalent residential unit (ERU).  The 

reimbursement fees for the entire residential portion of this subdivision shall be paid prior to 

city signatures on this final plat. 

2. The applicant shall be required to pay the Oaks Lift Station Pump Upgrades Reimbursement  

Fees in the amount of $185.43 per equivalent residential unit (ERU).  The reimbursement 

fees for the entire residential portion of this subdivision shall be paid prior to city signatures 

on this final plat. 

3. 12-inch water main shall be installed throughout the subdivision (see water markup sheets 

below) 

4. Construct water main in North Streamer Way between Parachute Drive and Fireline Court.  

5. Provide a 20-foot-wide water main easement over the walking path for potential future 

connection.  

6. Manholes must be 60-inch diameter for any sewer main depth 18 feet or greater. 

Page 97

Item #6.



 

 
Page 14 

 
  

7. All manholes outside of right-of-way must be maintained within an easement and be 

accessible via a gravel access road that meets City standards. Specifically, the sewer main 

running parallel to Rustic Oak Way does not meet these requirements. 

8. Sewer pipes need a minimum 3-feet of cover over the top of pipe. Manhole F-2 does not meet 

this requirement. 

9. Angles through a manhole cannot exceed 90 degrees for the in/out pipe in the direction of 

flow. Manhole D-2 does not meet this requirement.  

10. Sewer mains shall not be allowed in common driveways that serve three or fewer lots, 

services should be extended from the main in right-of-way. For common driveways that serve 

four or more lots a private sewer main can be extended into the driveway. A manhole must be 

provided at the property boundary (from the right-of-way) that is marked “Private” on the lid. 

The private sewer main must end in a manhole that is also marked “Private” on the lid.  

11. The geotechnical investigative report prepared by SITE Consulting, LLC indicates some very 

specific construction considerations.  The applicant shall be responsible for the strict adherence 

of these recommendations to help ensure that groundwater does not become a problem within 

crawlspaces of homes. 

General Conditions: 

1. Sanitary sewer service to this development is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to 

the development. The applicant shall install mains to and through this subdivision; applicant shall 

coordinate main size and routing with the Public Works Department, and execute standard forms 

of easements for any mains that are required to provide service.  Minimum cover over sewer mains 

is three feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials 

shall be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard 

Specifications.   

2. Water service to this site is available via extension of existing mains adjacent to the development. 

The applicant shall be responsible to install water mains to and through this development, 

coordinate main size and routing with Public Works. 

3. All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to occupancy of 

the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a performance surety for 

such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the final plat as set forth in UDC 

11-5C-3B. 

4. Upon installation of the landscaping and prior to inspection by Planning Department staff, the 

applicant shall provide a written certificate of completion as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14A. 

5. A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all incomplete fencing, 

landscaping, amenities, pressurized irrigation, prior to signature on the final plat. 

6. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post with the City a performance surety in the amount 

of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water infrastructure prior to final 

plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost estimate provided by the owner to the 

City.  The applicant shall be required to enter into a Development Surety Agreement with the City 

of Meridian. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or 

bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the Community 

Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for more 

information at 887-2211. 

7. The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the amount of 

20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, and water infrastructure for a duration 

Page 98

Item #6.



 

 
Page 15 

 
  

of two years. This surety amount will be verified by a line item final cost invoicing provided by the 

owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an irrevocable letter of credit, cash 

deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety, which can be found on the 

Community Development Department website.  Please contact Land Development Service for 

more information at 887-2211. 

8. In the event that an applicant and/or owner cannot complete non-life, non-safety and non-health 

improvements, prior to City Engineer signature on the final plat and/or prior to occupancy, a surety 

agreement may be approved as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3C. 

9. Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and construction 

inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the issuance of a plan 

approval letter. 

10. It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features comply with 

the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act. 

11. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404 Permitting that 

may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers. 

12. Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office. 

13. All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-1-4B. 

14. Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all building 

pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material. 

15. The engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set a minimum of 

3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation.  This is to ensure that the bottom 

elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above. 

16. The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or    drainage 

facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation district or ACHD. 

The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been installed in accordance 

with the approved design plans. This certification will be required before a certificate of occupancy 

is issued for any structures within the project.  

17. At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record drawings per 

the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards.  These record drawings must be received and approved 

prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures within the project.  

18. Street light plan requirements are listed in section 6-7 of the Improvement Standards for Street 

Lighting (http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272).  All street lights shall be 

installed at developer’s expense.  Final design shall be submitted as part of the development plan 

set for approval, which must include the location of any existing street lights.  The contractor’s 

work and materials shall conform to the ISPWC and the City of Meridian Supplemental 

Specifications to the ISPWC. Contact the City of Meridian Transportation and Utility Coordinator 

at 898-5500 for information on the locations of existing street lighting. 

19. The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public right of 

way (include all water services and hydrants).  The easement widths shall be 20-feet wide for a 

single utility, or 30-feet wide for two.  The easements shall not be dedicated via the plat, but rather 

dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard forms. The easement shall 

be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit an executed easement (on the 

form available from Public Works), a legal description prepared by an Idaho Licensed Professional 

Land Surveyor, which must include the area of the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 

11” map with bearings and distances (marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be 

Page 99

Item #6.



 

 
Page 16 

 
  

sealed, signed and dated by a Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD.  Add a note to the 

plat referencing this document.  All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to 

signature of the final plat by the City Engineer. 

20. Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with and NPDES permitting that 

may be required by the Environmental Protection Agency. 

21. Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho Well 

Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water Resources.  The 

Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are any existing wells in 

the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or provide record of their 

abandonment.   

22. Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City Ordinance 

Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact the Central District Health Department for abandonment 

procedures and inspections. 

23. The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round 

source of water (MCC 9-1-28.C.1). The applicant should be required to use any existing surface or 

well water for the primary source.  If a surface or well source is not available, a single-point 

connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point connection is utilized, 

the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for the common areas prior to 

development plan approval. 

24. All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting, 

crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed per UDC 

11-3A-6.  In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-1207 and any 

other applicable law or regulation. 

 

Page 100

Item #6.



 

 
Page 17 

 
  

 

 

Page 101

Item #6.



 

 
Page 18 

 
  

 

Page 102

Item #6.



 

 
Page 19 

 
  

 

Page 103

Item #6.



 

 
Page 20 

 
  

 

 

Page 104

Item #6.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Memorandum of Agreement Between Meridian Library District and City Of 
Meridian for Design and Installation of Mural

Page 105

Item #7.



 

 

 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
Request to Include Topic on the City Council Agenda 

From: Emily Kane, Deputy City Attorney Meeting Date: March 1, 2022 

Presenter: Cassandra Schiffer, Arts & Culture 
Coordinator 

Estimated Time: .5 minutes 

Topic: Memorandum of Agreement Between Meridian Library District and City Of Meridian 
for Design and Installation of Mural 

 

Recommended Council Action: 

Approve the agreement and authorize the Mayor’s signature. 

Background:  

This agreement sets forth terms, conditions, and expectations for the partnership under which the 
Meridian Library District agrees to provide a public art easement for City’s installation of a mural 
on a building owned by MLD, specifically, the building containing unBound, on 722 E. 2nd Street.  
This MOA was developed for the purpose of engaging the property owner’s acknowledgement of, 
and commitment to, all aspects of the partnership and process before mural design. 

 

Page 106

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 1 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT AND CITY OF MERIDIAN  

FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL 

 

This MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN MERIDIAN LIBRARY 
DISTRICT AND CITY OF MERIDIAN FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL 
(“Agreement”), is made and entered into this _____ day of __________________, 2022 
(“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation organized 
under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and the Meridian Library District, a public library 
district organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“MLD”) (collectively, “Parties”). 
 

WHEREAS, the Parties mutually desire to foster a vibrant community, establish a sense 
of place and local identity, attract visitors to downtown Meridian, and beautify public spaces; 

 
WHEREAS, to that end, City intends to dedicate funds for the design and installation of 

a public art mural at 722 E. 2nd Street, in Meridian, Idaho, Ada County parcel no. R5672000870 
(“Property”); specifically, on the south-facing exterior wall of the building; 

 
WHEREAS, MLD owns the Property, and has agreed to make the south-facing exterior 

wall of the building available to the City for the installation of a public art mural (“Mural”), by 
an artist to be selected by and under contract with City (“Artist”); 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties seek by this Agreement to memorialize the process by which the 
mural will be installed, establish the terms and conditions of City’s investment in this 
partnership, and establish each Party’s expectations for the design, installation, ownership, 
maintenance, and longevity of the mural; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 

 
I. MLD’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

A. Public Art Easement.  At the time specified in the process set forth in Exhibit A, MLD shall 
convey to City a Public Art Easement, as set forth in the Public Art Easement Agreement 
attached hereto as Exhibit B, for the installation of the Mural at Property.  By signing this 
Agreement, MLD acknowledges and agrees that City will, in reliance on MLD’s covenant to 
convey the Public Art Easement, engage the Artist to design and install Mural, a public art 
installation custom-designed specifically for installation on the south-facing exterior wall of 
the building at Property.  Prior to execution of this Agreement, MLD shall carefully review 
the Public Art Easement Agreement set forth in Exhibit B, shall consult MLD’s legal counsel 
regarding same, and shall fully negotiate all terms of the Public Art Easement prior to the 
execution of this Agreement.  MLD’s execution of this Agreement shall signify MLD’s 
covenant to execute the Public Art Easement Agreement in the form set forth in Exhibit B.  
If, following the execution of this Agreement, MLD declines to execute the Public Art 
Easement Agreement exactly as set forth in Exhibit B, MLD shall reimburse City for all 

Page 107

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 2 

expenses incurred and obligations made by City in reliance on MLD’s commitment to 
execute same, including, but not limited to, any and all amounts paid to Artist for design 
and/or installation of the Mural at Property. 
 

B. MLD Contact.  MLD shall designate an individual to serve as MLD Contact, which 
individual shall consult with City and Artist throughout the design and installation of the 
Mural, and shall be authorized to make decisions on behalf of MLD related to design and 
installation of the Mural. 

 

C. Process.  MLD has reviewed, acknowledges, understands, and agrees to participate in the 
partnership process generally as set forth in Exhibit A hereto. 

 
I. CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES. 

 

A. City Contact.  City shall designate an individual to serve as City Contact, which individual 
shall consult and liaise with MLD and Artist throughout the design and installation of the 
Mural, and shall be authorized to make decisions on behalf of City related to design and 
installation of the Mural. 
 

B. Manage process.  City shall manage and participate as needed in the public-private mural 
partnership process generally as set forth in Exhibit A hereto. 

 

C. Agreements, resolution.  City shall: 
1. Prepare, and with Artist negotiate and execute, a master agreement with the Artist 

establishing terms and conditions of services to be provided in the design and installation 
of public art murals, which agreement shall be generally in the form as set forth in 
Exhibit C hereto. 

2. Prepare, and with Artist negotiate and execute, a task order with the Artist for the design 
of the Mural to be installed at Property, which agreement shall be generally in the form as 
set forth in Exhibit D hereto. 

3. Prepare, and with Artist negotiate and execute, a task order with the Artist for the 
installation of the Mural at Property, which agreement shall be generally in the form as 
set forth in Exhibit E hereto. 

4. Prior to the execution of this Agreement, negotiate and finalize with MLD, the agreed-
upon terms of the Public Art Easement Agreement which agreement shall be in the 
specific form and contain the specific content as set forth in Exhibit B, and, following 
execution of the task order for installation of the Mural, shall attach such installation task 
order to the Public Art Easement Agreement as an exhibit thereto.  Following the Parties’ 
execution of the Public Art Easement Agreement and attachment of the installation task 
order as an exhibit thereto, City shall record the Public Art Easement against the 
Property. 

5. Prepare and, with Artist, negotiate and execute, Mural acceptance agreement establishing 
terms and conditions of City’s acceptance of final Mural, which agreement shall be 
generally in the form as set forth in Exhibit F hereto.  City shall prepare the City Council 
resolution signifying City’s approval of the Mural as installed. 

Page 108

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 3 

Except insofar as may be specifically established therein, MLD shall not be a party or third 
party beneficiary to these agreements. 

 

III. GENERAL PROVISIONS.   
 

A. City and MLD Contacts.  The Parties hereby designate the following individuals to serve as 
the City Contact and MLD Contact, respectively: 
City Contact: MLD Contact: 
Cassandra Schiffler, Arts & Culture Coordinator Nick Grove, Assistant Director 
cschiffler@meridiancity.org nick@mld.org 
208-884-5533  (208) 888-4451 
 

B. Notice.  Communication between City Contact and MLD Contact may occur via e-mail or 
telephone.  All other notices required to be given by either of the Parties hereto shall be in 
writing and be deemed communicated when personally served, or mailed in the United States 
mail, addressed as follows: 
If to City: If to MLD: 

City Clerk, City of Meridian Gretchen Caserotti, Director 
33 E. Broadway Avenue Meridian Library District 
Meridian, Idaho 83642 1326 W. Cherry Lane 
 Meridian ID 83642 
 

C. Term.  This Agreement begins immediately upon the Effective Date and shall expire upon 
recording of the fully executed Public Art Easement Agreement, unless earlier terminated as 
set forth herein. 
 

D. Non-appropriation.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, City shall not 
be obligated by any provision of this Agreement unless and until the Meridian City Council 
appropriates adequate funds for this Agreement in the City’s budget for the applicable fiscal 
year.  In the event that funds are not appropriated necessary to meet City’s obligations under 
this Agreement, this Agreement shall be terminated. City shall notify MLD of any such non-
appropriation of funds at the earliest practicable date. 
  

E. Assignment.  Neither party shall assign or sublet all or any portion of its respective interest 
in this Agreement or any privilege or right hereunder, either voluntarily or involuntarily, 
without the prior written consent of the other party.  This Agreement and each and all of the 
terms and conditions hereof shall apply to and are binding upon the respective organizations, 
legal representative, successors, and assigns of the Parties. 
 

F. No agency.  For purposes of or in furtherance of this Agreement, neither party nor its 
respective employees, agents, contractors, officials, officers, servants, guests, and/or invitees 
shall be considered agents of the other in any manner or for any purpose whatsoever. 

 

G. Hold harmless.  For purposes of or in furtherance of this Agreement, each party and each of 
its employees, agents, contractors, officials, officers, servants, guests, and/or invitees, shall 
save and hold harmless the other party from and for any and all losses, claims, actions, 

Page 109

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 4 

judgments for damages, or injury to persons or property and losses and expenses caused or 
incurred by either party or any employee, agent, contractor, official, officer, servant, guest, 
and/or invitee thereof.   

 
H. Compliance with laws.  In performing the scope of services required hereunder, City and 

MLD shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of Federal, State, and 
local governments. 

 

I. Attorney Fees.  Should any litigation be commenced between the Parties hereto concerning 
this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to any other relief as may be 
granted, to court costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees as determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction.  This provision shall be deemed to be a separate contract between the Parties and 
shall survive any default, termination or forfeiture of this Agreement. 

 

J. Termination.  
 

1. Grounds.  Grounds for termination of this Agreement shall include, but shall not be 
limited to: non-appropriation of funds necessary to meet City’s obligations under this 
Agreement; an act or omission by either party which materially breaches any term of this 
Agreement; an act of nature or other unforeseeable event which precludes or makes 
impossible the performance of the terms of this Agreement by either party; or a change in 
or occurrence of circumstances that renders the performance by either party a detriment 
to the public health, safety, or welfare. 
 

2. Process.  Either party may terminate this Agreement by providing thirty (30) days’ notice 
of intention to terminate.  Such notice shall include a description of the breach or 
circumstances providing grounds for termination.  A fourteen (14) day cure period shall 
commence upon provision of the notice of intention to terminate.  If, upon the expiration 
of such cure period, cure of the breach or circumstances providing grounds for 
termination has not occurred, this Agreement may be terminated upon mailing of notice 
of termination. 

 

K. Construction and severability.  If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid or 
unenforceable, such holding will not affect the validity or enforceability of any other part of 
this Agreement so long as the remainder of the Agreement is reasonably capable of 
completion. 
 

L. Non-waiver.  Failure of either party to promptly enforce the strict performance of any term 
of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or relinquishment of any party’s right to 
thereafter enforce such term, and any right or remedy hereunder may be asserted at any time 
after the governing body of either party becomes entitled to the benefit thereof, 
notwithstanding delay in enforcement. 

 

M. Approval required.  This Agreement shall not become effective or binding until approved 
by the respective governing bodies of both City and MLD.  The Parties signatory hereto 

Page 110

Item #7.



Page 111

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 6 

EXHIBIT A 
PUBLIC-PRIVATE MURAL PARTNERSHIP PROCESS OVERVIEW 

 

STEP RESPONSIBLE PARTY TASK 

1 City (Arts & Culture Coordinator) Identify potential partners to participate in public-private 
partnership for installation of murals on suitable buildings  

2 City (City Attorney’s Office)  Prepare proposed memorandum of agreement with selected 
partner Property Owner establishing terms and conditions 
of design and installation of the mural and Public Art 
Easement Agreement 

3 City (City Attorney’s Office) and 
Property Owner 

Negotiate Public Art Easement Agreement; negotiate and 
execute memorandum of agreement  

4 City (Arts & Culture Coordinator) Issue request for qualifications (RFQ) for mural artists; 
match selected Artist with partner Property Owner 
Note: This step is complete; Key Detail is the artist who 
will design and install the mural.  

5 City (City Attorney’s Office) Prepare task order for mural design 
 

6 City (City Attorney’s Office) and 
Artist 

Negotiate and execute task order for mural design  

7 City (Arts & Culture Coordinator, 
Meridian Arts Commission), Property 
Owner, and Artist 

Collaborative exchange between Property Owner, Artist, 
and City per design task order; Artist delivers final mural 
design  

8 City (Meridian Arts Commission) Review and recommend approval of final mural design 

9 City (City Attorney’s Office) Prepare task order for mural installation 

10 Property Owner and Artist If Property Owner requires written agreement with, and/or 
proof of insurance from, Artist for mural installation: 
Negotiate and execute terms (City will not participate) 

11 City (City Attorney’s Office) and 
Artist 

Negotiate and execute task order for mural installation; 
City Council approves final design via approval of task 
order for mural installation 

12 City (City Attorney’s Office) Prepare final Public Art Easement Agreement with task 
order for mural installation attached as exhibit 

13 City (City Attorney’s Office) and 
Property Owner 

Execute and record Public Art Easement Agreement 

14 Artist and Property Owner Artist schedules installation with Property Owner; installs 
mural per the installation task order and written agreement 
with Property Owner, if any 

15 City (City Attorney’s Office) Prepare mural acceptance agreement 

16 City (City Attorney’s Office) and 
Artist 

Negotiate and execute mural acceptance agreement 

17 City (Arts & Culture Coordinator) and 
Artist 

Project closeout per installation task order and acceptance 
agreement – site visit, document collection, sign 
installation, Meridian Arts Commission final approval 

18 City (City Attorney’s Office) Prepare resolution for City Council approval and Mayor’s 
signature, accepting the mural and approving final payment 
to Artist 

19 City (Arts & Culture Coordinator), 
Property Owner, and Artist 

Schedule/coordinate mural unveiling event (as weather or 
other circumstances permit) 

  

Page 112

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 7 

EXHIBIT B 

PUBLIC ART EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 

WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO: 
 
City Clerk 
City of Meridian 
33 E. Broadway Avenue 
Meridian, ID  83642 
 

 

PUBLIC ART EASEMENT AGREEMENT: PROPERTY ADDRESS 

 
This PUBLIC ART EASEMENT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made on this ______ 

day of ____________________, 2022 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a 
municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and PROPERTY 
OWNER, an ORGANIZATION TYPE organized under the laws of the state of Idaho (“Grantor”).  
(City and Grantor may hereinafter be collectively referred to as “Parties.”) 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire that public art murals will be incorporated into the Meridian 
community, and to that end, City will dedicate funds and contract with ARTIST for the design, 
installation, and/or maintenance of a public art mural at PROPERTY ADDRESS, in Meridian, Ada 
County parcel no. PARCEL NUMBER (“Property”); specifically, on the DIRECTION-facing 
exterior wall of the building located thereon; 

 
WHEREAS, Grantor owns the Property, and has agreed to make it available to the City for 

the installation of a mural (“Mural”) by ARTIST (“Artist”), as generally depicted in the Task Order 

For Mural Installation between City and Artist, executed on DATE and attached hereto as Exhibit 

A (“DATE Task Order”); 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. GRANT OF EASEMENT. Grantor conveys, grants and warrants to the City, its successors and 
assigns, an easement for the purpose of installing, maintaining, and exhibiting the Mural on and in 
the Property. Following Final Acceptance of the Mural as defined in the DATE Task Order, the 
Mural shall be the property of City. 
 

2. TERM. This Agreement, and the easement granted hereunder, shall be effective until 11:59 p.m. 
on September 30, 2031 unless extended by mutual agreement of the Parties. 
 
3. RECORDATION.  City shall record this Agreement in the land records of Ada County Idaho, and 
shall submit proof of such recording to Grantor.  For recording purposes, the legal description of the 
Property is: LOT/BLOCK DESCRIPTION PER ASSESSOR.   
 
  

Page 113

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 8 

4. TERMINATION. 

 

a. Termination by Grantor.  This Agreement, and the easement granted hereunder, may be 
terminated by Grantor, at any time, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to City and receipt 
of the City’s written consent to terminate, upon Grantor’s showing of any of the following: 

(1) That the property is to be sold and the buyer requires removal of the easement as a 
condition of the purchase and sale; or  

(2) That the property is to be refinanced and the lender requires removal of the easement 
as a condition of the refinancing; or  

(3) That the property is to be substantially remodeled or altered in a way that precludes 
continued maintenance of the Mural;  

(4) That Grantor’s circumstances have materially changed and the continued existence 
of the easement or maintenance of the Mural substantially impedes Grantor’s 
reasonable use and enjoyment of the Property.  

City shall not unreasonably withhold consent to termination upon Grantor’s satisfactory 
demonstration of any of the foregoing conditions of termination.  Grantor expressly agrees 
and warrants that if Grantor terminates this Agreement, Grantor shall be responsible for 
removing the Mural and restoring the Property to its prior condition, at Grantor’s sole 
expense.  Such removal and restoration shall occur within thirty (30) days of the termination 
of the easement, unless this period is extended in writing by the City.   

 
b. Termination by City.  This Agreement, and the easement granted hereunder, may be 

terminated by City, at any time, upon thirty (30) days’ written notice to Grantor, if City 
determines that Grantor has failed to substantially perform Grantor’s obligations under this 
Agreement, or if City determines that the continued existence of the easement or 
maintenance of the Artwork is no longer desired or if City is unable to maintain the Artwork 
due to non-appropriation of funds.  City expressly agrees and warrants that if City terminates 
this Agreement, City shall be responsible for removing or painting over the Mural and 
restoring the Property to its prior condition, at City’s sole election and expense.  Grantor 
shall allow City access to Property necessary to complete such removal or restoration.  Such 
removal or restoration, if City so elects, shall occur within thirty (30) days of the termination 
of the easement, unless this period is extended in writing by Grantor. 
 

c. Expiration of Term.  Upon expiration of the term of this Agreement, as set forth herein or 
as mutually extended by the Parties by written amendment as set forth herein, City expressly 
agrees and warrants that City shall be responsible for removing or painting over the Mural 
within thirty (30) days of the expiration of the easement, unless this period is extended in 
writing by the Grantor. 

 
o 5. MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF MURAL.  During the term of this Agreement, as set forth 

herein or as mutually extended by the Parties by written amendment as set forth herein, City 
shall have the sole right and responsibility to determine the need for, and to execute, all 
necessary maintenance and repair of the Mural and shall not interfere with the normal 
operations of Property or inhibit the public access to and use of Property’s services. 

.  City may determine, in its sole discretion, that the Mural is damaged beyond feasible repair, and 
may remove or paint over the Mural, with thirty (30) days’ notice to Grantor.  Grantor shall notify 
City if Grantor perceives a need to maintain or repair the Mural.  
 

Page 114

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 9 

6. RIGHT OF ENTRY. City or City’s contractor shall have the right to enter the Property during 
normal business hours, and at all other times with advance approval of the Grantor, for any and all 
of the purposes described in this Agreement. City shall provide Grantor at least forty-eight (48) 
hours’ prior notice of such entry and receive written approval by Property Owner. 
 
7. BINDING EFFECT. The easement granted in this agreement shall run with the land and shall be 
binding upon, and inure to the benefit, of the Grantor and the City, and their respective 
representatives successors or assigns, and/or any person or entity acquiring any right, title, or 
interest in the Property. 
 
8. CONTRACTUAL RELATIONSHIPS; ASSIGNMENT. This Agreement does not designate either Party 
as the agent or representative of the other for any purpose whatsoever. The Parties are not granted 
any express or implied right or authority to assume or create any obligation or responsibility on 
behalf of the other or to bind the other in any manner whatsoever. Neither Party shall assign this 
agreement without the prior written consent of the other. 
 
9. NOTICE. Any and all notice required to be provided by the Parties hereto, unless otherwise stated 
in this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed communicated upon mailing by United 
States Mail, addressed as follows: 

Grantor:  City: 
PROPERTY OWNER NAME 
Attn: CONTACT NAME 
ADDRESS 

Meridian ID ZIP CODE 

City of Meridian 
Attn: City Clerk 
33 E. Broadway Avenue 
Meridian ID  83642 

Either Party may change its address for the purpose of this section by delivering to the other Party 
written notification of such change, establishing a new address for noticing purposes, in accordance 
with the requirements of this section. 
 
10. NON-APPROPRIATION. Grantor acknowledges that City is a governmental entity, and the 
validity of this Agreement is based upon the availability of public funding under the authority of its 
statutory mandate. 
 
11. APPLICABLE LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
statutes and constitution of the State of Idaho, including, without limitation, Article VIII, Section 3, 
of the Idaho Constitution. 
 

12. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither Party will be liable for failure to perform any duty under this 
Agreement where such failure is due to unforeseeable causes beyond such Party’s control.  Such 
causes may include, but shall not be restricted to, acts of God or nature, fire, flood, epidemic, strike, 
crime, natural disaster, or any order of any court or state or federal agency. 
 
13. AMENDMENTS. No modification or amendment of the provisions of this agreement shall be 
effective unless in writing and signed by authorized representatives of the parties. 
 
14. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that time is strictly of the essence 
with respect to each and every term, condition, and provision hereof, and that the failure to timely 
perform any of the obligations hereunder shall constitute a breach and default hereunder by the 
Party so failing to perform. 

Page 115

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 10 

 

15. BINDING UPON SUCCESSORS.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, this Agreement 
shall be binding upon any and all owners of the  Property, any and all subsequent owners thereof, 
and each and every other person acquiring an interest in the  Property.  Nothing herein shall, or shall 
be construed to, in any way prevent the sale or alienation of the  Property, or any portion thereof, 
except that any sale or alienation shall occur subject to the provisions of this Agreement, and any 
successive owner or owners shall be both benefited and bound by the conditions and restrictions 
herein expressed. 
 
16. SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, such provision shall be deemed to be excised herefrom and the invalidity thereof shall 
not affect any other provision or provisions contained herein. 
 
17. ATTORNEY FEES.  Should any litigation be commenced between the parties hereto concerning 
this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled, in addition to any other relief as may be 
granted, to court costs and reasonable attorney fees as determined by such court.  This provision 
shall be deemed to be a separate contract between the Parties and shall survive, inter alia, any 
default, termination, or forfeiture of this Agreement. 

 

18. FINAL AGREEMENT.  This Agreement sets forth all promises, inducements, agreements, 
conditions, and understandings between City and Grantor relative to the subject matter hereof, and 
there are no promises, agreements, conditions, or understandings, either oral or written, express or 
implied, between City and Grantor, other than as are stated herein.  Except as otherwise specifically 
provided herein, no subsequent alteration, amendment, change, or addition to this Agreement shall 
be binding upon the Parties unless set forth in writing and duly executed by both Parties or their 
successors in interest.   
 

19. NON-WAIVER.  Failure of either Party to promptly enforce the strict performance of any term of 
this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver or relinquishment of any Party’s right to thereafter 
enforce such term, and any right or remedy hereunder may be asserted at any time after either party 
becomes entitled to the benefit thereof, notwithstanding delay in enforcement.  All rights and 
remedies herein enumerated shall be cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy 
allowed by law.  Likewise, the exercise of any remedy provided for herein or allowed by law shall 
not be to the exclusion of any other remedy. 

 

20. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS.  Throughout the course of this Agreement, the Parties shall comply 
with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of Federal, State, and local governments.  This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Idaho, and the ordinances of the City of Meridian.   

 

21. ADVICE OF ATTORNEY.  Each party warrants and represents that in executing this Agreement, it 
has received independent legal advice from its attorney or the opportunity to seek such advice. 

 

22. APPROVAL REQUIRED.  This Agreement shall not become effective or binding until approved 
by the City Council of the City of Meridian. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on this ____ 
day of __________________, 2022. 

Page 116

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 11 

 
GRANTOR:     STATE OF IDAHO ) 

      )  ss: 
      County of ____________ ) 

__________________________________ I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ______ day of  

NAME, TITLE    ________, 2022, before the undersigned, a Notary  

ORGANIZATION    Public in the State of Idaho, personally appeared  

NAME, proven to me to be the person who executed the said 
instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 
affixed my official seal, the day and year in this certificate first 
above written. 
 

      _______________________________________ 
Notary Public for Idaho 

      
Residing at _____________________________, Idaho 
 
My Commission Expires: _______________________ 

 
CITY OF MERIDIAN: 

 
 
BY: ______________________________ Attest: _________________________ 

Robert E. Simison, Mayor    Chris Johnson, City Clerk 
 

STATE OF IDAHO ) 
: ss 

County of Ada                    ) 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that on this ______ day of _____________, 
2022 before the undersigned, personally appeared ROBERT E. 
SIMISON and CHRIS JOHNSON, known or identified to me to be 
the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Meridian, 
who executed the instrument on behalf of the City of Meridian, and 
acknowledged to me that the City of Meridian executed the same. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and 
affixed my official seal the day and year in this certificate first 
above written. 
 

      _______________________________________ 
Notary Public for Idaho 

      
Residing at ___________________________________, Idaho 
 
My Commission Expires: _____________________________ 

 

Attached as exhibit: 

TASK ORDER WITH ARTIST FOR INSTALLATION OF MURAL 

Page 117

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 12 

EXHIBIT C 

ARTIST MASTER AGREEMENT 

 
MASTER AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: 

MURAL DESIGN, INSTALLATION, AND MAINTENANCE 

 
This MASTER AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES: MURAL DESIGN, 

INSTALLATION, AND MAINTENANCE (“Agreement”) is made this ____ day of __________, 
2022 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal corporation organized 
under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and NAME, on behalf of BUSINESS NAME, a TYPE 
OF BUSINESS organized under the laws of the state of Idaho (“Artist”). 
 

WHEREAS, the City desires to foster a vibrant community; establish a sense of history, 
place, and local identity; attract visitors to downtown Meridian; and beautify public spaces by 
facilitating the installation of murals on buildings in Meridian, both privately- and publicly-owned; 

 
WHEREAS, Artist is qualified through experience and demonstrated ability to work with 

the City, property owners, and other interested parties to create artwork that addresses the context of 
its placement, reflects community values, and meets or exceeds stakeholder expectations; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 

I. PROCESS.  By this Agreement, City and Artist seek to establish the general terms of tasks 
undertaken by Artist with regard to consultations, design, installation, maintenance, and repair 
of murals, and any and all other tasks related to such activities.  The City may invite Artist to 
provide such services pursuant to separate project task orders establishing specific terms and 
conditions, including compensation amount, scope of work, and timelines. 
 

II. SCOPE OF SERVICES.  Upon execution of this Agreement and any associated project task order, 
Artist shall comply in all respects and perform and furnish to City, all services and shall meet all 
standards enumerated in this Agreement and in the project task order.  Artist shall provide 
services and work in accordance with generally accepted industry standards and practices for the 
profession or professions that are used in performance of this Agreement and/or the project task 
order.  Services and work provided by Artist shall be performed in a timely manner as specified 
in the project task order and agreed upon by the parties. 

 
III. TERM.   This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date first written above, and 

shall be effective through September 30, 2031, unless sooner terminated by the method set forth 
herein. 

 

IV. COMPENSATION. 

 

A. Total amount. The total payment to Artist for specific services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be separately negotiated and enumerated in the respective project task 
order(s).  The amount designated in the project task order shall constitute full compensation 

Page 118

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 13 

for any and all services, travel, transportation, materials, fabrication, shipping, equipment, 
contingency, commission, artist fee, and costs of work to be performed or furnished by 
Artist.   

 
B. Method of payment.  Artist shall provide to City one (1) completed W-9 form, and invoices 

for services and/or materials provided pursuant to the payment schedule set forth in the 
project task order, which City shall pay within thirty (30) days of receipt.  City shall not 
withhold any federal or state income taxes or Social Security tax from any payment made by 
City to Artist under the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and 
other assessments on such sums shall be the sole responsibility of Artist. 

 

V. CREATION, INTEGRITY, AND OWNERSHIP OF ARTWORK. 

 

A. Waiver and relinquishment of rights. Artist expressly waives any and all right, title, or 
interest in artwork and other products created pursuant to this Agreement or project task 
order.  Artist understands that this waiver shall include waivers of the exclusive rights of 
reproduction, adaptation, publication, and display.  Artist specifically waives the right to 
claim any remedy concerning the alteration of any artwork or product created pursuant to 
this Agreement or project task order.  Artist agrees to relinquish any and all rights, title, and 
interest to artwork or products developed in connection with this Agreement or project task 
order, and hereby expressly waives any rights Artist has to same, including, but not limited 
to, the rights afforded artists under the Copyright Act of 1976 and the Visual Arts Rights Act 
of 1990, Title 17 U.S.C. §§ 101 et seq.  Artist understands and agrees that the right of 
attribution and integrity, as specifically set forth in 17 U.S.C. § 106A, are hereby expressly 
waived.  To the extent that the provisions of this Agreement differ with the Copyright Act of 
1976 and Visual Arts Rights Act of 1990, the provisions of this Agreement will govern and 
any such differences in the rights and duties created thereunder are expressly waived.  This 
provision shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. 
 

B. Photographs of Artwork by Artist.  Artist may photographically reproduce the image of 
the Artwork and all preliminary studies, sketches, models and maquettes thereof, as Artist 
may desire for marketing, educational and public information purposes.  Where practicable, 
Artist shall acknowledge on each such photographic reproduction the location of such 
Artwork, provided that reproductions of preliminary studies, sketches, models and 
maquettes shall not be identified as or represented to be the finished Artwork.   
 

C. Photographs of Artwork by City.  City may photographically reproduce the image of the 
Artwork and all preliminary studies, sketches, models and maquettes thereof that have been 
delivered to and accepted, as City may desire for educational and public information 
purposes.  Where practicable and to the extent of City’s authority, Artist shall be 
acknowledged on each such photographic reproduction to be the creator of the original 
subject thereof, provided that photographic reproductions of preliminary studies, sketches, 
models and maquettes shall not be identified as or represented to be the finished Artwork.   
 

D. Ownership.  Upon City’s final acceptance of artwork or other products created pursuant to 
this Agreement, such artwork or products shall be owned by City, and City may maintain, 
repair, or fully or partially remove them, at City’s sole election and discretion. 

 

Page 119

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 14 

E. Subcontracting or assignment of obligations. Artist shall not subcontract or assign any of 
Artist’s obligations under this Agreement that require or that may require Artist’s artistic 
talent or expertise.  Artist may subcontract or assign obligations that do not require Artist’s 
artistic talent or expertise.  Any and all subcontractors or assignees shall be bound by all the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

VI. INDEMNIFICATION, WAIVER, AND INSURANCE. 

 
A. Indemnification.  Artist shall, and hereby does, indemnify, save, and hold harmless the City 

and any and all of its employees, agents, volunteers, and/or elected officials from any and all 
losses, claims, and judgments for damages or injury to persons or property, and from any 
and all losses and expenses caused or incurred by Artist or Artist’s servants, agents, 
employees, guests, and/or business invitees, occurring as a result of this Agreement or 
project task order. 

 
B. Waiver.  Artist hereby waives any and all claims and recourse against City, including the 

right of contribution for loss and damage to persons or property arising from, growing out 
of, or in any way connected with or incident to Artist’s performance of this Agreement or 
project task order, whether such loss or damage may be attributable to known or unknown 
conditions, except for liability arising out of concurrent or sole negligence of City or its 
officers, agents or employees 

 
C. Insurance to be obtained by Artist.  Upon execution of a project task order, Artist shall 

obtain and shall maintain, at Artist’s own expense, through completion of the task order, 
each and all of the following: 
 
1. General liability insurance. General liability insurance with a limit of not less than one 

million dollars ($1,000,000.00) per each occurrence, combined single limit bodily injury 
and property damage, covering the actions and omissions of Artist and Artist’s 
employees, agents, and/or workers, including coverage for owned, non-owned, and hired 
vehicles, as applicable. 

 
2. Workers’ compensation insurance.  Artist shall obtain and shall maintain, at Artist’s 

own expense, from the Effective Date of this Agreement through City’s Final 
Acceptance of the Artwork, and throughout the course of this Agreement, workers’ 
compensation insurance, in an amount required by Idaho law, to cover any and all 
persons employed by Artist.  

 
3. Insurance of Artwork.  Before commencing fabrication of Artwork and/or components 

or materials thereof, Artist shall procure and maintain, at Artist’s own expense, 
insurance on same in an all-risk form with limits to be established by the project task 
order, with any loss payable to City.  Artist agrees to bear all risks of loss of and/or 
damage to the Artwork until City’s Final Acceptance of Artwork. 

 
D. Proof of insurance.  Artist shall provide to City, within seven (7) days of the effective date 

of a project task order, written proof that Artist has obtained all insurance required 
hereunder.  If any change is made to any insurance policy or coverage required under and/or 
obtained pursuant to this Agreement, Artist shall notify City immediately.   

Page 120

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 15 

 
E. Insurance to be obtained by Artist’s subcontractors.  Artist shall require any and all 

subcontractors employed or utilized in the course and scope of the obligations described in 
this Agreement to obtain and maintain general liability insurance and workers’ 
compensation insurance in the amounts described herein.  Artist shall provide to City, within 
twenty-four (24) hours of hiring or engaging any subcontractor, written proof that her 
subcontractors have obtained all insurance required hereunder. 

 
F. No cancellation without notice.  On all insurance policies required under this agreement, 

such policies shall provide that they may not be cancelled or reduced in coverage except 
upon thirty (30) days advance written notice to all Parties. Any cancellation of insurance 
without appropriate replacement in the amounts and terms set forth herein may constitute 
grounds for termination of the contract. 
 

VII. TERMINATION. 

 

A. Termination for cause.  If City determines that Artist has failed to comply with any term or 
condition of this Agreement or project task order, violated any of the covenants, agreements, 
and/or stipulations of this Agreement or project task order, falsified any record or document 
required to be prepared under this Agreement or project task order, engaged in fraud, 
dishonesty, or any other act of misconduct in the performance of this Agreement or project 
task order; or if either Party willfully or negligently defaults in, or fails to fulfill, its material 
obligations under this Agreement or project task order; the other Party shall have the right to 
terminate the Agreement by giving written notice to the defaulting party of its intent to 
terminate, and shall specify the grounds for termination.  The defaulting party shall have 
thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice to cure the default.  If the default is not cured 
within such period, this Agreement and the project task order shall be terminated upon 
mailing of written notice of same by the terminating party. 

  
1. Default by City. In the event of termination for non-performance or default by City after 

City’s issuance of notice to proceed on a project task order, City shall compensate Artist 
for work actually completed by Artist prior to the date of written notice of termination 
and any additional services and materials actually performed or supplied prior to the date 
of written notice of termination, less payments of compensation previously made, not to 
exceed the total amount of compensation allowed hereunder.  

 
2. Default by Artist. In the event of termination for non-performance or default by Artist 

after City’s issuance of notice to proceed on a project task order, all finished and 
unfinished drawings, photographs, plans, timelines, and/or any and all other work 
products prepared and submitted or prepared for submission under this Agreement or 
project task order, and all rights, title, and interest thereto, including those described in 
section V.A. of this Agreement, shall, at City’s option, become City’s property, and the 
right to fabricate and/or install the artwork or other products shall pass to City.  
Notwithstanding this provision, Artist shall not be relieved of any liability for damages 
sustained by City attributable to Artist’s default or breach of this Agreement or project 
task order.  City may reasonably withhold payments due until such time as the exact 
amount of damages due to City from Artist is determined.  Artist shall not be relieved of 
liability to City for damages sustained by City by virtue of any breach or default of this 

Page 121

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 16 

Agreement or project task order by Artist.  This provision shall survive the termination 
of this Agreement or project task order and shall not relieve Artist of liability to City for 
damages. 

  
B. Termination without cause.  City may terminate this Agreement or project task order for 

any reason, at any time, by providing fourteen (14) days’ notice to Artist.  
 
C. Non-waiver of breach.  A waiver of any breach or default of any provision of this 

Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of a breach of the same or any other provision 
hereof. 

 
VIII. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 
A. Permitting and inspection.  In the provision of all services pursuant to this Agreement or 

any related project task order, Artist shall obtain any and all necessary permits or approvals 
from the various departments of the City of Meridian and other government agencies. 
 

B. Relationship of Parties.  It is the express intention of Parties that Artist is an independent 
contractor and neither Artist nor any officer, employee, subcontractor, assignee, or agent of 
Artist shall be deemed an employee, agent, joint venturer, or partner of City in any manner 
or for any purpose.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating 
or establishing the relationship of employer and employee between Artist and City or 
between Artist and any official, agent, or employee of City.  Both parties acknowledge that 
Artist is not an employee of City.  Artist shall retain the right to perform services for others 
during the term of this Agreement.  Specifically, without limitation, Artist understands, 
acknowledges, and agrees:  
1. Artist is free from actual and potential control by City in the provision of services under 

this Agreement. 
2. Artist is engaged in an independently established trade, occupation, profession, or 

business. 
3. Artist has the authority to hire subordinates. 
4. Artist owns and/or will provide all major items of equipment necessary to perform 

services under this Agreement. 
 
C. Compliance with law.  Throughout the course of this Agreement, Artist shall comply with 

any and all applicable federal, state, and local laws. 
 

D. Non-Discrimination. Throughout the course of this Agreement, Artist shall not discriminate 
against any person as to race, creed, religion, sex, age, national origin, sexual orientation or 
any physical, mental, or sensory handicap. 

 
E. Audits and Inspections: At any time during normal business hours and as often as City 

may deem necessary, there shall be made available to City for examination all of Artist’s 
records with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement.  Artist shall permit City to 
audit, examine, and copy, and to make audits of all records and data relating to all matters 
covered by this Agreement. 
 

F. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the 

Page 122

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 17 

Parties.  This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made 
by either party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, whether previous to the 
execution hereof or contemporaneous herewith.  The terms of this Agreement may not be 
enlarged, modified or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto. 

 
G. Costs and attorneys’ fees. If either party brings any action or proceedings to enforce, 

protect or establish any right or remedy under the terms and conditions of this Agreement, 
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees, as 
determined by a court of competent jurisdiction, in addition to any other relief awarded. 
 

H. Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the 
validity, interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement.  Venue shall be in 
the courts of Ada County, Idaho. 

 
I. Cumulative Rights and Remedies. All rights and remedies herein enumerated shall be 

cumulative and none shall exclude any other right or remedy allowed by law. Likewise, the 
exercise of any remedy provided for herein or allowed by law shall not be to the exclusion 
of any other remedy. 

 
J. Interpretation. Words of gender used in this Agreement shall be held and construed to 

include any other gender, and words in the singular shall be held to include the plural and 
vice versa unless the context otherwise requires.  The Agreement and the captions of the 
various sections of this Agreement are for convenience and ease of reference only, and do 
not define, limit, augment or describe the scope, context or intent of this Agreement or any 
part or parts of this Agreement. 

 

K. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall 
not be affected. 

 
L. Successors and Assigns.  All of the terms, provisions, covenants and conditions of this 

Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding upon, each party and their 
successors, assigns, legal representatives, heirs, executors, and administrators. 

 
M. Notice. Any and all notice required to be provided by either of the Parties hereto, unless 

otherwise stated in this Agreement, shall be in writing and shall be deemed communicated 
upon mailing by United States Mail, addressed as follows: 

Artist: 

BUSINESS NAME 
ARTIST NAME 
ADDRESS 
ADDRESS 

City: 

City Clerk 
City of Meridian 
33 E. Broadway Ave. 
Meridian ID  83642 

Either party may change its address for the purpose of this provision by giving written notice 
of such change in the manner herein provided. 

 
N. Exhibits.  All exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated by reference and made a part of 

hereof as if the exhibits were set forth in their entirety herein. 
 

Page 123

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 18 

O. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Agreement shall be expressly 
conditioned upon City Council action approving the Agreement.  Execution of this 
Agreement by the persons referenced below prior to such ratification or approval shall not 
be construed as proof of validity in the absence of Meridian City Council approval. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 

Effective Date first written above. 
 
ARTIST: 

 

 

________________________________   
ARTIST NAME, TITLE 
BUSINESS NAME 
 

CITY OF MERIDIAN: 

 
 
__________________________________  Attest: ______________________________ 
Robert E. Simison, Mayor     Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

 

 

  

Page 124

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 19 

EXHIBIT D 

TASK ORDER WITH ARTIST FOR MURAL DESIGN 

 
TASK ORDER FOR MURAL DESIGN 

 
This TASK ORDER FOR MURAL DESIGN (“Task Order”) is made this ______ day of 

_____________________, 2022 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a 
municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and NAME, on 
behalf of BUSINESS NAME, a TYPE OF BUSINESS organized under the laws of the state of 
Idaho (“Artist”). 
 

WHEREAS, Artist and City have entered into a Master Agreement for Professional 

Services: Mural Design, Installation, and Maintenance (“Master Agreement”), which establishes 
terms and conditions under which City may invite Artist to provide services including consultations, 
design, installation, maintenance, and repair of murals, pursuant to separate project task order(s) 
setting forth specific conditions, compensation amount, and scope of work; and 

 
WHEREAS, City and PROPERTY OWNER NAME (“Owner”) have entered into a Public 

Art Easement Agreement, by which Agreement Owner agreed to allow City to engage an Artist for 
the purpose of designing a public art mural for potential installation at ADDRESS, in Meridian, Ada 
County parcel no. NUMBER (“Property”); specifically, on the DIRECTION-facing exterior wall of 
the building located at Property;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES.  Artist shall design a large-scale, painted mural installation for potential 

installation on the DIRECTION-facing exterior wall of the building at the Property (“Mural”), 
located at Property.  Throughout the design process, Artist shall seek input from City and Owner 
(collectively, “Stakeholders”), and shall finalize the design only with consensus from all 
Stakeholders.  At the conclusion of the design process, Artist shall deliver to City a to-scale 
rendering of the Mural design, including a depiction of all architectural features and fixtures to 
be accommodated (e.g., windows, doors, signs, projections, etc.). Artist shall also be responsible 
for obtaining written approval of the final design from the designated representative of each 
Stakeholder. 
 

II. COMPENSATION. 

 

A. Total amount. The total payment to Artist for services rendered under this Task Order shall 
be AMOUNT IN WORDS ($AMOUNT IN NUMBER).  This amount shall constitute full 
compensation for any and all services, travel, transportation, materials, fabrication, shipping, 
equipment, contingency, commission, artist fee, and costs of work to be performed or 
furnished by Artist under this Task Order.   

 
B. Method of payment.  Artist shall provide to City invoices for services and deliverables 

provided pursuant to the payment schedule set forth herein, which City shall pay within 

Page 125

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 20 

thirty (30) days of receipt.  City shall not withhold any federal or state income taxes or 
Social Security tax from any payment made by City to Artist under the terms and conditions 
of this Task Order. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums shall be the 
sole responsibility of Artist. 

 
C. Payment schedule.  Artist shall be paid pursuant to the following benchmarks: 

 
1. Initial design: $AMOUNT shall be due to Artist for upon Artist’s delivery to 

Stakeholders an initial design of the Mural. 
 

2. Final Design: $AMOUNT shall be due to Artist for delivery of a Final Design, as 
defined herein and as approved in writing by City. 

 
III. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. 

 
A. Timeline.  In the provision of services and deliverables under this Task Order, Artist shall 

meet the following deadlines:  
 

1. By 5:00 p.m. on DATE: Artist shall deliver three initial designs of the Mural to City. 
Stakeholders are tentatively scheduled to review the initial designs and provide feedback 
on March 16, 2022 at 5:00pm. 

 
2. By 5:00 p.m. on DATE: Artist shall deliver to City a provisionally final design which 

shall include a detailed, to-scale rendering of the Mural design, including a depiction of 
all architectural features and fixtures to be accommodated (e.g., windows, doors, signs, 
projections, etc.). Stakeholders are tentatively scheduled to review the final design and 
give final feedback on May 18, 2022 at 5:00pm.  

 
3. By 5:00 p.m. on DATE: Artist shall deliver to City the final design, which shall 

include: a) a detailed, to-scale rendering of the Mural design incorporating the feedback 
from Stakeholders and including a depiction of all architectural features and fixtures to 
be accommodated (e.g., windows, doors, signs, projections, etc.) and b) written approval 
of the design from the Owner. 

 
B. Time of the essence.  The Parties acknowledge that services provided under this Task Order 

shall be performed in a timely manner.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that time is 
strictly of the essence with respect to this Task Order, and that the failure to timely perform 
any of the obligations hereunder shall constitute a breach of, and a default under, this Task 
Order by the party so failing to perform. 

 
IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 

A. Master Agreement applies.  All provisions of the Master Agreement are incorporated by 
reference and made a part of hereof as if set forth in their entirety herein. 

 
B. Stakeholders’ designated representatives.  Stakeholders have vested in the following 

representatives the authority to provide to Artist input and approval regarding proposed 

Page 126

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 21 

mural designs.  Any Stakeholder may change its authorized representative and/or address for 
the purpose of this paragraph by giving written notice of such change to Artist and to City. 

 
1. Owner: 

OWNER NAME, OWNER TITLE 
OWNER BUSINESS 
OWNER E-MAIL 
 

2. City: 

Cassandra Schiffler, Arts and Culture Coordinator 
City of Meridian 
cschiffler@meridiancity.org 

 

C. Limited edition.  Artist does, and shall, warrant and represent that the designs provided 
pursuant to this Task Order have never heretofore been designed, fabricated, installed, 
created, published, or copied and that Artist is the sole creator and owner of all rights in such 
designs. 

 
D. Installation not included. Artist acknowledges and agrees that this Task Order imparts no 

commitment by City to contract with Artist for installation of the Mural depicted in concept 
designs provided pursuant to this Task Order.  Further, this Task Order vests no right in 
Artist to install the Mural depicted in designs provided pursuant to this Task Order. 

 
E. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Task Order shall be expressly 

conditioned upon City Council action approving same.  Execution of this Task Order by the 
persons referenced below prior to such ratification or approval shall not be construed as 
proof of validity in the absence of Meridian City Council approval. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Task Order on the 

Effective Date first written above. 
 

ARTIST: 

 

 

 

________________________________   
ARTIST NAME, TITLE 
BUSINESS NAME 
 

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN: 

 
 
__________________________________  Attest: ______________________________ 
Robert E. Simison, Mayor     Chris Johnson, City Clerk 
 

  

Page 127

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 22 

EXHIBIT E 

TASK ORDER WITH ARTIST FOR MURAL INSTALLATION 

 

TASK ORDER FOR MURAL INSTALLATION 

 
This TASK ORDER FOR MURAL INSTALLATION (“Task Order”) is made this ______ 

day of _____________________, 2022 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a 
municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and NAME, on 
behalf of BUSINESS NAME, a TYPE OF BUSINESS organized under the laws of the state of 
Idaho (“Artist”). 
 

WHEREAS, on DATE, Artist and City entered into a Master Agreement for Professional 

Services: Mural Design, Installation, and Maintenance (“Master Agreement”), which establishes 
terms and conditions under which City may invite Artist to provide services including consultations, 
design, installation, maintenance, and repair of murals, pursuant to separate project task order(s) 
setting forth specific conditions, compensation amount, and scope of work; and 

 
WHEREAS, on DATE, City and PROPERTY OWNER NAME (“Owner”) entered into a 

Public Art Easement Agreement, by which Agreement Owner agreed to allow City to engage an 
Artist for the purpose of designing a public art mural for potential installation at ADDRESS, in 
Meridian, Ada County parcel no. NUMBER (“Property”); specifically, on the DIRECTION-facing 
exterior wall of the building located at Property;  

 

WHEREAS, Artist has created a mural design that will establish a sense of place and local 
identity in downtown Meridian, and beautify public spaces, and Owner wishes to invite Artist to 
install the mural, as designed, on the DIRECTION-facing exterior wall of the building located at 
Property, pursuant to the Public Art Easement Agreement entered into by Owners and City on 
DATE; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 

which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
I. SCOPE OF SERVICES.  Artist shall install, on the DIRECTION-facing exterior wall of the 

building located at Property, a large-scale, painted mural installation as depicted in Exhibit A 
hereto (“Mural”).  Artwork design, fabrication, and installation, and Site Restoration shall 
comply in all respects with the RFP, with this agreement, with any applicable established 
industry standards, engineering standards, and with all established policies and ordinances of the 
City of Meridian.   

 

II. COMPENSATION. 

 

A. Total amount. The total payment to Artist for services rendered under this Agreement shall 
be AMOUNT IN WORDS ($AMOUNT IN NUMBER).  This amount shall constitute full 
compensation for any and all services, travel, transportation, materials, fabrication, shipping, 
equipment, contingency, commission, artist fee, and costs of work to be performed or 
furnished by Artist under this Task Order.   

Page 128

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 23 

 
B. Method of payment.  Artist shall provide to City invoices for services and deliverables 

provided pursuant to the payment schedule set forth herein, which City shall pay within 
thirty (30) days of receipt.  City shall not withhold any federal or state income taxes or 
Social Security tax from any payment made by City to Artist under the terms and conditions 
of this Task Order. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums shall be the 
sole responsibility of Artist. 

 
C. Payment schedule.  Artist shall be paid pursuant to the following benchmarks: 

 
1. Timeline: $AMOUNT shall be due to Artist within thirty (30) days of Artist’s delivery 

of  a detailed timeline for installation of the Mural, describing the estimated date of 
completion of each phase of the installation process. 
 

2. Final Completion: $AMOUNT shall be due to Artist within thirty (30) days of upon 
Final Completion, which shall be defined as: 
a. Complete installation of the completed Mural, as confirmed by City and Owner;  
b. Final inspection and written approval of the installation of the Mural by City and 

Owner; 
c. Artist’s submission to City of a recommended maintenance plan for the Mural; and 
d. Execution of a mutually agreed-upon acceptance agreement, to be prepared by the 

City Attorney’s Office, to include affirmation of Artist’s indemnification of City and 
express waiver of Artist’s right, title, or interest in the Mural. 
 

III. TIME OF PERFORMANCE. 

 
A. Timeline.  In the provision of services and deliverables under this Task Order, Artist shall 

meet the following deadlines:  
 

1. By 5:00 p.m. by DATE: Artist shall deliver to City a detailed timeline for installation of 
the Mural. 

2. By 5:00 p.m. by DATE: Artist shall deliver to City: 
b. Completely installed Mural, as defined herein and as approved in writing by City and 

Owner;  
c. Written recommended maintenance plan for the Mural; and 
d. Signed acceptance agreement. 
 

B. Time of the essence.  The Parties acknowledge that services provided under this Task Order 
shall be performed in a timely manner.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that time is strictly 
of the essence with respect to this Task Order, and that the failure to timely perform any of the 
obligations hereunder shall constitute a breach of, and a default under, this Task Order by the 
party so failing to perform. 
 

IV. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

 

A. Master Agreement applies.  All provisions of the Master Agreement are incorporated by 
reference and made a part of hereof as if set forth in their entirety herein. 

 

Page 129

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 24 

B. Owner’s and City’s designated representatives.  Stakeholders have vested in the following 
representatives the authority to provide to Artist input and approval under this Agreement.  Any 
Stakeholder may change its authorized representative and/or address for the purpose of this 
paragraph by giving written notice of such change to Artist and to City. 

 
1. Owner: 

OWNER NAME, OWNER TITLE 
OWNER BUSINESS 
OWNER E-MAIL 
 

2. City: 

Cassandra Schiffler, Arts and Culture Coordinator 
City of Meridian 
cschiffler@meridiancity.org 

 

C. City Council approval required.  The validity of this Task Order shall be expressly 
conditioned upon City Council action approving same.  Execution of this Task Order by the 
persons referenced below prior to such ratification or approval shall not be construed as proof of 
validity in the absence of Meridian City Council approval. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Task Order on the 

Effective Date first written above. 
 

ARTIST: 

 

 

 

________________________________   
ARTIST NAME, TITLE 
BUSINESS NAME 
 

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN: 

 
 
__________________________________  Attest: ______________________________ 
Robert E. Simison, Mayor     Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

 

  

Page 130

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 25 

EXHIBIT F 

MURAL ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT 

 
ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: NAME OF MURAL, ADDRESS 

 
This ACCEPTANCE AGREEMENT: NAME OF MURAL, ADDRESS is made this ____ 

day of ___________, 2022 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of Meridian, a municipal 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“City”), and ARTIST, on behalf of 
COMPANY, a COMPANY TYPE organized under the laws of the state of Idaho (“Artist”). 
 

WHEREAS, on DATE, Artist and City entered into a Master Agreement for Professional 

Services: Mural Design, Installation, and Maintenance (“Master Agreement”), which establishes 
terms and conditions under which City may invite Artist to provide services including consultations, 
design, installation, maintenance, and repair of murals, pursuant to separate project task order(s) 
setting forth specific conditions, compensation amount, and scope of work; and 

 
WHEREAS, on DATE, City and NAME (“Owner”) entered into a Memorandum of 

Agreement for Design and Installation of Mural, by which Agreement NAME agreed to enter into a 
partnership with City to design and install a public art mural on the DIRECTION-facing side of the 
building at ADDRESS, in Meridian, Ada County parcel no. NUMBER (“Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, on DATE, City and Artist entered into a Task Order for Mural Design, and, on 

DATE, a Task Order for Mural Installation (“DATE Task Order”), by which agreements City 
engaged Artist to 1) work with Owner to design a mural for the DIRECTION-facing side of the 
building at Property, and 2) install such mural on Property, under City’s access thereto under the 
Public Art Easement Agreement entered into by City and Owners on DATE; and 

 

WHEREAS, Owner and City have worked with Artist to design and install a mural entitled 
NAME OF MURAL on the DIRECTION face of the building at Property (“Artwork”) that 
exemplifies DESCRIPTION, establishes a sense of place and local identity in PART OF Meridian, 
and beautifies public spaces; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged and agreed, and in consideration of the mutual promises and 
covenants herein contained, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
I. INDEMNIFICATION. 

 
Artist hereby indemnifies and saves and holds harmless City and its respective employees, elected 
officials, agents, guests, and/or business invitees, from any and all liabilities, losses, claims, actions, 
and/or judgments for damages, expenses, and/or injury to any person or property caused or incurred 
by or as the result of the performance of or failure to perform any work or service under or related 
to the DATE Agreement. 
 
Artist specifically hereby indemnifies and saves and holds harmless City and its respective 
employees, elected officials, agents, guests, and/or business invitees, from any and all liabilities, 

Page 131

Item #7.



MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BETWEEN CITY AND MERIDIAN LIBRARY DISTRICT 
FOR DESIGN AND INSTALLATION OF MURAL       PAGE 26 

losses, claims, actions, judgments for damages, expenses, or injury to any person or to property arising 
as a result of:  
 

A. Artist’s failure, or the failure of any agent, employee, or subcontractor of Artist to exercise 
reasonable care, skill or diligence in the performance of any work or service under or related 
to the DATE Task Order;  

 
B. Any breach of any representation, warranty or covenant made by Artist, or by any of Artist’s 

agent(s), employee(s), or subcontractor(s);  
 
C. Artist’s infringement of or upon any intellectual property rights, whether intentional or 

unintentional, known or unknown, including any copyright or patent arising out of the 
reproduction or use in any manner of any plans, designs, drawings, specifications, 
information, material, sketches, notes or documents created by Artist in the performance of 
any work or service under the DATE Task Order; and/or 

 
D. The malfunction or failure of the Artwork, or any portion or component thereof, created and 

installed under the DATE Task Order. 
 
II. WAIVER. 

 
Artist hereby waives and releases, on behalf of Artist and Artist’s employees, agents, heirs, 
executors, administrators, assigns, and/or personal representatives, any and all claims and/or rights 
for damages Artist now has or may hereafter have against the City of Meridian and/or its 
employees, elected officials, agents, guests, and/or business invitees, suffered in connection with or 
arising out of the performance of any work or service under or related to the DATE Task Order.  
Except as otherwise expressly delineated in the DATE Task Order, Artist hereby waives any and all 
right, title, or interest in the Artwork and/or all items created under, assembled pursuant to, and/or 
otherwise related to the DATE Task Order and any and all addenda thereto.   
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the 
Effective Date first written above. 
 
ARTIST: 

 

 

 

________________________________   
ARTIST NAME 
COMPANY NAME 
 

 

CITY OF MERIDIAN: 

 
 
__________________________________  Attest: ______________________________ 
Robert E. Simison, Mayor     Chris Johnson, City Clerk 

 

Page 132

Item #7.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: License Agreement Between the City of Meridian and Concept Investments, 
LLP for Landscape Improvements and Maintenance

Page 133

Item #8.



LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS AND MAINTENANCE

This LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE (“Agreement”) is

made effective this day of December, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of
Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“Licensee”)
whose address is 33 E. Broadway, Meridian, Idaho 83642, and Concept Investments, LLP, a
limited liability partnership organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“Licensor”) whose
mailing address is P.O. Box 6404, Boise, Idaho 83707-6404. Licensee and Licensor may be
collectively referred to as “Parties.”

WHEREAS, Licensor owns Ada County parcel nos. R1039000247 and R1039000260 (the
“Subject Parcels” or “Licensed Premises”), located at 12 E. Ada and 20 E. Ada Street in Meridian,
Idaho, which are strips of land that abut Northbound and Southbound Meridian road, part of the
“split connector” roadway project;

WHEREAS, the Subject Parcels are adjacent to properties owned by the Ada County
Highway District and the Nampa Meridian Irrigation district, said parcels having been landscaped
with a mix of turf, shrubs, natural grasses, and trees;

WHEREAS, the Subject Parcels are not currently landscaped and Licensor has no
immediate plans to develop the Subject Parcels;

WHEREAS, Licensee desires to install landscaping and maintain the Subject Parcels on
behalf of the citizens of Meridian to provide a visually pleasing open space until such time as
Licensee desires to develop the Subject Parcels;

WHEREAS, it is mutually beneficial for both Parties for Licensee to assume responsibility
for landscaping and maintaining the Subject Parcels;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

Grant of license. Licensor hereby grants to Licensee, as grantee, a non-exclusive license on,
over, across, under, and through the Licensed Premises, for the limited purposes of installation and
maintenance of landscaping, to including turf, shrubs, natural grasses, and trees at Licensee’s
discretion for use as landscaped open space.

1.

2. Term and termination. This Agreement shall be in effect for an Initial Term beginning on
the Effective Date ending on September 30,2031. After the Initial Term, this agreement will
automatically renew for successive one-year extension terms, unless terminated by either party upon
90-day notice prior to the end of the current extension term. Licensor may terminate this agreement
at any time upon receiving conditional development approval for a site development application

LICENSE AGREEMENT PAGE 1 OF 3 Page 134

Item #8.



from the City of Meridian for the Subject Parcel(s). Licensor shall provide Licensee at least ninety

(90) days’ written notice of Licensor’s intent to develop the property. Licensee’s obligation to

maintain the Licensed Premises is subject to annual budget appropriations by the City of Meridian.

Maintenance. Licensee shall maintain the landscaping on the Licensed Premises in good

condition and repair, and as may be needed to satisfy applicable laws, policies, and reasonable

discretion of Licensor, and sound landscape maintenance practices.

3.

Damage or destruction. In the event that the landscaping on the Licensed Premises is

damaged or destroyed, in whole or in part, Licensee may restore or replace the landscaping, subject

to availability of sufficient funds.

4.

Water. Licensee shall pay for the provision of and continued use of water to the Licensed

Premises, if any.

5.

Insurance to be obtained by Licensee. Licensee shall obtain all necessary property and

other insurance as may be required in order to protect its insurable interests for its rights and

obligations described within this Agreement. Insurance of Licensor’s insurable interests shall be

the sole responsibility of Licensor.

6.

Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors, administrators,

executors and assigns of all parties hereto, and shall run with the land.

7.

Hold harmless. Licensee agrees to hold the Licensor, its successors, assigns, and agents

harmless from any and all claims, liability, losses, costs, charges, or expense that arise from

Licensee’s use or use by its employees, licensees, agents, invitees, or representatives, of the

Licensed Premises pursuant to the license granted hereby.

8.

Remedies. In the event of a breach hereunder by either party, the non-breaching party shall

have all remedies available at law or in equity, including the availability of injunctive relief. In any

suit, action or appeal therefrom to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be

entitled to recover its costs incurred therein, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

9.

Assignment. Neither party shall sell, transfer, or assign its interest in this Agreement

without first providing written notice to the other party.

10.

Obstructions. Neither Licensor nor Licensee shall install or permit any fence, sign, or other
barrier within or across the Licensed Premises. However, the foregoing shall not prohibit the

installation of temporary barricades reasonably necessary for security and/or safety purposes in

connection with repair or maintenance of the Licensed Premises, so long as such work is conducted

in the most expeditious manner reasonably possible.

11.

Notices. All notices, demands and requests required or desired to be given under this

Agreement must be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given as of the date such writing is

mailed, via U.S. Mail, prepaid and addressed to the respective Party’s current registered agent as

enumerated in the records of the Idaho Secretary of State.

12.

LICENSE AGREEMENT PAGE 2 OF 3 Page 135

Item #8.



Entire agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the

Parties. This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by

either party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, and whether previous to the execution

hereof or contemporaneous herewith. The tenns of this Agreement may not be enlarged, modified

or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.

13.

Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the

validity, interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement. Venue shall be in the

courts of Ada County, Idaho.

14.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be
affected.

15.

Warranty of authority. The person executing this Agreement on behalf of Licensor

represents and warrants due authorization to do so on behalf of Licensor, and that upon execution

on behalf of Licensor, the same is binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of. Licensor.

16.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be executed

the day and year first written above.

END OF TEXT. SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE.

LICENSE AGREEMENT PAGE 3 OF 3 Page 136

Item #8.



LICENSOR:

Concept Investments. LLP

, PartnerBy: TArTL

STATE OF IDAHO )
)ss.

COUNTY OF ADA
On this

)
,  12/9/2021, before me,day of

Notary Public in and for said State, personally
me to be the person who executed the instrument on behalf of Concept Investments, LLP, and acknowledged
to me that such LLP executed the same.

a

, known or identified to

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year in this certificate first above written.

Notary Public for Idaho
Residing at
My commission expires

LICENSEE:

City of Meridian ATTEST:

Chris Johnson, City ClerkRobert E. Simison, Mayor

STATE OF IDAHO )

)ss.
COUNTY OF ADA )

On this , 2021, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Publicday of
in and for said State, personally appeared Robert E. Simison and Chris Johnson, known to me to be the
Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Meridian, Idaho, and who executed the within instrument,
and acknowledged to me that the City of Meridian executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year first above written.

Notary Public for Idaho
Residing at
My commission expires

LICENSE AGREEMENT PAGE 4 OF 3 Page 137

Item #8.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Parks and Recreation Department: Fiscal Year 2022 Budget Amendment in 
the Amount of $45,000.00 for Meridian Road Island Beautification

Page 138

Item #9.



Mayor Robert E. Simison 

City Council Members: 

Treg Bernt 

Joe Borton 

Luke Cavener 

Brad Hoaglun 

Jessica Perreault 

Liz Strader 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 

 

 

TO:     Mayor Simison and City Council 

 

FROM:     Mike Barton, Parks Superintendent 

 

DATE:     February 7, 2022 

 

RE:           Meridian Road Island Beautification  

 

 

Background 
At the 10-19-21 Council meeting we presented an idea to beautify the two remnant parcels north of west ADA 

Street. We discussed the unsightly appearance of these parcels, cost and the possibility of completing this 

project outside the normal budget process. We received direction from Council to move this project forward by 

executing a license agreement between the city and the owner that allows us to make these improvements and to 

bring back a budget amendment in the amount of 45,000 so these improvements can be made in the spring of 

2022.  

 

Our legal department prepared a license agreement and the agreement was sent to the owner for signature. We 

received a signed copy back on 1-14-22.  

 

Action 
We are requesting approval of a budget amendment of 45,000 for construction, maintenance and approval of a 

license agreement between the City and Concept Investments, LLP. 

 

 

Page 139

Item #9.



BP
 2

/9
/2

2

Ap
pr

ov
ed

 L
uk

e 
C

av
en

er
 2

:4
4 

p.
m

. 2
/9

/2
02

2

2-
9-

22

Page 140

Item #9.

tlavoie
Reviewed



Page 141

Item #9.



Page 142

Item #9.



Page 143

Item #9.



Page 144

Item #9.



Page 145

Item #9.



Page 146

Item #9.



LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR LANDSCAPE IMPROVEMENTS AND MAINTENANCE

This LICENSE AGREEMENT FOR LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE (“Agreement”) is

made effective this day of December, 2021 (“Effective Date”), by and between the City of
Meridian, a municipal corporation organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“Licensee”)
whose address is 33 E. Broadway, Meridian, Idaho 83642, and Concept Investments, LLP, a
limited liability partnership organized under the laws of the State of Idaho (“Licensor”) whose
mailing address is P.O. Box 6404, Boise, Idaho 83707-6404. Licensee and Licensor may be
collectively referred to as “Parties.”

WHEREAS, Licensor owns Ada County parcel nos. R1039000247 and R1039000260 (the
“Subject Parcels” or “Licensed Premises”), located at 12 E. Ada and 20 E. Ada Street in Meridian,
Idaho, which are strips of land that abut Northbound and Southbound Meridian road, part of the
“split connector” roadway project;

WHEREAS, the Subject Parcels are adjacent to properties owned by the Ada County
Highway District and the Nampa Meridian Irrigation district, said parcels having been landscaped
with a mix of turf, shrubs, natural grasses, and trees;

WHEREAS, the Subject Parcels are not currently landscaped and Licensor has no
immediate plans to develop the Subject Parcels;

WHEREAS, Licensee desires to install landscaping and maintain the Subject Parcels on
behalf of the citizens of Meridian to provide a visually pleasing open space until such time as
Licensee desires to develop the Subject Parcels;

WHEREAS, it is mutually beneficial for both Parties for Licensee to assume responsibility
for landscaping and maintaining the Subject Parcels;

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agree as follows:

Grant of license. Licensor hereby grants to Licensee, as grantee, a non-exclusive license on,
over, across, under, and through the Licensed Premises, for the limited purposes of installation and
maintenance of landscaping, to including turf, shrubs, natural grasses, and trees at Licensee’s
discretion for use as landscaped open space.

1.

2. Term and termination. This Agreement shall be in effect for an Initial Term beginning on
the Effective Date ending on September 30,2031. After the Initial Term, this agreement will
automatically renew for successive one-year extension terms, unless terminated by either party upon
90-day notice prior to the end of the current extension term. Licensor may terminate this agreement
at any time upon receiving conditional development approval for a site development application

LICENSE AGREEMENT PAGE 1 OF 3 Page 147

Item #9.



from the City of Meridian for the Subject Parcel(s). Licensor shall provide Licensee at least ninety

(90) days’ written notice of Licensor’s intent to develop the property. Licensee’s obligation to

maintain the Licensed Premises is subject to annual budget appropriations by the City of Meridian.

Maintenance. Licensee shall maintain the landscaping on the Licensed Premises in good

condition and repair, and as may be needed to satisfy applicable laws, policies, and reasonable

discretion of Licensor, and sound landscape maintenance practices.

3.

Damage or destruction. In the event that the landscaping on the Licensed Premises is

damaged or destroyed, in whole or in part, Licensee may restore or replace the landscaping, subject

to availability of sufficient funds.

4.

Water. Licensee shall pay for the provision of and continued use of water to the Licensed

Premises, if any.

5.

Insurance to be obtained by Licensee. Licensee shall obtain all necessary property and

other insurance as may be required in order to protect its insurable interests for its rights and

obligations described within this Agreement. Insurance of Licensor’s insurable interests shall be

the sole responsibility of Licensor.

6.

Binding on Successors. This Agreement shall be binding on the successors, administrators,

executors and assigns of all parties hereto, and shall run with the land.

7.

Hold harmless. Licensee agrees to hold the Licensor, its successors, assigns, and agents

harmless from any and all claims, liability, losses, costs, charges, or expense that arise from

Licensee’s use or use by its employees, licensees, agents, invitees, or representatives, of the

Licensed Premises pursuant to the license granted hereby.

8.

Remedies. In the event of a breach hereunder by either party, the non-breaching party shall

have all remedies available at law or in equity, including the availability of injunctive relief. In any

suit, action or appeal therefrom to enforce or interpret this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be

entitled to recover its costs incurred therein, including reasonable attorneys’ fees.

9.

Assignment. Neither party shall sell, transfer, or assign its interest in this Agreement

without first providing written notice to the other party.

10.

Obstructions. Neither Licensor nor Licensee shall install or permit any fence, sign, or other
barrier within or across the Licensed Premises. However, the foregoing shall not prohibit the

installation of temporary barricades reasonably necessary for security and/or safety purposes in

connection with repair or maintenance of the Licensed Premises, so long as such work is conducted

in the most expeditious manner reasonably possible.

11.

Notices. All notices, demands and requests required or desired to be given under this

Agreement must be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given as of the date such writing is

mailed, via U.S. Mail, prepaid and addressed to the respective Party’s current registered agent as

enumerated in the records of the Idaho Secretary of State.

12.

LICENSE AGREEMENT PAGE 2 OF 3 Page 148

Item #9.



Entire agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding between the

Parties. This Agreement supersedes any and all statements, promises, or inducements made by

either party, or agents of either party, whether oral or written, and whether previous to the execution

hereof or contemporaneous herewith. The tenns of this Agreement may not be enlarged, modified

or altered except upon written agreement signed by both parties hereto.

13.

Agreement governed by Idaho law. The laws of the State of Idaho shall govern the

validity, interpretation, performance and enforcement of this Agreement. Venue shall be in the

courts of Ada County, Idaho.

14.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent

jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be
affected.

15.

Warranty of authority. The person executing this Agreement on behalf of Licensor

represents and warrants due authorization to do so on behalf of Licensor, and that upon execution

on behalf of Licensor, the same is binding upon, and shall inure to the benefit of. Licensor.

16.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have caused this Agreement to be executed

the day and year first written above.

END OF TEXT. SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE.

LICENSE AGREEMENT PAGE 3 OF 3 Page 149

Item #9.



LICENSOR:

Concept Investments. LLP

, PartnerBy: TArTL

STATE OF IDAHO )
)ss.

COUNTY OF ADA
On this

)
,  12/9/2021, before me,day of

Notary Public in and for said State, personally
me to be the person who executed the instrument on behalf of Concept Investments, LLP, and acknowledged
to me that such LLP executed the same.

a

, known or identified to

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year in this certificate first above written.

Notary Public for Idaho
Residing at
My commission expires

LICENSEE:

City of Meridian ATTEST:

Chris Johnson, City ClerkRobert E. Simison, Mayor

STATE OF IDAHO )

)ss.
COUNTY OF ADA )

On this , 2021, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Publicday of
in and for said State, personally appeared Robert E. Simison and Chris Johnson, known to me to be the
Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City of Meridian, Idaho, and who executed the within instrument,
and acknowledged to me that the City of Meridian executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal the day and
year first above written.

Notary Public for Idaho
Residing at
My commission expires

LICENSE AGREEMENT PAGE 4 OF 3 Page 150

Item #9.



AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Community Development: Ustick Road Center Median Options Between Ten 
Mile Road and Linder Road 

Page 151

Item #10.



 

 

 

MEMO TO CITY COUNCIL 
 

From: Caleb Hood, Planning Division Manager Meeting Date: March 1, 2022 

Presenter: Caleb Hood / Mike Barton Estimated Time: 15 minutes 

Topic: Ustick Road, Ten Mile to Linder – Center Median Options 
 

Recommended Action: 

Staff requests the Council direct Staff how best to proceed regarding a potential partnership with 
ACHD on landscaping the Ustick, Ten Mile to Linder project. 

Background: 

Parametrix completed a technical concept study for ACHD late last year for the Ustick Rd, Ten Mile Rd 
to Linder Rd project. T-O Engineers is preparing to take the preferred alternative from the concept 
study through final design. The concept study preferred alternative includes widening Ustick Rd to two 
travel lanes in each direction with a two-way, center turn lane and/or raised center medians. The 
medians are largely included in the project so the roadway can be signed at a lower speed (likely 35-40 
MPH). To design the segment to that speed, vertical obstructions are planned in the roadway. The 
eleven-foot wide raised medians are in areas along the corridor where the center turn lane is not 
needed for access, to provide traffic calming measures along the corridor. (See attached concept plan)  

There are approximately 1,900-linear feet of center median in 6 segments in the concept plan. ACHD is 
proposing to hardscape (likely stamped concrete) the center medians and install fencing as the “base” 
treatment. ACHD has offered the City an opportunity to landscape these medians giving the roadway 
more of a boulevard feel. Depending on the level of design effort and materials installed, City Staff 
estimates that landscaping the center medians with some trees, shrubs and rock mulch with an 
irrigation system will cost around $75 per linear foot, or approximately $150K for this mile segment. 
Further, annual maintenance costs are estimated at $5K. Typically, a “partner agency” with ACHD is 
expected to pay for all “non-transportation” elements, including ongoing maintenance.  

The project also includes constructing a 10-foot wide, multi-use pathway on the north and south sides 
of Ustick Rd. A traffic signal will be installed at the intersection of Ustick Rd and Towerbridge Way 
with a pedestrian refuge island on the east side crossing. A new pedestrian bridge crossing will be 
constructed over Five Mile Creek to provide connection with the existing multi-use pathway network. 
Design of this project will continue through FY22 and be complete in FY23. Right-of-way is also 
planned for 2023 and construction (CN) in 2025. The next mile of Ustick, west of Ten Mile to Black Cat 
is also going into design and should be complete in 2023 as well (CN=2024). And the third mile, from 
Black Cat to McDermott/SH-16 is planned for design by ACHD in 2026 (CN=Future). 

On February 7th, the Meridian Transportation Commission (TC) discussed this project, including the 
potential to landscape the center medians. The TC supports landscaping the center medians with a 
preference towards lower maintenance materials.  

Page 152

Item #10.



 

 

 

  

Page 153

Item #10.



 

 

 

 

 

Page 154

Item #10.



 

 

 

Page 155

Item #10.


	Top
	Item #1.	MIN 2022-02-15 City Council Work Session
	Work Session Minutes

	Item #2.	MIN 2022-02-15 City Council Regular Meeting
	Regular Meeting Minutes

	Item #3.	ESMT-2022-0127 Apex Southeast Subdivision No. 2 Sanitary Sewer Easement
	Easement

	Item #4.	ESMT-2022-0124 Future SH-16 Crossing Water Main Easement
	Easement

	Item #5.	FP Meridian Movado Village Subdivision FP-2022-0002
	Memo
	REVISED Staff Report

	Item #6.	ORDER Prescott Ridge No. 1 FP-2021-0053
	Order

	Item #7.	AGMT Memorandum of Agreement Between Meridian Library District and City of Meridian for Design and Installation of Mural
	Memo
	Agreement

	Item #8.	AGMT PR License Agreement Between the City of Meridian and Concept Investments, LLP for Landscape Improvements and Maintenance
	Agreement

	Item #9.	BUDGET/AGMT PR - Meridian Road Island Beautification LA & BA - 2/22/22
	Memo
	Budget Amendment Form
	Agreement

	Item #10.	CD Ustick Road, Ten Mile to Linder Center Medians
	Memo

	Bottom

